Annex 1 (Historical Financial Information)

The annual financial statements including supporting notes and audit reports thereon from the External Auditor
are included below in this the Annex 1 (Historical Financial Information) of the Prospectus. The annual financial
statements included in Parts B, C and D of this Annex 1 (Historical Financial Information) have been reproduced
verbatim and without adjustment from the Company’s annual report and accounts for the years ended 30 June
2024, 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022.

As this is a verbatim reproduction:

e the page and section references included in Parts B, C, and D of Annex 1 (Historical Financial Information) are
to the relevant pages and sections of the corresponding reports and accounts of the Company, and not to
the Prospectus and Annex 1(Historical Financial Information);

e certain defined terms and other references will differ to those used in the Prospectus, and will correspond
to those used in the corresponding reports and accounts of the Company; and

”nou

e references to “current year”, “current period”, “prior year” and/or “prior period” should be read as the
relevant year / period of the respective financial statements and the year of the comparative period,
respectively.

Section B

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June

2024
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Ethio telecom

Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 .June 2024
Report of the Management Board

—— ] T E——

The management board members submit their report together with the financial statements for the Year ended
30 June 2024 to Ethiopian Investment Holdings (ETH).

Incorporation and address
Ethio Telecom (“the Enterprise”) was established as an autonomous public Enterprise by the council of
ministers regulation No.1g7/2010 in November 2010 and addendum directives No. 4Bo/zoz1, It assumed the

rights and obligations of the former Ethiopian Telecommunieation Corporation with effect from 29 November
2010, The Enterprise was governed by Public Enterprises Proclamation No, 25/1992, This proclamation is
repealed by Proclamation No 1314/2024 effective on 16 May 2024,

The Enterprise's address is as below ;

Ethia telecom Headguarter
Churchill Road

P.0. Box 1047

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

Tel, +251115815700

weh: www.elhiotelecom. et

Principal activities
The Enterprise’s principal activily is to provide a comprehensive range of integrated telecommunication

services including veice and data (both mobile and fixed), SMS |, internet solutions and Finanacial Servica
(Telebirr) to its wide range of subscribers.

Results
The Enterprise’s results for the Year ended 30 June 2024 are set out on page 11, The profit for the period has

been transferred to retained earnings. The summarised results are presented below.

30 June 2024 30.June 2023
Birr'ooo Birr‘ooo

Revenue froin contracts with customers 91,371,290 71,525,993
Profit before income tax 20,790,450 28,186,778
Income tax charge (10,797,016) {10,158,764)
Met profit / (loss) for the perfod 19,013,443 18,028,014
Other eomprehensive income / (1os5) net of taxes (130,477) 130,233
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 18 882 066 18,158,247

Management Board
The managem:gjhﬂnrd members who held office during the vear and to the date of this report are set out on

page 3. =
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Ethio telecom
Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2024
Statement of management board's responsibilities

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Proclamation No. 847/2014, the Accounting and Auditing
Board of Ethiopia (AABE) has direeted the Enterprise to prepare financial statements In accordance with
International Finanelal Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

The Enterprise’s management board is responsible for ensuring proper books of accounts are kept.

To enable the management board to meet this responsibility, the management board and executive
management implement systema of internal control, accounting and information systems aimed at
providing reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and the risk of error, fraud or loss is reduced
in a cost-effective manner. These controls, contained in established policies and procedures, include the
proper delegation of responsibilities and authorities within a clearly defined framework, effective

accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties.

Nothing has come to the attention of the management board to indicate that the Enterprise will not
remain a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

Signed on behalf of the management board by:

H.E Ato Tewieggeén Titunch

Management Board Chairperson e
16 August 2024 e 5 Y
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Office of the Federal Auditor General
Audit Services Corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ethio-Telecom (the Enterprise),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial stat:mc:nts, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Enterprise as at 30 June 2024 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Enterprise
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethies Jor
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Ethiopia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

e —

™ 251-011-5515222 Fax 251-011-5513083 6 E-mail asc@ascethiopia.com B39 5720
251-011-5535012 Website www.ascethiopia.com
251-011-5535015
251-011-5535016



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue

A risk is that accounting principles for revenue recognition may be subject to differing
interpretations. There may be a risk that management is inflating income by improperly
recognizing revenue related to agreements with terms that preclude revenue recognition or by
recording services before they are rendered or invoicing before products are delivered. In our
response to these risks, we made a selection of transactions from source records and tested the
completeness of the source records by ensuring their numerical sequence. We checked that data
was input only once and was subject to validation. We selected a sample of individual
transactions to determine the propriety of their recognition during the year. We scanned the
revenue records to check whether there was any duplication of document numbers or gaps in the
sequence of document numbers to identify documents cancelled, if any. We judgmentally
selected a number of transactions each before and after the closing date to test the cut off
procedures and controls. We determined that the accounting policies and methods of revenue
recognition were appropriate and were applied consistently. Our testing did not identify major
weaknesses in the design and operation of controls that would have required us to expand the
nature or scope of our planned detailed test work. Overall, we found no concerns in respect to
the recording of revenue at appropriate values.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Enterprise’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Enterprise or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

..-'"”'-"'
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities af Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements (continued)

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Enterprise’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Enterprise’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

x| _r|‘.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Enterprise’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Enterprise to cease to

continue as a going coneern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent audltor 8 repoﬂ is Woizero
Alganesh Araya. -

B X
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on Other Matter
Additional Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the additional information. The additional information comprises
the information included in the Management Board and Executive Management, in the report of
the Management Board, and in the statement of Management Board’s responsibilities, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
additional information and, in so doing, consider whether the additional information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work that we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this additional information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Q/&L‘}ll_'{f \S;E‘-PVECE.S' C;JF?OVQ}Q_?VL\

16 August 2024
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Ethio telecom

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes
Revenue from contracts with eustomers 5
Direct costs 6(a)
Operating expenses 6(b)
Net impairment losses on finaneial asset 14(h)
Other income (kal:mtq:] 8

Enrnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11
Depreciation charge of right of use asset iz
Amortization intangible assets 13
Depreciation charge of Investment Property 13(a)

Operaling profit

Finance income 9
Finance costs 9
Finance costs - net

Profit before income tax

Income tax (expense) / credit 10(n)

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income (OCI) net on income tax

30 Junc zoz4

30 June zoz3

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss:

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post employment benefits
chligations 3
Deferred tax (liability)/asset on remeasurement gain or loss 10(a)

Total comprehensive income for the Year

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
91,371,290 71,525,993
(25,606,800) (18,708,212)
(28,606,550) (20,310,509)
(232,387) (347,607)
4,294,494 5,460,102
41,220,047 37,619,767
(7,529,546) (5,785,449)
(424,275) (383,706)
(403,920) (323,310)
(4,395) (4,395)
(8,361,636) (6,496,860)
az.B58 411 31,122 907
10,607 31,764
(3,078,559) (2,967,893)
(3,067,952) (=2,036,129)
24,790,459 28,186,778
(10,777,016) (10,158,764)
19,013,443 18,028,014
(186,300) 186,047
55,919 (55,814)
(130,477) 130,233

The Notes on pages 15 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements.

18,882,066 18,158,247



Ethio telecom
Statement of financial position

For the year ended 30 June 2024

e

ASSETS

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right of use assets

Intangible assets

Investment Property

Other assets

Other financial assets at amortised cost
Deferred tax Assets

Current assets

Invenlories

Other agsets

Trade receivables

Other financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and eash equivalents

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Lease linbilitics

Grants

Defined benefit Habilitios

Current liabilities
Borrowings

Contract linbilitios

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Lease linbilities

Grants

Defined benefit linbilities
Dividend payable

Current income tax

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
Capital

Retained earnings

Legal reserve

Other reserves

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

The Notes on pages 15 to 55 are an integral part of these finaneial statements.

i

p

-

Notes

11

12

13
13(a)
14(a)
14(c)
10{d)

15
14(n)
14(h)
14(c)

16

17
19(c)
12

18

17
1g(a)
14(h)
19(c)

12

10 (o)

21
22

R e g

30 June 2023

30 June 2024 Ax Restated
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
141,548,616 120,838,490
1,247,275 1,207,765
1,864,563 1,293,718
209,291 213,686
afi 310
7,101,156 7,101,156
3,569,757 3,656,360
155,540,919 143,311,404
14,021,202 11,036,300
4,565,762 2,074,275
9,505,447 6,773,369
15,188 2,019,741
29,643,117 33,544,592

58,050,716 56,348,277

214,101,695 199,6%
13,001,808 16,627,715
159,549 127,778
731,928 647,210
455 497
956,574 597441
14,850,314 15,300,641
4,683,808 212,627
8,000,163 8,231,309
63,901,534 53,636,335
20,198 31,950
298,352 341,037
a1 23
51,077 76,248
2,304,066
8,793,560 7.245,302
85,847,803 77,079,033
100,698,117 95,379,674
100,000,000 100,000,000
10,201,823 1,808,500
3,251,996 2,201,324
39,607 170,174
113,493,516 104,280,007
214.191.5%2 199,659,771
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Ethio telecom
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Interest income received

Interest expense paid

Income tax paid

Net eazh (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Settlement of Treasury Note receivable from MoF
Purchase of intangible assets

FPurchase of property, plant and equipment

Payment for right of use assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowings

Principal elements of lease payments

Payment of Dividend

Net eash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities

Notes

24
9
i7a&b,1z
10 (e)

13
11

18

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

16
16

30 June 2024

3o.June 2023

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
43,183,203 43,771,628
10,607 30,086

(799,560) (1,042,711)

(8,823,074) (10,560,943)
33|5?11265 33|1981951
650,000

(575.329) (8,678)

(19,660,023) {17,855,120)

(3,365) (6,324)
146,836 187,162

(20,092,781)

{i7,072,060)

(5,893,223) (6,610,985)
(406,240) (395,338)
(9,973,611) (2,500,000)
(16,273,075) (9,506,323)
(2,764,590) 5,619,678
33,544,592 28,191,157
(1,106,885) (266,244)
29,643,117 33,544,592

The Notes on pages 15 to 55 are an integral part of these finaneial statements.
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Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements

z2.b

For the year ended 30 June 2024

General information

Ethio Telecom (“the Enterprise®) was established a5 an autonomeus public Enterprise by the council of ministers regulation
No.197/2010 in November 2010 and addendum directives No, 480/2021. It assumed the tights and obligations of the former
Ethiopian Telecommunication Corporation with effect from 29 November zo010. The Enterprise was governed by Public
Enterprises Proclamation No, as/1902. This proclamation is repealed by Proclamation No 1314/2024 effective on 16 May sozg.
Despite the repaal, the rights, entitlements and duties bestowed upon the Enterprise prior to the coming into force of the new
Proclamation remain in force,

The Enterprise’s address is as below

Ethio Telecom Headquarters
Churehill Road

P.0O. Box 1047

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

Tel. 251115815700

waeb: wwnw.athiotelecom.al

The Enterprise's principal activity is to provide comprehensive rango of integrated telocommunication services including voice
and data (both mobile and fixed), SMS, intornat solutions, infrastructure colloeations, technological solutions, cloud computing,
digital finanee and digital payment solutions (Telebirr) and other digital transformation solutions ta its wide range of

zubzeribers,

Aecounting policies
Introduetion to accounting pollcics

The accounting palicies applied in the preparation of these financal statoments are set out below, These policies have been
consistently applied to the comparatives proganted, unless otherwize stated.

Basix of preparation

The complete set of financial statoments for the yeur ended on 30 June 2024 have been prepared in oeeordanee with
International Financial Reporting Standarda ("[FRS") as {ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASE").

The financial statements comprise the statement af profit or loss ane other comprehensive income, the statemont of financial
position, the stateient of changes in equity, the statement of cash flaws and the notes to the financial statements.

The measurement basis applied is the historical cost basis except where atherwise stated [n the sceounting policies , Under the
historical eost basis, assets are recorded at the amount of eash or cash equivalents paid or the fal value of the consideration
given to aequire them at the thne of their acquisition, Lishilities are recorded at the ameunt of proceeds recelved in exchange for
the obligation or, in seine cases, at the aineunts of cash or caxh equivalents expected to be paid to sutisfy the lability in the
normal course of business,

For those assets and liabilities measured at fair vailue, fair value is the price that weuld be received to sell an asset or pald 1o
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement dat, When measuring the fair
value of an azset or a lability, the Enterprise uses market obsorvable data az far as passible, If the fair value of an asset or o
liability is not directly obsarvable, it ia estimated by the Enterprise using valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant
ohservable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs (e.g. hy use of the market comparable approach that reflects
recent transaction prices for similar items or discounted eash fow analysis). Tnputs used are consistont with the characieristics
of the asset / liability that market participants would take into account.

Fair values are categorised into tres levels of faif valie hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to the measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in ils entirety:

Level 1 = fair value measurements are derived from quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identieal agsels or
liabilities.

Level 2 = fai¢ value measurements are derived from inputs other than quoted prices used in Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or linbilitles, vither directly i.v, an prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 = fair values muasurements are derived from valuation techniques that include Inputs for assets or llabilities that are not
bazed on observable market data (unobservable inpuis),

The preparation of the complete set of fnancial statemants in conformity with 1FRS vequives the use of ceriain critical
fceounting estimates. It also requires management to exerclse its Judgment in the process of applying the Enterprise’s
accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have significant Impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed, The areas involving a higher degree of Judgment or complesity, or areas where assumptions and
vstimates are significant to the financial statements, are diselosed in Note q. VAT
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z.d

z.d(i)
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2.e
LR}

e (i)

Going concern

The finaneial statements have bion prepared on a going concern basis. Mothing has come to the attention of Board of Directors
In indicate that the Enterprise will not remain a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these
financial statements for isaue,

Changes in aceounting polleies and disclosures
New Standards, amendments, interpretations not yet effective but sarlior adopted by the Enterprise

There are no new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations that are not mandatory for the period anding 30
June 2024 but have been carly adopted by the Enterprise

New Standards, amendments, interprotations not yet effective and not early adopted by the Enterprise

There are no standards, amendmants, interpretations that are not yet affective and that would be expected to have & materi]
impact on the Enterprise in the current ar future reporting periads and on foresesable future transactions axcept [TRS 51
General Requirment for Disclasure of Sustainablity related financial information, IFRS 82 Sustainablity Disclasure standard
Climate related information Disclosures effective on or after 1 January 2024, IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclasure in Financial
Statements effective on or after 1 January 2027 and 1FRS 19 Subsidiaries without Publie Aceountability: Disclosures effective on

or after 1 January 2027,

Farvign currency translation

Funettonal and Presentation Currency

Items included in the finaneial statements are measured using the currency of the primary eeonomic environment in which the
Enterprise operates ('the Functional Curtency’). Both the Functional Curreney and Presentation Curreney of the Enterprise (s
the Ethiopian Birr (Bire) rounded to the nearest thousand (Birr ‘co),

Transuctions and balances
Foreign currancy transactions are translated into the Funetional Currency using the exchange raies provailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlemant of foreign currency transactions and from the
translation at exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilitios denominated in currencies other than the Enterprise's funetional
currency are recognised in profit or loss within other (loss)/income. Monatary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated using the closing rate as at the reporting date,
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Ethio telecom
Notes to the finaneial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

a.f

Recognition of revenue from eontracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified In a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties, Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of goods/survices to customers in an amount that re fleets the
considaration that tha Enterprisc is entitled to,

The Enterprise principally generates revenue from providing telecommunication services, such as aceess to the network, nirtime
usage, mussaging, internet rorvices, cloud solution service, Infrastueture ront (Collocation) and sales of mobile devices s well as
fram digital financial services, Tolabirr, Products and survices may be sold separately or in bundled packages, The typleal
average term of a contract for the produets and services ranges from 24 months to 72 manths,

For bundled packages, the Enterprise sccounts for individual products and services separately if they are distinet Le. if a product
or service is separately identifiable from other ltems in the bundled package and if 1 customer can benefit from it. The
consideration is allocated between separate products and services in a bundle based on their stand-alone selling prices, The
stand-alone selling prices are determined bazed an the list prices at which the Enterprise sells the mobile devices, extended
wartanty and telecommunication services, For itams that are nat sold separately, the Enterprise estimates stand-alona selling
prices using the adjusted market assassment appraach,

The Enterpriss typically satisfies its porformance abligations over time with the excoption of the sale of deviees which accurs at a
point in time. The nature of its performance abligations for serviees arising from provisians of voice, data, platforms, leases,
internet, and SMS . The Enterprise uses the output method /how much the subscribers used or consumed in the traffic) to
Fecognise revenue from contracts with euslomers as this methed provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods or services

to its customers,
The Enterprise has applied customer churn rates which reprosont the average life a customer stays connected ah its mobile,

fixed line and data services, This typically ranges between 24 to 72 months, The Enterprises uses average customer life in
accounting for contract liabilities to generate revenue from upfront and CAF eommisions, connection, installation, and

reeannuction services over time.
The churn rate is also applied to determine eontract aseats arlsing from contract acquisition costs rolates to customer

applications commissions and dealers upfront commissions settled in advance. Contract liabilities relate mainly to unused
airtime and other revenue (vonnection, reconneetion and installation foos raceived) where the Enterprise has not fulfilled

perfomance obligations to customers,

The Enterprise derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over ime and at a point in time from the follawing major
produet lines:
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Naotes to the finaneial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

2.f(i}) Revenue recognised over time
Products and Nature
services
Voice revenyy | 1113 T€VENUE arises from outgoing domestic and international voice calls including premium rate calls and
directory onquires,
SM8 Thia revenue arises from oulgaing domestic and international SM8 (Short Message Service) and MME‘
/MM (Multimedia Message Service) including bulk 8M8 services,
ravanue
Internet protocol (1P} service relates to the flow of data across the intornet. 1P Traffic 1# aleo ommert y
referred to ag wib traffic, This includes VAT (Very Small Aperture Terminal) rental serviess,
Intornet revenue |Intornot revenue arises from narrowband and broadband internet services including mobile data internet.
Roaming service enables subscribers 1o automatically make and recelve voice calls, sond and receive SM& and|
Roaming to pet mobile internet access and other services when travelling outside the geographical coverage aren of the
FERbng Enterprise vis foreign country’s operator's network,
baie Subscription revenus arises from first time activation of & srvice such a8 sim-card bought by a subscribar, It
f:wgi;pﬂ“m i the amount pald by the subseriber to obtain a sim-card and/or subseeibe for ather services,

Intereannections

Intereonnection revenie araes from connection bebween the Entarprisc's network infrastructure and theas
owned by third parties.

revenue
Leased circuil sorvice enables customers, mainly multi-national corporations and international arganizations
to extend the reach into key overseas locations, It provides the means to establish connectivity for Enterprise
. customera into their premises worldwide.
Leased cireuits
revénua Leased efreuil revenue arises from International Private Leased Cireult (1PLC) facllity with secure digital

paint-to-point leased line service batwesn two international locations

revenue

Hybrid servicos

Hybrid services enables o subscriber to use voice, data and SMS services on a 1M card with both prepaid and
poatpaid payment features.

Hybrid services revenue arises from voice,data and SMS services on hybrid 8IM account plan,

Tinfraateuetyre
sharing revenue

Infrastructure sharing service revenue arising from renting of sites, building , shelters, ground space, towars,
masts, pewer supply, generators, UPS, poles, main/commercial power supply, air conditioner, transmission
eapacity, switching room collocation, and other services like physieal security,

revenue

Short code

Short codes (alse known as short numbers) are spesial tnlephone numbers, significantly shorter than fuﬁ‘
talophane numbers that can be used to address SMS, MMS and volee.

Short code revenue arises from SMS, MMS and Volee serviees te thres or four digit numbers subseribed by
businessos,

Digital finance

The revenue genurated from the digital financial service include maintenance fee for miceo credit n

service fees

collaboration with other financial institutions,
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It-f(") Revenue recognised at o point in time

Products and [Vature

services

Duvices are fived and mobile deviees available for customers to buy from the Enterprise such as handsets,
maobile wifi, dongles which enable customers to aceess Uie Entorprise's sorvices, Devices revenue arises fram

Devices revenue male of fixed and mobile devices to customers,

Alrtime credit service (ACS) revenue relates 1o fves charged on customers to access alrtime on credit, The
Alrtime eredit  [enterprise offers this service in partnership with an sgent who earns 20% of the foes charged, This 80% fecs
service revenue  |earned by Ethio Telecom are recognised as revenue at a point in time.

Finanial Serviee Commisslon 15 arising from services Provided which ncludes Cash in, Cash out, Alime top
Digital finaneial |UP. various utility payment, Cash transfer, fund ralalng, mobile Remittance and merchant transaction
servicn foes payments and miora loan serices to 118 éustamors,

£ Interest income and expense

For all government bills measured at amortised cost, interest ineame or expense i measured and recognized using the effeetive
interast rato (EIR), which Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments of receipts through the expected life
of the finanelal inatrumont or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the finanelal asset or finaneial
liability, The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the finaneial instrument (for example, prepayment options)
and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective
interost rate (EIR), but net future crodit losses,

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financlal liability is adjusted if the Enterprize revises its estimates of payments or
reeaipts, The adjusted carrying amount is caleulated based on the original EIR and the change in earrying amount is recorded as
‘interest Income’ for financial assets and interest expense for financial labilities,
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Z.h Financial Instruments
=.hii) Financial Asxets
Clasxification

The Entorprise classifies its financial asscts in the fallowing measurement eategarios;
* those to be measured subsoquently at faie valus (either through OCI or through prafit or loss), and
+ those to be measured at amortised cast,

The classification depends on the enterprise's business madel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows of the financial asset. The Enterprise business model is Just hold to maturity.

For asauts measured at fair value, gains and loases will sither be recorded in profit or loss or OCL For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Enterprise has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair valug through other comprehensive income (FYOCT),

The Enterprise reclassifies debt investments when and enly whon its business model for managing those assets changes,

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of financlal assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Enterprise commits to

purchase ar sell the asset. Financial assats are derecognised when the rights to recelve eash flows from the financlal assets have
expirad or have been transferred and the Enterpriso has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of swnership,

Meagurement

Atinitial recognition, the Enterprise measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the easo of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVFL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,
Transaction gosts of financial wsaets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Dubt instrimenis

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Enterprise’s businoss model for managing the financial assets
and the eash flow characteristies of the financial asset,

The Enterprise classifies its debt instruments under amortised cost measurement category for nssets that are held for collsetion
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely paymenta of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets s ineluded o Ainance income using the effuctive intorest rate method. Any guin
or losy arising on derscognition s recagnised directly in profit ar loss and presented in other gains/(loases) togethor with forei En
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line tem in the statement of profit or loss,

Trade receivablos and ather recelvables

Trade recvivables are umounts due from customers for goods sold ar services performed in the ordinary course of business, They
are generally du for settlement within 7 - 9o days and therefore are all classified as current, Trade roceivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration as fair value that is unconditional te any eireumatances,

The Enterprisn holds the trade receivables with the objeetive to collact the contractual eash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Details about the Enterprise’s impairment policies and the
caleulation of the loss allowance are provided in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables and no financial components are aitached, their carrylng amount is
considered to be o reasonable approximation of their fair value. Other recwivables penerally arlse from transsctions oulside the
usual operating activities of the Enterprise,
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.hii)

Cash and cash iquiuuhn"l‘: '

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, ether shor-lerm, e-money,
highly liquid investments with ariginal maturities of three months or loxs that are readily convertible 16 known amounts of cash
and which are subject to almost zgro risk of changes in value.

Finaneial labilities

Horrowings

Borrawings for the Enterprise comprise of loans, notes payables, promissory notes and bank overdrafts. Borrowings are
initially r!::pini“d it m:P value, net of transaction costa incurred. Barrowings are subseguently measured at amorlised eost.
Any diffaronce batween the proceeds (net of transaction easts) and the redemption amount is recagnised in profit of loss aver
the piriod of the borrawings using the affective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities ace recognised
a8 transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, In this ease,
the fiee is deferred until the draw down occurs, To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
fardlity will be drawn down, the fee {5 capitalised a3 4 prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the periad of the

facility to which it relates.

Barrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the eontract iz discharged,
cancelled, expired or othorwise extinguished The difference botween the carrying amount of 4 finaneial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred ta another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, (s recognised in profit or lass as other income or finance casta.

Trade and other payallis .
These amaunts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Enterprise prior te the end of financial year which are
unpaid, The amounts are unsecured. Trade and ather payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 manths after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequontly measured at

amartised cost

2.hiili} Impairmaont of financial assets

The Enterprise assesses on a forward looking basis the expected oredit losses associated with its debt instruments care led at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in eredit risk.

For trade receivables, the Enterprise applies the simplified approach permitied by IFRS g, which requires expected lifatime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Mote 4 for further details,

2. hiiv) Offsetting financial instruments

Financlal assets and liabilities are offsct and the net amount reported in the statement of financial pasition where The
Enterprise has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis or

realize the asset and settle the hability simultaneousty,
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2.

Property, plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of aceumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Such cost Includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipmont if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are requited to be replaced at inforvals, the Enterprise recognises such parts
a5 individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them ascordingly. All other repair and maintenanes costs are
recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subssquent costs are included in the asset’s carrving amount or recognised as 4 separate assct, as appropriate, only when it s
probable that future economic beneflts associated with the item will flow to the Enterprise and the cost of the itom can be
measured reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced part is derccognised.

Depreciation is caloulated using the straight-line mothod to allocate their cost less residual values over their estimated usaful
lives, as follows:

Asset class Major category Useful life in years Residual value %
Mabile network equipment 10 1.0%
Network Asseta  Fixed network equipment 10 1.0%
Transmission equipment 10 1.0%
IP network in L0%
Pawar Power Equipment §=20 1.0%
Equipmant
Buildings Buildings 20 - §0 10.0%
Motor Vehicles  Muotor Vehicles 5e20 5.0%
Servers Servers §=7 o.5%
Spares Parts Sparos Parts 5=20 2.0%
Furniture and fittings 5-12 0.5%
iar Bquipment Othar office equinient 4-10 1.0%

The Enterprise commenees depreciation when the asset is available for use, Spare parts, standby equipment and servicing
equipment are recognised as praperty, plant and equipment shen they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work-in-progress s not depreciated s these assets are not yet available for use,

An item of property, plant aid equipment and any significant part initinlly recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future sconomie benofits are expeeted fram its use or dispasal, Any gain or loss arising on dorecognition of the asset (ealeulsted
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is eluded in statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and meihods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property, plant and equipmont are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In eiveumstances indicate that the
CAFrYing amount may not be recoveralile, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the naset’s earrying amount
exceeds |4 recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the I igher af an asset's falr value leas costs to sell and value in use,

Property, plant and equipment acquired in exehange for non-monalary assets or o combination of monetary and non-monetary
assets are measured at falr value of the new asset. If the fair value cannot be determined reliably, then the exchanged asset is
measurad at the earrying amount of the assel given up,
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.k

Right use of free hold land

The Enterprise has owned 5,605,567 meter square free land recelved from the povernment of Ethispia, Since 2016 IFRS
adoption the Enterprise disclosed that such free land hold has been stated with naminal value as permited by the atandard, The
balance shown in the free hold land has been revalued as ETB 82,7 billion in 2023 hy KPMG. Their usefil life are expected to be
infinte and are not depreciable.

Investment Property

The Enterprise rented different buildings to lessees that will be catagorized a4 an operating lease on different terms and the
detail Iiuﬁn and their rovenue are disclosed under Note B and 13 (2], The property stated at cost and depreciated using straight
line metheod,

Intangible

Intangible assets acquired separatoly are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
aré carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and aecumulated impairment losses, if any, Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not eapitalized and the relited expenditure is reflected in statoment of
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred .

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised
aver the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amartisation method for an intangilile saset with a finite useful
life are reviewad at least at each finaneial year-end, Changea in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of eansumption
of future economic benefits smbodied in the asset, sre accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, which are then treatad as changes In accounting estimates. The amortisation expenses on intangible agsots with
finite lives iz presented as 1 separate line item in the statement of profit or loss,

Amartigation for intangible sssets with definite useful lives is caleulated using the straight-line method to allacate their cost less
rasidual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset class Useful life in vears
Hetwork liconsos 6-8

Softwares f-8

i) Netuwork licenses
Separately acquired notwork licences are shown at historical cost. Lieenees acquired in a business enmbination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amartisation,
Amortisation is ealealated using the straight-line method to allacate the cost of trademarks and licencos over their estimated

useful lives,

Telecommunication license fess are capitalised ot cost and amortised over the periad of the license using the straighi-line
matliad from commencement of the service of the network,

Metwork licences are reviewed for impairment whenever svents or changes in eireumstances indieate that the earrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assot’s carrying amount exeeeds its
recovarable amount

i) Softwares

Softwares comprises softwares purchased from third parties as well as the cost of internally developed software, Software
licences are capitalisvd on the basls of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into uze the specifie soflware, Software Integral 1o
an item ef hardware equipment is classified as property, plant and equipment. Costs nssociated with maintaining software
Programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intanglble assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more [requently if ovents or changes in circumstances indicata that they might be impaired, Other nssets are iested for
impalement whenever events or changes In elreumstanges indicate that the earrying amount may not be recoverable, An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its fecoverabls amount.

A7 H-‘:-\, o i .
AL AT e
ViaP Tom, N A eg B g
d ; o Th S Vo — . N
e w5 . ) Ve
LTR" i % / % A
01 | / -\ B
m a | 5]
b g 8 II |
L) @ 8 L | 5
e.“':‘ a bL'q;' [} !
Wed, Vs, o ae .-.u"ll, ?

3



Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June zo24

=l Léasns
The Enterpize as a lessee

The Enterprise leases various offices, warehouses, retail shops, equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 3 months to 15 years but may have extenslon/termination options. The extenstion aptions range between 5

yuars to 10 years.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-leass components. The Enterprise allocates the conslderation In the contract to the
lease and non-lease componaents based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of roal estate for which the
Enterprise is a lessou, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease companents and instead nccounts for these as a single

lease component.

Lease torms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lcase
agreements do not impose any covenants othor than the seeurity interests in thy leased assets that are held by the lessor.

Lease obilitics

Lease labilities include the net present value of the following lease paymunts;

i) fixed payments (Ineluding in-substanee fived payments), less any lease incentives receivably

ii) variable lease payment that are based on an index or & rate, initially measured using the Index or rate as at the
commencement dala

fif) amounts expected to be payable by the Enterprise under residual value puarantess

iv] the exerelse prics of a purchase option if the Enterprise is reasonably certaln to exercise that option, and

v) paymants of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease torm ruflects the Enterprise exerclsing that eption,

The lease paymants are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which
is generally the case for leases in the Enterprise, the lessoe’s incroemental horrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lesson would have to pay to barraw the funds necessary ta obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economie environment with similar terms, seeurity and conditions. The discounting rate applied by the Enterprise is
10% p.a whieh is assumed to be & represantative of the Enterprise’s ineremental borrowing rate,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the loase
period 8o as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for esch period

Payments assoclated with short-term leases of equipment and vohiclos and all leases of low-vilue assets are recognised on o
straight-line basiz as an expense in profit or loss, Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without @
purchase aption. Law-value assets comprlse equipment and small ftems of office furniture.

Rigght af use asset

Right-of-use assets are measured af cost comprising the following:

il the amount of the initial measurement of lease Hability

ii) any lease payments made at or bofore the commencement date less uny leass incontives received
i) any initlal dieect eosts, and

v} restoeation costs,

Restorations costs relate to estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessen in dismantling and remaving the underlying asset,
rostoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease. The provision far the restoration costs is recognised as a separate liability from leage linbilities,

Right-af-uze assets are generally dopraciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a steaight-line basis.
If the Enterprisn is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assel is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s uaeful life. The Enterprise applies 1AS 36 - Impaiement of non-current assets on the right-of-use aggel the same way a5 in

properly, plant and equipment.
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Lease term - extension and termination options

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certaln extension options are also included i the measurement of the linbllity. In
determining th lease term, management considers all facts and eireumstances that create an econemic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option, Extension options (or perieds after termination options) are enly
included in the lease term If the lease is reasonably certain to bie éxtanded (or not terminated),

Reassessment of loase terms and lease modifications that are not accountad for as a separate lease

When the Enterprise reassesses the terms of any lense (i, it re-assesses the probabilily of exercising an extension o
termination option) or modifies the terms of o lease without inereasing the scope of the lease or where the increased &eope i not
commensurate with the stand-alone price, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease lability to reflect the payments to be made
over the revised term, which are discounted at the applicable rate at the date of reassessment or modifieation. The cartying
mmnugt of lease liability is similarly revised when the variable clement of future lease paymonts dependent on a rate or Index is
revised,

For reassessments to the loase terms, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying amaunt of the right of use asset, with the
revised earrying amount being depreciated over the revised lease term. However, if the carrying ameunt of the vlght of use asset
i# reduced to zero any further reduetion in the measuremont of the lease liability s recognised in profit or loss,

For lease madifications that are not accounted for as a separate lease, an equivalent adjustment is made to the ca rrying amount
of the right of use asset, with the revised carrying amount being daprociated over the revised lease torm, Hawever, for lease
maodifications that decrease the scope of the leass the carrying amount of the right of use asset is decreased to reflect the partial
oF full termination of the leass, with any resulting difference being recognised in profit or loss 0s & gain ar lass relating to the
partial or full termination of the lensa.

Lease modifications that are accounted for as a separate lease

When the Entorprise modifies the terms af a lease resulting in an {ncrease in seope and the consideration for the lease increages
by an amount commensurate with a stand-alone price for the increase in scope, the Enterprise acconnts for those modifications
a5 a separate new lease. This accounting treatment equally applies to leases which the Enterrise elected the short-term lease
exemption and the lease term is subsequently modifiod,

Residual value guarantees
The Enterprise initially estimates and recognises amounts expeeted to be payable under residual valug guarantees as part of the
lease liability. At the end of each reporting period, the expected residual values are reviewed to reflect actual residual values

achieved on comparable assets and expectations abaut future prices,

Short term leaae and low value gssets
Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of lowsvalue assets are rocognised on o stralght-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss, Short-tenin leases are leases with a loase term of 12 months or less without a purchase option. Low

value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

The Enterpise as a lessor

When the Enterprise acts as a lessor, it determines ut lease commencement each lease 15 o finanee lease or an operating lease,

To classify each lease, the Enterprise makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers (o the lessse substantially all
risks and rawards of ownership inciduntal to the ownership of the underlying nsset. 17 this is the case, the lease Is a finance loase;
il nol, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of his asswssment, the Enterprise considers certain indicators such as

whether the lease is for a major purt of the economic life of the asset.

IFan arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Enterprise applies 1FRS 15 to allocata the consideration in the
conteact. The Enterprise recognizes Junse payments recelved under operating loases az income on o stralght-line basis over the
leage term as part of other income.
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Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

a.m

an

2.n(i}

z.n(ii}

Inventories

Inventories consist of handsets, SIM cards, seratch cards, modems, dongles and other apparatus required for network
connectivity. Network maintenance spares that do not meet criteria for eapitalisation are included as part of inventories.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valug, Cost is determined by the weighted average method. The cost
of inventories comprises purchase price and other incidental costs. Net realisabla value is the estimate of the selling price and

other ineidental costs,
Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and aecumuluting sick Jeave that are expeeted
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recagnised in respect of employees’ services up 1o the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities ave settled, Non monetary benefits inelude handssts, pifts/rewards, medieal and communication
henufits and cars for management staff. The liubilities are presented as current employes benefit obligations in the statement of

finanelal position.

Bonus plans
The Entarprise recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Enterprise recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is s past practice that has created a constructive obligation,

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Other long term obligation that are not expected to be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related serviee are measured as the present value af cxpeeted future payments to be made in respeet of
servicas provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit evedit method, Consideration is
given to expuctod future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expeeted future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the roporting period of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and
currencles that match, as closely as possiblo, the estimated future cash outflows. Remessurements as a result of experionce
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. The defined benefits srw valued az at 10 June
zoz4 and the balances are updated by the valuation results,

The ebligations are presented as currant liabilities in the statement of finaneial position if the Enterprise docs not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twalve months after the reporting peried, rogardless of when the setual
settlement is expected to oceur,

2.nfiiiy Post-cniployment ohiligarions

The Enterprise provides various post-employment schemes like post-omployment medical plans ond communication services
Refer to Note 19 for further details,

The liability recognised in the statement of financial pasition in respect of defined benefit sehemnes are the present value of the
defined benofit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit ercdit method,

The present value of the defined bonefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of zero-coupan government band yield curvas, The interest cost Is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost {s Included as employee defined contribution expense in operating

ExXpEnses.

Remeasurement yains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recogaised in
the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income, Changes in the present valuw of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendiments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs,

The defined benufits nre valued ns al 30 Junw 3024 and the balances are updated by the valuation results.

For defined contribution plans, the Enterprise pays contributiens to publicly administered pension plans autherity on o
mandatory basis. The Enterprise has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recagnised as employee benufit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised s an assel to the sxtent
that a cash refund er a reduction in the future payments is available. A
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Ethia telecom
Notes to the finaneial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Other post-employment obligations
The Enterprise provides communication benefits, farewall benefits, funeral benefits, medical benefits and Bereavement Benefi
to their retiroes az below.
Communication benefits

The Enterprise provides communication benefits for all retiring employees until death. The communication benefi amount
varies on the retiring employec's pasition as at the time of retirement.

Farewell bencfits
Upen retirement, early retirament or voluntary retifemant, the Enterprise paya a monetary reward of Bier 20,000 to all retirecs,
The benefit amount is the same to all rotirens. Additionally, the Enterprise arranges a farewoll coremony while the retiring

employeos recéive the Enterprise pin,

Funeral service benefits

In the event of the death of the emplayee, the surviving family of the emplayas is entitled to three months' salary, subject to a
minimum of Birr of 15,000, An additional cash benefit of Birr 20,000 is payable in respoct of Chief Executive Officer on the
duath of a first level family member, The bunofit iz entitled to all contract and permanent emloyees,

Gratuity benefits

The gratuity benefits are based on the severance benefits ax outlined by the Ethiopian Labour Proclamation number 1is6/2019
offoctive 5 Decomber 2019. Upon voluntary resignment of an employes who has been in service for more than 5 years, of daath
In service if the employes has between 5 to 10 years in sorvice, the Enterprise pays out 30 days of salary for the first year of
service and 10 days of salary for cach year of service after the fisst yuar, to 2 maximum of ane yuar's salary, There {5 no benafit
pay out if an employee is dismissed due to disciplinary ease,

Post Retirement Medical Aid bonofits

The Enterprise provides a lifalong 100% medical coverage treated at government hospitals and clinics, 100% medical services at
its awn clinic service center, and 95% loeal medicine coverage purchased from contracted pharmacies for the retirees, The
benefit ia the same even if an has retired valuntarily, early or at retirement nge.

Beoreavement Support Benefit

Ethio Telecom formed a fund whieh is named as “ET Edir Assistance and support Association through collecting ETB 30 from
the monthly salary of the valuntary employees. The purposs of the fund is to provide support and assistance to the survival
family during the death of emplayee. In the event of the death of the employes, the surviving family of the employee iz entitled
to get an amount which is vqual to one third of the tatal monthly contribution made by the members as ot the event {death)
happened. The benefit will be paid ta the survival family of the emplayes, wether the employee contributed or not the amount te
the Assaciation fund as far,

a.niiv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payuble when employment is tetminated by the Enterprise before the normal retirement date, or when
an employee aeeopts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these bonefits, The Enterprise recoghises termination benefits at the
catlier of the following dates: (a) when the Enterprise can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
Enterprise recognises costs for o restructuring that Is within the scope of 1AS 37 and invalves the payment of terminations

benofits,
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Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June zo24

z.0

2.p

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there 5 a teisonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Enterprise will comply with all attached conditions,

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to mateh them with
the eosts that they are intended to compensate.

Gevernment grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities a5 grants
and they are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expacted lives of the related assets,

The Enterprise has receivid frochold land for business use from the Government of the Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia
which iz also the sole owner of the Enterprise. Non-monetary govarnment grants such as freehold land are recognised as both
an asset and capltal contribution at a revalued ameount,

The Enterprise aceounts for the benefit arlsing from below-market loans from government or government related institutions as
povernment grants. Such loans are recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS o Financial Instruments. The benafit of
the below-market rate of interest is measurod sy the differsnce betwaen the initial carrylng value of the loan determined in
accordancs with IFRS 9 and the proceeds recelved.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construetion or production of & qualifying
assut are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intonded use ar sale,
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of ime to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investmuent income earned on the temporary Investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other hortawing costs are expensed in the poriod in which they
are ineurred,

Provislons

The Enterprise recagnises provisions when all the following conditions are mat:
= there i3 a present abligation {legal or constructive) as a result of 3 past event;
- itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economie benefits will be required to settle the abligation; and

- a reliable estimate ean be made of the amaunt of the obligation.

Provisions related to legal clalms, restoration costs, service warrantios and other similar obligutions of uncertain timing or
amaunt. Provisions are not recognised for future aperating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settloment is determined by
congidering the cluss of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respeet 1o any
one item ineluded in the same cluss of ahligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's bast estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting poriod. The discount rate used to determine the present value is @ pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifie to the liability, The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recogulsed as interost expense,

The Enterprise sccounts for the eosts sssoviated with dismantling and removing netwark infrastructure assets and returning a
netwark infrastrueture site operated under a lease o its original conditlon upeh termination of the network infrastructure site

lease in accordance with 1AS 16.

A restoration provision is recorded based on the best estimate of the average restoration cosis (belng the fulure costs relating to
dismantling and removing property, plant and equipment and restoring each site) multiplied by the number of sites for which
the Enterprise has a restoration abligation. This iz then discounted to the present value of the abligaiion,
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2.r

Current income tax

The income tax expense or oredit for the period s the tax payable on the current perlod’s taxable income based on the applicable
income Lax rate for Ethiopia adjusted by changes in dofarred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and

to unused tax losses,

The current income tax charge iz caleulated on the basis of the tax laws onacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
raparting period in Ethiopla, where the Enterprise operates and generates taxable income {Proclamation number 979/2016 =
Federal Income Tax Proclamation dated 8th July 20i6 effective on 1 July 2016 and Proclamation number 983/2016 - Fedaral
Tax Administration dated 20 August 2016), Management pariodically evaluates positions taken in tax returng with respect 1o
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation,

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tak basos of
assets and liabilities and their earrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
{and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the ralated deferred income tax asset is realised or the defarred income tax linbility iz zettlad.

Deferred tax assuts are recognised only if it is probable that futurs taxable amounts will be available to utilise these temporary
differences and losses. Roalized forelgn currency exchange losses related with capital expenditure incurred during a year are
dereciated for six year useful lifs,

Deferred tax ussots and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to ffset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax labilities are offset where the
Enterprise has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends sither to settle on & net bazis, or ta realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously,

Current and deferred tax is recognised In profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to ftems recognised in other
comprehensive income or diveetly in equity, In this case, the tax i alan recognised in other comprehensive Income or direetly in

equity, raspectively.
Critical aceounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Enterprise’s finanelal statements requires managemeant to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, nssots and liabilities, and the Enterprise’s disclosures, as well ax the
diselosure of contingent linbilities. Uncertainty abaut these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that requive o
material adjustment to the earrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

Az disclosed in Note 4, other disclosures relating to the Enterprise's exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
» Capital management
+ Finaneial risk manngement and policies

In the process of applying the Enterprise’s accounting policies, management has made the fallowing judgements, which have
the most signifieant effuct on the amounts recognised in the financial statesments:

Revenue recognition - allocating the transaction price

The Enterprise enters Into contracts with customers for the provision of telecommunication services . These services are
normally sold individually but from time 1o time, these products are grouped together and seld 1o customers as a bundle at a

discounted price,

Because such contracts Include several performance abligations, the transaction prive must be allocated 1o the performance
obligations on a relative =tand-alone sclling price basis. Managemenl estimates the stand-alane selling prices at eontract
inception based on observable prices of the good and or services likaly to be provided and the goods and of serviees rendered In
similar eircumstanees to similar customers. 1f & discount is granted, it is allocated to both performanee obligations based an

their relative stand-alone selling pricos,
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Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

a.h

3

3:8

Revenue recognition - avernge oustomar life

Management applies judgement in estimating average customei life. Average estimated life of o customer is determined as total
fross customer disconnections in the period divided by the average total customers in the period, The enterprise estimoted the
average expeeted duration of a subscriber to measure and recognized revenues and costs from contract liabilities and contract
assels respactively.

Yoar Wirelass Fixed ling Diata only
fubseribers  subscribers subacrilbers
2016 - 2ozo 48 months' 66 months' 48 months'
2021- 3022 g8 months’ 72 months' a6 months'
2023 - 3034 a6 months' 72 manths' 24 months'

Leases - determining right of use and lease liability
Critieal judgements required in the application of IFRS 16 includes the following;

= Identifying whether a contract (or part of a contract) includes o lease;

- Determining whether it is reasonably certain that an extunsion or termination option will be exercised;
- Classification of lease agreemaents (when the enterprise 15 a lessor):

= Determination of whether variable payments are in-gubstance fixed;

- Establishing whether there are multiple leases in an arrangement;

= Determining the stand-alone selling prices of lease and non-loaze components,
- Determining the lease tarm,

Froperty, plant and equipment

Tha depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment {s derived using estimates of its expocted useful life and expected
residunl value, which are reviewed annually. Inereasing an asset's expected life or residual value would resuli in a reduced
depreciation charge in the statement of profit or lass.

Management determines the useful lives and residual values for assets when they are acquired, based en exporience with similar
assets and taking into account other relevant factors such as any expected changes in technology. The depreciation rates used

are a0l out in Mote 21,

FPost-employment benefits

Management uses estimates when determining the Enterprise’s linbilities and expenses arising for defined benefit schemes.
Management is required to eatimate the future rates of inflation, salary inerenses, diseausnt rités and langevity of members, each
of which may have a material impact on the defined benefit obligations that are recorded. Further details, including o sensitivity
analysis, are included in Note 19 to the financial statements,

Impatrment on financial assets

The loss allowances for finaneial assets are based on assumptions about risk of defuult and expected losa rates, The Enterprise
uzes judgemaent in making these assumptions and selecting the inputa to the impairment calculation, based on the Enterprisrs
past history, existing market eanditions as well as forward looking estimates ot the end of each reparting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclased in Nate 4 to the financial statements,

Income tax and doferred tax assets / labilities

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that It s probable that txable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Realized {oreign currency exchange losses incurred related to acquisition of fixed asspts
during a year are capitalized and dopreciated annually at 15% rate. Slgnificant management judgement is required 1o determine
the amount of duferred tax assets that can be recognised, hased upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies, The Enterprise is taxed by 30% on lts annual txable profit,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Management exercises judgement In measuring and recignising provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities related to
pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to negotiated settlement, mediation, arbitration or povernment
regulation, a3 well as other contingent llabilities as disclosed under Note 28 to the financial statements. Judgement is necessary
16 asnens the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a lability will arise, and estimates are required to determine the
passible range of any financial settlement. The inherent uncertainty of such matters means that actual losses may materially
differ from estimates.
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Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

4 Financial risk management

41 Introduction

The Enterprise’s activities expose it to @ variety of financial risks: market risk (ineluding foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
eradit risk and liquidity risk. The Enterprise’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financlal performance,

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance division under policies approved by the management board. The management
board provides written principles for overall risk management, 08 wall as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign

exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity,

Categories of financial instruments

The Enterprise has the following financial instruments in the statement of financial position as at the reporting date:

Financital assets at amortised cost

Current

Trade receiviables

Other finaneial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents

Mobile Money Deposita

Non current
Other financial assets at amortised eost

Financial liabilities at omortised cost

Current
Borrowinps

Lease liabilities
Contract labilities
Fargign eraditors
Loeal creditors

Non current
Baprawings
Lease linhility

Nuote

14(b)
14(c)
16

17(0)

19{c)

17
12

10(a)
19(b}
1a(h}

17
1z

M

g0 June 2024 30 June zozg
E’r'uuu E.h-r'nnn
9,505,447 6,773,369
15,188 92,483,778
29,643,117 33,544,592
68, Bob Moy 132,801,734
7,101,156 F101,150
75.1:1:8111:2 i 0z

4,683,898 5,212,637
2o8 352 341,037
8,000,103 B23i,30y
18,873,052 i6,647,378
44,325,652 40,971,146
13,001,808 16,927,715
731,028 647,210
13,733,736 17,574,925
8,0 BB 8,546,071
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Notes to the financial statements
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4.2 Market risk

(i} Fareign exchange risk

The Enterprise is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily, with respeet to the US dollar,
Euro and Japanese Yen. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised nssets and labilities.

The Enterprise applies market foreign exchange rated with reference to National Bank of Ethiopla, the financial institutions regulator.
Foreign exchange risk arlses when future commereial transactions ar recopnized assets or llabilities are denominated in a currency

that is not the enterprise’s functional currency.

The Enterprise's exposure ta foreign currency risk as at end of 30 June 2024, Due to June 29 and 30, 2024 fall on weekend days, and
there was 1o official exchange rate released on that date from Commerelal bank of Ethiopla, the enterprise was persuaded 1o use the
rate prevalling on June 28, 2024, expressed in Ethiopian Birr curraney units, was as follows: Exchamge rate as at June 28 2oz4
USD-Buying Rate 57.3265 Selling Rate 58.4730, EUR=Buying Rats 61,3107 Selling Rate 62,5369, JPY=Buying Rate 0.3571 Selling

Rate 0.3642
a0 June zozg jo.June 2023
UsD EUR JPY usn EUR JPY
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'o0o Birr'onn Birr'ooo
Trade receivables 3,660,075 a.528,270 =
Cash and eazh equivalents 12,087 1,505,386 -
Trade payables {(18,973,052) {16,647,378) B
Borrowings {17,679,176) (6,530)  (23,132,902) (7,441)

Ifthe local currency (Ethiopian Bier) had weakened /strengthaned by 10% against the major fo reign currencles with all other varialles

held constant, the impact on pre-tax profit and retained earnings would have as below;

USD/Birr exchange rate — increase 10% (2023 — 10%)
Euro/Birr exchange rate - increase 10% (2023 - 10%)
JPY/Birr exchange rate = inerease 10% (2023 = 10%)

USD/Birr exchange rate — decrease 10% (2023~ 10%)
Euro/Dirr exchange rate - decrease 10% (2023 - 10%)
JPY/Birr exchange rate — decrease 10% (2022 16%)

(it} Price risk

30 June 3024 30 June
2027
Birr'voo ____Rirr'ooo
(2,870,942) (1,326,4509)
(q11) (581}

2,879,942 1,426,450

411 581

The Enterprise does not hold investments or seeurities that would he au hijeet to price risk, The Enterprise is not ex posed to price risk

(iii) Interest rate risk

UitElesl VdlE Vo g LI LR WKL LIE viiue oo @ Lk

IR BB wiiene Wikl U sy L¥ CLMILgER G RS ulTiTee s, @i

Enterprise's exposure to Intereat rate risk relates primarily to borrowlings at variable rates. Fixed rate borrowings only give rise to
interest rate risk if measured at fair value. The Enterprise has no financlal asasts or liability measured ai fair value at the reporting

dale. Maximum exposure to interest rate risk are detailed below :

Note

Barrowings 18

30 June 2024 a0 June 2023

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
17,685,700 22,140,392

The sensitivity analysiz for interest rate risk shows how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a finaneial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market rates at the reporting date, The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of changes in EIR

rale with all other variables held constani :

Effect on profit before tax with increase in interest rate of 1%
Effect on profit before tax with decrease in interest rate of 1%

JoJunezozqd 30 June zoz3
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
358,230 486,083
(355,236) (486,983)
h ' = . T
i I 0
£ —
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4.3

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that 4 counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss . The Enterprise is
wxposed to credit risk in respect of
payment of trade recelvaliles as invoices fall due between 30 and go days afier being raised (Note 14)

financial asseta with banking institutions (Note 17)
eontractual cash flows of debt investments and staff receivables carried at amortised cost (Note 14)

Credit risk on trade receivables is managed by ensuring that credit is extended to customers with an established credit history, The
credit history is determined by taking into aceount the finanelal position, past experience and other relevant factors. Credit s
managed by setting a credit limit and credit period for each customar, The ulilisation of the credit limits and the credit period is
monitored by management on a regular basis. Management manages credit risk arising from its dealer trade debtors by imposing

puarantes requiremants,

Credit risk on financlal assets with banking institutions is managed by dealing with institutions with good credit ratings. The
Enterprise’s debt Investrents are limited to government securities lssued by the Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia.

For these purpose default management has made an assumption that default oecurs for receivables invoices outstanding above 360
daya for all products.

The Enterprise’s recognize lifstime expected loss allowanes. The Enterprise groups its financial assets on the basis of shared eredit risk
characteristica, comprised of: postpald, intercanneet, reaming, leased and dealer.

A financial asset is credit-impnired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have oceurred, Evidence that a financial asset is eredit impaired inelude obsarvable data about tha following svents:

i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

ii} a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

iii] the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to
the borrower a coneession(s) that the lender{s) would not otherwise consider;

iv} it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation;

v} the disappearance of an active market for that financlal asset beeause of financial difficulties; or

vi) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at @ deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses,

The Enterprise’s gross carrving amount of financial assets with exposure to credit sak a1 the reporting date is ax follaws:

Fully Impaired
performing over 360 days
3oJune zozg Note Birr'ooo Birr'‘ooo
Other financial assetz at amortised cost 14(c) 7,116,944
Trade receivables 14{h) 0,508,447 4,308,014
Cazh and cash equivalents 16 2
Maohile Money Depogita 17(8) 11,058 Bao
27,680,631 F.308,014
JoJune zoag
Other financial assels at amortised cost 14(¢) 99,584,034
Trade receivables 14(b) 6,773,360 3,075,020
Cash and cash equivalents 16 33,544,592
Mobile Money Deposiia 17(a) 11,913 980

lﬁtlﬂlﬁlﬂza ﬂigﬂlﬁaé

Fully performing assets represents counter parties that are paying their dues as they fall due and are operating within their approved
credit limits. Impaired financial assets represents contractual ebligation that are overdue and/or have exceeded the approved credit

limits and are fully provided for.

Credit risk Is managed by the Chief Finance Officer who s responsible for managing and analysing credit risk for each new eliont
before standard payment and delivery terms are offered. For financial assots, the following credit risk modelling applies:

oty it I 3
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The Enterprise considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To nssess whather there is a significant increase in eredit risk the
Enterprise compares the risk of 2 default oceurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
reungnitlnn.d It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorparated:

Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic eonditions that are expected to cause a signifieant
change to the borrower's ability to meet its abligations

Significant changes In the expected performance and behaviour of the debtor, including changes in the payment status of debtor in the
group and changes in the aperating results of the debtor

The Enterprise does not grade the eredit quality of recelvables. The utilisation of credit limits i in place and vegularly monitored.

Macroeconomic information (such as market interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as part of the internal rating modal,
Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increass in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than 50 days past due in maling a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty falls to make contractual payments within 160 days af

when they fall due,

Financial assets are written off whan there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment
plan with the Enterprise. The Enterpriss categorises receivables for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 360 days past due. Whera receivables have been written off, the Enterprise continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt ta recover the recelvable due, Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

Contract acquisition costs/deposits and prepayments/ prepald benefit assets by nuture are not subject to eredit risk and therefore not
subject to expected credit losses, Sundry debtors include short term advances 1o ataff which do not bear credit risk. Expeeted credit
losses have been assessed and recognised for for trade receivables, Tnvestment securities at amortised cost and cash and cash

equivalents,

(i) Trade receivables

The Enterprise applies the TIFRS g simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowanee for all trade receivables, To mensure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristios and the days past due. These categorles comprise of : postpaid, interconnect, roaming |, leased and dealer

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period between o1 October 2017 and 30 June 2024 and the
corresponding historieal eredit losses experienced within this peried. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macrosconomie factors affecting the ability of the customers to setile the recelvables. The Enterprise
has identified the GDP, foreign currency exchange rate and the inflation rate to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the higtarical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors,

On that basia, the loss allowanee wag determined az follaws :

Past due but Impaired
not impaired (Over 360
days)
JoJune 2024
Average probability of default (%) 189 100%
Average loss glven default (%) Bad 01%
30 June 2023
Avarage probability of default (%) 16% 100%
Average loss glven dofault (%) 26% BA%

The lass allowance provisian for trade receivables reconciles to the opening loss allowance for that provision as follows:

30 June 2034
30 June 2023
Birr'‘ooo Birr'ooo
At start of vear 3,075,626 2,728,019
inerease (decrease) in
expected credit losses
232,188 347,607

expected eredit losses

Al the end of the periad g.ﬁoﬂimg 3,075,626
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For the year ended 30 June 2024

Trade recelvables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor ta engage in 3 repayment plan with the graup, and a failure to
make contractual payments for a period of greater than 360 days past due. Impairment losses on trade recelvables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are eredited apainst the same

line item,
(10} Debt investments af amortised cost

Impairment losses on financial assets is summarised below ;

Impairment losses on trade receivables

Total loss allownnee under IFRS g

"7%1&‘;"‘.-#"":.‘_' -;.b 5
% e Pap L
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30 June 2024 30 June zozy
Birr'aoo Birr'ooo
3:308,019 3,075,626
3.308.014 075,626
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Notes to the financial statements
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3.4

@5

Liguidity risle

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Enterprise will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk
management includes maintaining sufficient eash balances, and the avallability of funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities, Due to the dynamie nature of the underlying businesses, the finance department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under commitied cradit lines.

Management performs cash flow forecasting and monitor rolling forecasts of the Enterprise’s liquidity requirements te snsure it has
sufficient cash to meet its operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at
all times so that the Enterprise does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of ita borrawing facilities,
The Enterprise’s appraach when managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to mest
its liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Enterprise's reputation,

The table below analyses the Enterprize's undiscounted financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basts into relavant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.

Less than 1 Between i Ovir § years Taotal Carrving
year and 5 years amount
Birr'ono Birr'ooo Birr'oon Birr'ooo Kirr'ooo
At go June zozg4:
Barrowings 4,683,808 13,514,726 18,198,624 17,693,236
Fareign creditors 18,073,052 18,073,052 18,073,052
Local creditors 12,571,187 12,271,187 171,187
Canteact liabilities 8,000,163 8,000,163 8,099,163
_44,027,300 13,514,726 " - _Gz.b4m026 57,035,638
At 30 June 2023:
Borrowings 5,708 601 17,426,741 304,086 23,440,320 22,147,784
Faralgn creditors 16,647,378 16,647,378 16,647,378
Local creditors 10,548,795 10,538,795 10,598,705
Contract Habilities 8,231,300 8,231,300 #,931,309
—41,126,083 17,426,741 - 304,086 __38,857.8u — 67,565,266
Less than 1 Botween 1 Over [ years Total Carrying
year and § years amount
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Rirr'ono Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
At jo June zoz4:
Lease linbility 247,846 B6z.471 193,226 1,301,642 1,020,267
At 3o June zoz3:
Leage liability 432,908 629,548 237,66 1,289,523 ghE 247

Capital management

The Enterprise’s objectives when managing eapilal are lo safeguard the Enterprise's ability 1o continue as & going concern in order lo
carn returng and to maintain an optimal capital strueture Lo reduce the cost of capital. The gearing iatios al 30 June 2024 and a0

June 2023 were as follows:

30 June zozqg

3o.Junc 2023
s restated

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Debt (Hote 18¢) 18,715,986 23,128,591
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Nota 19) {40,701,057) (33.544,592)
Mt debt (i) [21,985,971) gmﬁminmg
Exquity (ii) 113,493,516 164,280,007
Net debt to equity ratio 116.19 10,099

(1) Debt Is defined as liabilities from financing activities as detailed in Note 18 (¢)
(i} Equity comprises of capltal, retained carnings, legal reserve and other reserves
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Notes to the finaneial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

30 June 2024 qo.June 2023

& Revenue from contracts with customers Rirr'ono Birr'ooo

6{a)

The disaggregation of revenue based on iming and nature is as below

Overtlime:
Bubseription 630,645 267,634
Traffic Volee 14,192,491 14,414,169
Traffic Data 30,574,465 24,703,821
Traffic IP 12,460,262 11,700,037
Traffic Visitor Rosming 1,103,878 682,112
Interconnect 9,310,511 6,336,371
Leased Clreult 1,702,534 958,458
Hybrid Bervices 5,605,971 4,603,853
Short Code (Premium SM8) 5,022,243 2,475,600
Cloud Service 108,300 15,276
Enterprise Solution 2,040,304

82,853,604 66,167,321
At a point in time:
Mobile Money Service 2,318,110.51 757,143
Devices revenuie 5,188,270.26 3,729,202
Airtime credit service revenue 1,000,126.68 849,340
Domain & Web Hoating 3,178.83 22,808

8,517,686 5,358,672
1,371,2 1,52

Contraet sequisition eosta and contract liabilities as at reporting date is as below :
30 June 2o2q 30 June 2023

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo

Reconcillintion of movement in contract nequisition costs arising from revenuc from conteacts
with customers:

Beginning na.660 62,162
Additions in the period 117,029 58,564
Recognised as Expense RUREE] . {26,066)
Balance at the end of the period 171,713 04,660

Reconcilliation of movement in contract liabilitics arising from revenue from contracts
with enstomers:

Beginning B,231,309 6,968,799
Additions in the period 68,813,078 57,735,228
Recognised as revenue ((8,945,825) (56,q72718)

Balanee at the end of the period
B,o06.1067 H,ﬂql‘aog

The Enterprise recognised impalrment losses of Birr as at 30 June 2024 3,308,014 (2023 : Birr
3,075,626 from financial assets arising from revenue from contracts with eustomers,

Expenses by nature 30 June 2024 30 Junc zozy
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Direct costs
Network access costs 4,513,088 4,184,322
Network maintenance and support costs 2,628 436 2,213,445
Handset and other devicas costs 4,693,593 iddl,iq0
Caminigsion 9,982,020 7,389,476
Purchase of materials 3,488,764 2,470,840

25,606,800 18,708,212 P
Commission costs were previously included in aperating expenses on the audited statement, but they are now

reported ag direct costs, IR
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Notes to the financial statements
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" 6(b) Operating expenses 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Employee benefits expense 14,440,865 12,420,030
Sundry Expense 6,801,889 1,569,211
Travelling Bos,775 562,463
Rent s6H2,965 596,037
Utilities ghn,bol 28y, 566
Fuel 1,754,921 1,397,834
Advertisement & Publicity 1,061,132 1,640,177
Maintenanee 763,340 Ea6,740

Other operating expenses 1,255,069 798,449
zﬂ,ﬁoﬁﬂg 2uﬂ:u|ﬁug

Other operaling expenses include costs incurred for atationery, entertainment and refreshments, uniforms,

insurance, training, audit fees, land and building tax and legal provisions.

Employes benefita expense

B |

The fallowing items are included within employee benefits exponse:

Short term employee benefits :
Salarles and wapes

Allowances

Bonus

Overtlme

Leave and holiday pay

Staff medical cost

taff loan benefit cost

Staff commissions

Other staff benefits

Employee defined contribution expense

Long term employvee benefits :
Employee defined benefit expense

8 Other income (expense)

Gaing fram sale of properiy, plant and equipment

Write (down) or writeback on inventory

Write (hack)/off of differences on PPE carrying values

Building Rent fee
Grant income / (expense)
Sundry Income

4 Finance income / (cost)

Finance ineome
Interest income

Finanece costa

Interest expense

Other finance charges

Net forelgn exchange losses

Finance costs - nat

B,192,552 6,581,080
2,410,437 2,252,474
1,268,819 1,318,530
274,293 224,803
489,835 Aalam
437,881 290,780
o4 8,275
890 451
401,582 570,234
H24,767 0,002
14,246,140 12,225,120
104,724 134,909
’ilﬂiﬂlﬂﬁ& ﬂﬂﬂeuiuw:
134,513 181,928
290,592 1,363,664
191,579 (229,728)
17,373 B.m10
15 20
3,670,972 3,903,815
4:204,494 Elﬂﬁuiml
10,607 31,764
10,607 31,764
{(745,756) (776.262)
(185,219) (175,258)
2.1 B 201
(1,078,560 (2,967,Bu1)
mluﬁzm“l SE;E‘.‘.":“E!
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Notes to the financial statements
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10 Current income and deferred tax

to{a) Current income tax
Current income tax
Deforred income tax/(cradit) o profit or loss
Current tax of priot periods

Tatal income tax charge to profit or loss
Income tax (eredit) on other eomprehensive income

Total current income tax expense in atatement of profit or loss and

ather comprehensive income

10(b)  Reconciliation of effective tax to statutory tax

30 June nuzi

3o June 2023

Birr'voo _EIt‘r'OﬂL‘l
10,371,242 9,860,208
142,521 208,586
263,252
10,777,016 10,158,764
(55,919) 55814
_10,721,097 "“l“ﬂi&?

The tax on the Enterprise's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

statutory income tax rate as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax caleulated at applicable income tax rate of 30% (2023:30%)
Tax effect of:

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Current tax of prior periads

Tax charge due to deferred tax

Income tax expenas

Expenses not deduetible for income tax malnly inelude the following;

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amartization intangible assets

Wrile (down) or writeback on Inventory
Het impairment losses on financial assets

Net fareign exchange losses

10 {c)  Current income tax liability
Balanee at the baginning of the year

Income tax expenss
Payment during the period

Balance at the end of the period

__‘.,.n iy

.s P -{“‘:iﬁ‘-‘* l:(- ¥, "\.

s, -_.C 'Imm:rlt""n_,#"‘

Tk

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
RBirr'uoon Birr'ooo
20,700,450 48,186,778
8,037,138 8,486,013
(7,530,460} (6,053,358)
8,964,564 7487532
263,252 -
80,603 384,370
10,721,007 10,214,578

jo.June zoz4
Birr'ooo

(7.520,540)
{408.420)
290,542
(232,387)
(2,149,584)

qo.Junc zoz4

30 June zozy
BH’T'DEH

(5:788,449)
32365“:]
1,363,
(347,607)
(2,017,379)

30 June zozg

Birr'ooo Rirt'noo
7,245,392 7,940,127
10,371,243 4,860,208
(8,823,074) (10,560,043)

8,793,560 7,245,392
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10(d) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
againat which the temporary differences can be utilised,
a0 .June z0zg 30 June 2023
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Deferred tax asset 3,560,758 3,656,361
3:569,758 3,656,361
Deferred ineome tax assets and liabilities, deferred income tax charge/{eradit) in profit or loss ("P/L), in equity and
other eomprehensive income are attributable to the following items:
Credit/ Credit/ (charge) 30 .June 2024
Deferred income tax AtiJuly (eharge) to P/L to equity
assets/(liabilities): 2023
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Rirr'ooo
Froperty, Plant and Equipment 1,460,066 {452,507) 1,107,469
Investment Property (64,106) 1,419 (62,787
Intangible azsets {283,957) 53,165 (230,702)
Right of use assets {a6i2,330) {11,853) {374,182)
Inventories 1,015,152 (B7,163) 927,989
Other assets 44,809 {50,511) (5,612)
Other finanelal assets at amortised cost {5.922) 1,366 (4:556)
Trade recetvables 120,156 63,390 192,553
Caah and eash equivalents - (524) (524)
Defined benefit obligations 141,758 104,588 55,910 302,395
Barrowings (947} (27.504) (38,451)
Lease liabilities 206,474 12,610 309,084
Contract liahilities 146,573 (21,8a7) 124,738
Trade and other payables 1,039,515 228,954 1,268,460
Provisions = 53,024 53,024
Grants = 145 195
Total deferred tax assets/(linbilith 3,656,361 {142,521) 55,010 3,569,768
Credit/ Credit/ (charge) 30 June zoz3
Deferred income tax At1July (charge) to P/L to equity As restated
assets/(liabilities): 20232
_Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,635,239 {75,173) 1,560,066
Investment Property (64, 100) {6q,100)
Intangible assets {371,084} 87,126 (283,057)
Right of use assets (288,379) (73.950) (a62,330)
Investment securities at amortised cost 195000, (195,00m) -
Notes receivable at amortised cost (195,162) 105,162 =
Inventorias 1,352,082 (3a6,830) 1,015,152
Other assets 59,148 (14,250) 44,809
Other financial assets at amortised cost {14,159] 8,237 (5,923)
Trade receivables (18,800) 168,047 126,156
Cash and cash equivalents {523) 523 -
Defined benefit obligations 212,808 (15,2068) {55.814) 141,788
Borrowings (g8,748) 47,800 (947)
Lease Habilities 249,560 46,905 296,474
Contract liahilities 142,514 4,059 146,573
Trade and other payables 1,062,216 {zz,701) 1,039,515
Provisions 29,420 (29,420) -
Grants 169 (169) -
Total deferred tax hititi 220 219,0 81 656,361
}fy:ﬁﬂ?&kp;u 3,931, (219,046) (55, -I:i} - 3.656,3
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
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i

it}

i)

iv)

v}

Leases

Amounts récognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right of use asset
Properties

Lease liability

Current
Non-current

Right of use assels

Balance at start of the year

Additions in the period
Remeasurement of Right of use asset
Depreciation expense

Balance at end of the period

Lease liability

Balanece at start of the year
Additions in the period
Remeasurement of lease liability
Interest expense

Repayments in the period

Balance at end of the period

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
30 June 2024

Depreciation charge right-of-use assets
Interest expense included in finance costs under Note 9

Amounts recognised in the statements of cash flows

Cash generated from operations - Interest paid
Cash generated from financing activities - lease payments

5
¥
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30 June 2024 30 Junc 2023
Birr 'ooo’ Birr 'aon’
1,247,275 1,207,765
268,352 341,037
731,928 647,210
1,030,280 088,247
zoJune 2024 30 June zoz3
Birr 'ooo' Birr 'oo0’
1,207,765 961,265
181,393 381,426
282,392 248,780
1,671,550 1,591,471
(424,275) (383,7006)
1,247,275 1,207,765
988,248 811,897
178,029 375,102
270,244 176,588
106,719 96,662
1,543,239 1,480,249
e (512,950) (491,999)
1,030,280 088,248

3o June zo23

Birr 'ooo’ Birr '‘ooo’
424,275 383,706
106,719 23,984
530,994 407,600

(106,719) (g6,662)
(406,240) (395,338)
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Intangible assets

At1July zo22

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2023

Opening net hook value
Reclassifications from WIP
Additions

Amortisation charge
Closing net hook value

At 30 June zo23

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

As at 30 June 2024
Opening net book value
Reclassifications from WIP
Additions

Amortisation charge
Closing net book value

At 3o June 2024

Cost

Aceumulated amortisation
Net book amount

13{a) Investment Property

At 3o June zoz3

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

At 30 June 2024
Opening net book value
Additions

Depreciation charge
Closing net hook value
At 30 June zoz4

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Network Software Total
licenses
Birr'aoo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
769,409 4,326,069 5,085,478
(322,674) (3.154,453) (3,477.,127)
434,735 1,171,616 1,608,350
436,735 1,171,616 1,608,350
8,678 8,678
(80,414) {242,897) (323,310)
364,000 928,719 1,203,718
768,087 4,326,060 5,094,150
(403,088) (3,397,350) (3,800,438)
304,999 928,710 1,293,718
364,999 928,719 1,203,718
34,408 364,529 398,937
542,301 33,027 675,329
(109,604) (293,816) (403,420)
32,104 1,032,459 1,804,564
1,344,706 4,723,636 6,008,421
(512,691) (3,691,166) (4,203,858)
832,104 1,032,459 1,864,564
244,159
{10,473)
213,
213,686
(4,395)
209,201
244,159
(34,868)
209,241
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ig(a)

14(b) Trade receivables

14(c)

Other azzets

Contract acquisition costs
Deposits and prepayments
Prepaid benefit assets

Sundry debtors

Current
Non-Current

30 .June 2024 3o June o2y
Birr'ooo Rirr'ooo
171,713 94,660
3,017,377 2,408,543

283 kil

1,376,652 474,003
4r§5'ﬁ.ﬂﬂ§ 2.974.2‘“;
4,565,762 2,974,275

261 310

4’Eﬁﬁlﬂ2§ Z, '?4,23;

Contract acquisition costs relates to customer applications commissions and dealers upfront commissions settled in
advance. Deposits and prepayments mainly relate to advances paid to suppliers,

Trade receivables

Laas: Provision for impalrment losses

30 June 2024

3o June 2023

Movement on impairment losses on trade is as follows:

At start of year

Impairment losses for the period

Other finaneial assets at amortised cost

staff receivables

Advanee to Minstry of Finance

Receivable froim MoF for Paid up Capital fulfillment

Birr‘ooo Rirr‘ooo
12,813,461 9,848,005
(3,308,014) (3,075,626)

9,505,447 6,773,369

3,075,626 2,728,019

232,388 347,607

3,308,014 3,075,626

30 June 2023

30 June 2024 as restated
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
15,188 19,741
7,101,156 7,101,156

- 2,000,000

7,116,344 9,120,897

Included in staff receivables are staff mortgage, holiday and other loans and advances to the Enterprise’s Staff.
The loans are secured by the stafl’s terminal benefits. Management has assessed the attrition rate for permanent staff as

being low. As such, the loss given default for staff loans is deemed to be low and consequently

as immaterial.

Current
Mon-Current

-

T
i j"l-l""“-l':'l'l”l'il- _‘ .

the expected credit losses

15,188 2,019,741
7,101,156 7,101,150
7,110,344 9,120,807

adad
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15

16

30 June 2023

Inventories 30.June 2024 as restated
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo

Commercial 2,085,131 1,311,576
Non commercial inventorles 12,836,071 9,724,724
14,021,202 11,036,300

Commercial inventories are meant for sale to customers and include handsets, 8IM cards, seratch cards, modems and
dangles. Non commercial inventories consists of consumables and support items network maintenance spares that do
not meet eriteria for capitalisation as property, plant and equipment.

Write (down) or writeback of inventories to net realisable value in the year ended 30 June 2024 amounted to Birr
292,331 (2023 - Birr 1,363,664, These were recognised as other expense/income in the statement of profit or loss in the
respective periods.

Starting from Dec 2020 (Period 21) Customs, Insurance, and Freight (CIF) charge amounting to ETB 1,850,302 was
accumulated without being allocated to the respeetive items’ cost due to the absence of en-hand quantity as the items
were issued before cost allocation. The omission of such attributable cost allocation ta the individual inventory itema
(both commereial and noncommercial) overstated the total inventory carrying balance and understated the cost of goods
sold/items consumed for the stated periads, An adjustment and restatement have been made to Inventory and Retained
Earnings to correct the misstatements. .

Since 2020 due to systems integration problem, sold inventory items amounting to ETB 1,847,154 remain on the
Inventery balance which resulted in an overstatement of Inventory and understatement of the cost of goods sold.
Accordingly, an adjustment and restatoment have been made to Inventory and Retained Earnings to correct the
misstatements.

While setting price for non-valued inventory items , incorrect and more unit prices were set on [FRS earrving inventories
value which brings an overstatement of Inventory balance by ETB 3,962,576,

The overall Restatement on inventory, ETB 3,607,546 and ETB 3,962,576, brings a net balance reduction effect of ETB
265,030. Consequently, Deferrod Tax Assets and Retained Earnings have been adjusted by ETB 79,510

JoJune 3024 30.June zoz23
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 23,935 25,102
Cash at banle 29,619,182 33,510,490

29,643,117 33,594,592

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents 30 June zo24 Fo.June zoz3
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Realised (gains)/losses on cash and cash equivalents during the period 284,313
Closing unrealised (gains)/losses on cash and cash equivalents 183,421 (p23,464)
Opening unrealised (gains)/losses on cash and eash equivalen 923,464 905,194
1,106,885 266,244

Ll PR o
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17 (a)

17 (h)

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Borrowings
jo.June zozq 3o June 2023
Birr'aoo Birr'soo
Non Current
Government Joan  18(a) 5,180 6,136
Pramissory notes p 18(h) 12,006,628 16,921,580
13,001,808 16,927,715
Current
Government loan  18(a) 1,350 1,305
Promissory notes 1 18(h) 4,682,548 5,211,322
4,683, 808 5,212,627
12!685,706 22,140,343

Government loan

Ministry of Finance

Ministry of Finance borrowing is an on-lending facility from the Japanese government, The loan principal is
JPY 118,073 (Birr 1,970) bearing interest at the rate of 0,75% per annum and repayable in 30 semi annual
instalments. The loan will mature in 2029. A reconcilintion of the changes in government loan s as follows :

3o.June 2024 30 June 2023
Birr'ooo Birr'voo
Balanece at the bcginnlng of the year 7441 9.6&5
Interest charged 115 Bi1
Principal repayments {1,208) {1,255]
Intorest repayments (40) (51)
Amortisation of grant 25 20
Translation effect on foreign currency loans 197 (998)
Balance at the end of the period 6,530 7l

Thiz loan waz iszued at below market interest rate, The Enterprise’s recognition of the grant arising of Blrr 10 (
2023 Birr 25) is presented under Note 23,

Promissory notes payahle

30 June 2024 go.June 2023

Birr'voo ME_
ZTE corporation - Telecom Expansion Project 3,790,634 4,504,023
Huawei Technologies Co. Ltd 12,774,034 15,453,578
Ericsson Credit A.B 1,113,008 2,175,300
17,679,170 23,132,902

n:‘:l‘;|1|"ﬁll,l"f-:"'l"-\. ol
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17 (2)

The promissory notes arise from financing agreements with various vendors for the Enterprise’s next
generation network and Telecom Expansion Project (TEP). The terms of the financing agreements are as helow

Currency Maximu Contractual Effective Maturity
meredit  interest rate interest rate
{Million)

ZTE vorporation - USD 300 6 months USD 2.30% 16th February,
Telecom LIBOR + 1.5% 2029
expansion projeet margin

Huawel usn 8oo 6 months USD 2.16% 18th October,
Technologies LIBOR + 1.5% 2028
Co,Litd ; margin

Ericsson Credit  USD 400 6 months USD 4.19% 15th March 2028
AB LIBOR + 3.0%

margin

Areconciliation of the changes in promissory notes payable i3 as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the vear

Promissory notes issucs

Interest charged

Prineipal repayments

Interest rapayments

Translation effect of foreign currency promissory notes

Balance at the end of the period

Net debt reconcillintion

aoJune zozg

30 June zoz3

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
22,132,002 27,260,420
559,146 662,837
(5,802,016} (6,600,730)
(692,Bo1) (945,008)
1,571,944 1,756,372
17,670,176 22,132,002

The Enterprise's financing activities comprise of borrowings and leasing arrangements. An analysis of net debt
and the movements in net debt arising from financing activities for each of the periods is as presented below -

Borrowings

Birr'ooo

Net debt as at o1 July zo22 27,275,065

Net cashflows {(7.557,034)
Foreign exchange adjustments 1,765,374
Other changes (effective interest and other finar 662,038
Net debt as at 30 June zoz3 22,140,342
Met debt as at o1.July 2023 22,140,343

Met eashflows (6,586,064)
Forelgn exchange adjustments 1,572,141
Other changes (effective interest and other finar 550,286
Net debt as at 30 June 2024 _‘___'.,;z,g_ﬁsﬂnﬁ

NP e
¥ F o

af

Leages
Birr'ooo

31,806
(116,808)

273,250

988,248

088,298
(334,030)

376,963

1,040,281

Total
Birr'ooo

28,110,960
(7.673,932)
1,755,374

936,188

23,128,501
215,128,501
(6,920,094)

1,572,141
036,249

18,715,986



Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

30 June 2024 30 June 2oz

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Defined benefit obligations
Delined benefits liabilities:
- Communication benefit 70,204 161,532
= Fatriowell benefit 28,Bog 25,834
— Funeral benefit 94,566 74,601
~ Giratuity benefit 337,021 201,102
— Post retirement medical benefit 5aB,3z5 174,118
= Bereavement benefit 37,826 36,5492
Liability in the statement of financial position 1,007,651 673,729
Statement of profit or loss charge included in personnel expenses:
= Communication benefit 34,702 a6, 613
— Farewell benefit 6,621 6,512
— Funeral benefit 33,748 8,444
- Gratuity benefit 67,514 58,547
= Past retirement medical benalit 62,816 64,191
- Bereavement benefit 11,233 11,067
Total defined henefit CXponses 205,634 195,315
Remeasurements for:
- Communication benefit (115,971) (32,623)
~ Farewe]l benefit 382 {4,703}
~ Funeral benafit 2,194 {z15)
= Gratuity benefit (4.525) 4,317
- Post retirement medical benefit 312,936 (145,205)
— Bereavement beneflt {H,621) (7,519)

186,396 (186,047)

The statemnant of profit or loss charge included within employee sxpenses includes current service cost, interest eost, past

service costs on the defined benefit schemes.

Maturity analysis godune 2024 30 June zozy
Birr'ooo Birr'o00

Current 51,077 70,248

Non=Current 950,574 597,441
1,007,651 673,720

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Finanetal assumptions applied

30 June 2ozg
Diseount Rate (p.a) for all benefits 21.60%
Salary Increase rate (p.a) for funeral, gratuity and post retirement medical benefits 19.60%

Inflation rate (p.a) for all benefits except gratuity
Inflation rate (p.a) for gratulty

Inflation rate (p.a) for all benefits 13.17%
Benefits increase rate (p.a) for communication/farewel] Benefits 9.5%,/4.70%
ﬁﬂ:‘ﬁmﬁb\
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3o.Junc 2023

21.65%
19.65%

13.60%
0.538%
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iy

iii)

The rate of mortality assumed for employees are those according to the Demagraphic and Health Survey (“DHS") of
Ethiopia a4 below;

Age Martality rate Maortality rate
Males Females
20 0.91% o.00%
25 0.30% 0.23%
o 0.36% 0.31%
35 o.41% 0.28%
40 0.52% 0.32%
45 0.45% 0.43%
5D 0.76% 0.44%
g 1.04% 0.86%
60 1.76% 1.60%

Post retirement mortality rates were assumed to follow KE01-03 mortality. Sample rates are provided below:

Ape Mortality rate Mortality rate i I.. kA
Mulex Females £ 5l “\ TP
&5 4.12% 2.48% / IS % aN
70 B.55% 4.30% f - il U T
78 13.51% 0.66% i Al
8o 20.85% 2B.95% ;
85 28.97% 11.74% i ;
bl 40.99% AO.aB% "
Withdrawal from Service
The withdrawal rates are belioved 1o be reasonably reprosentative of the Ethiaplan experience, The valuation assumed a
rate of withdrawal of 8.00% at the youngest ages falling with inereasing age to 0.50% at age 50. PP
L P
The sensitivity of the overall defined benefit liabilities to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as below: G guar o, '?-45 i
Impact on communication benefit obligation 1-'}?
s0.Junc 2024 o June 2023 B
Changein Impact of an increase Impact of a Impactof an  Impactofa . X
assumption decraage increase decrease
Birr'ooo Biit'noo Birr'ooo  Birr'ooo
N £
Discount rate 1% (117,642) (59.568) 69,360 . -lﬂﬁ‘:";r,ﬂ-:?f
Benafit Rate 1% 137.673 72,006 {60,502) ANEH
Mortality Rate 10% (9,086) 12,765 {13,003)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on changes in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant, Tn
practice, this I3 unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant actuarial assumptions the same methed, present value of the
defined benefit obligation caleulated with the projected unit eredit method at the end of the reporting period has been
applied as when caleulating the defined benefits liabilities recognised within the statement of financial position,

Profected define banefit obligati

The the effect of the defined benefit plans on the Enterprise’s future cash flows is summarised as below :

Projected benefit payments Birr'oon
Year ending 30 June 2025 51,077
Year ending 30 June 2026 58,614
Year encing 30 June zozy 67,814
Year ending 30 June 2028 76,954
Yenr ending 30 June 2029 48,121
Total projected benefits payments over 5 years 302,580

Rigks to the Enterprise In respect of the benefits are summarised and deseribed below:

Take-up risk: if the proportions of employees who will take up various parts of the benefits increases from eurrent
reported utilization, the cost to the Enterprise will Increase;

Inflation Risk: if costs of the benefits increase at a faster rate than that assumed inflation rate, the cost to the Enterprise
will Increage;
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Demaographie risk: if more employees retire than expected, the cost ta the Enterprise will increase;

Cashflow risk: similarly, if more employees retire than expected, the Enterprise will need to allocate additional
cashflows to pav for the benefits: and

Discount rate risk: if bond yields drop significantly from year to year, the liabilitles and costs will increase. This will
not impact the ultimate cost of the benefit but may adversely affect the Enterprise's statement of finanelal position in the
short term.
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19(a)

19(b)

19{c)

Contract liabilities, provisions, trade and other pavables

Note

a0 June 2024 3o June 2023

Birr'ooo

Birr'ooo

Contract linbilities

Contract liabilities 8,099,163 8,231,309
Contract liabilities relate mainly to unused airtime and ather revenues (connection, reconneetion and installation fees

recelved) where the Enterprise has not fulfilled perfomance obligations to customers,

Trade and other payables

Trade pavables

Foreign creditors 18,973,052 16,647,378

Local creditors 12,271,187 10,538,795

Mobile Money Payables 7,117,552 5,010,124
38,361,701 32,196,297

Other payables

Accural Payables 19,388,930 17,546,942

Other taxes 1,351,200 150,553

Retention Payable 1,219,333 1,841,502

Leave accrual 1,612,509 1,154,876

Deposits received 482,821 302,134

Sundry creditors 1,484, 860 443,947
25,530,743 _ 21,440,044
63,901,534 53,636,341

Provisions

Provision for legal expense 20,198 31,956

Provision for lease restoration costs 159,549 137,778

179,747 15,734

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at start of the year 159,734 98,068

Provision in the period 20,013 61,660

179,747 159,

Provisions relate to legal claims and restoration costs which are of uncertain timing or amount.

Balance at the end of the Period

o0 June 2024 30 Junc 2023

Birr'ooo Birr'ovoo
Current
Provision for lease restoration
Provision for legal expense 20,198 31,956
20,198 31,956
Non-Current
Provision for lease restoration 159,549 137,778
—_ 179,747 139,734

4
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20

21

=

23

Capital

The Enterprise Capital has been amended in 2021 by regulation No.480/2021. As per the amendment the enterprise paid
up eapital is ETB 100 billion which is paid in eash and in kind.

Legal reserve

The legal reserve is a statutory reserve, The legal reserve is aceumulated by transferring 5% of annual net profits to the
reserve until the amount reaches 20% of paid up capital,

Other reserves

Other reserves include remeasurement gaing and losses on employee defined benefit schemes arlsing from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, See further details in Mote 19,

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Birr'aoo Birr'ooo
At the beginning of the year 170,174 39,941
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit plans (186,390) 186,047
Deferred tax (liability)/asset on remeasurement gain or loss 55,919 (55,814
At the end of the year 39,697 170,174

Retained earnings

Restatement have been made on retalned earnings with a total amount of ETB 15,433,102 of which a long aged Customs
insurance and Freight(CIF) ETB 1,856,392, A long outstanding inventory due to systems integration problem 1,847,154, unit
price error during calculation of Net realizable value ETB 3,962,576, a net balance reduction effect of ETR 268,040
(3,962,576-1,850,392 -1,B47,154), the effect of change in inventory on Deferred asset 79,510 and for the fulfillment of paid

up capital stated on memorandum of association ETB 11,550,037,

T

o ey £ e
o :

o “’-h:'a', & : .

";' e L X &
B gad |
"i_v\. Ge B

: 3.9 b, % . .

=
.

a2



Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

24

Cash generated from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Dépreciation charge on right of use assets
Amortisation of intangible agsets

Depreciation charge of Investment Property
Amortisation of grants

Employee defined henefit Expense

Effect of Remneasurment on Right of use Asset
Effect of Remeasurment on Lease Liablity
Write (down) or writeback on inventory
Impairment of trade receivables

Gaing from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest income arising from investments

Interest income arising from fair valuation of staff loans

Interest expense
Net foreign exchange (gains) / losses

Changes in operating assets and lHabilities:
=Dacrease/ (Increase) i inventories

-Dacrenae/ (Increase) In trade receivables
-Decrease/ (Incrense) in other assets

Notes

1
12
13

13(a)
17
i8
12
iz

8
14(1)
B

WD D WD

15
14(h)
1g(a)

-Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets at amaortised cost

-Increase; (Decreasa) in defined benefit liabilities
-Increase/ (Decrease) in contract liabilities

-Inerease/ (Decrease) in grants arising from loans at below market interest rate
-Increase/ (Decrease) in grants arising from leasehold land

-Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions
-Increage/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables

s B
“a, “om Haad &

e CR 2
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18
19(a)

19(c)
19(h)

30 June 2024

Jo.June zoz3

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
== C ———
29,700,450 28,186,948
7,520,546 5785449
424,275 a81,706
403,420 Jaa.q10
4,305
a5 20
186,396 (186,047)
(282 392) (248,780)
270,244 176,588
{290,542) (1,363,664)
232,388 347,607
(124,513) {181,928)
{10,560) (30,446)
(47) (1,318)
745,750 775,202
2,149,584 2,017,374
(3.504,300) (7.326,084)
(2,964,4606) (590,875)
(1,591,438) (607,943)
4,553 27,453
147,526 150,419
(132,146) 1,262,510
(=) {z0)
(=1} {21}
20,013 01,6606
10,205,199 14,811,512
43,183,202 43,771,628




Ethio telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

25

25(a)

z5(h)

25(¢ )

i)

Related party transactions

Related parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in makin £ financial or operation declsions, or one otlier party controls
both.

The related parties for the Enterprise Include management board members and key management personnel,
Key management personnel are those persans having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the enterprise, directly or indirectly, ineluding any management hoard members,

In the normal course of business, & number of transactions are entered into with related parties i.e. staff,
management board members or companies associated with management board members. These inelude staff
loans and emplayment compensations. These are disclosed helow:

Loans te key management

The aggregate value of outstanding Interest free loan related to key management personnel are as follows. The
market rate used to discount the loan is 11.5%.The loans are secured by the key management's terminal
benefits. Management has assessed the attrition rate for permanent staff s being low. As sueh, the loss glven
default for staff loans is deemed to be low and consequently the expected credit losses as immaterial,

30 June 2024 30 June zozy
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
- a3

Loans to key management

Key management compensation

Key management has been determined to be the members of the management board and the executive
management af the Enterprise. The compensation paid or payable to key managetient is shawn below. Key
management also receive free communication benefits {mobile equipments and telecommunication services)
vehicle and monthly fuel coupon as per the Enterprise’s benefit policy. Sueh costs are axpensed within
employee benefit expenses i1 the statement of profit or loss,

joJune 2024 30Junc zozg

Birr'aoo Birr'ooo
Executive management's compensation 112,715 93,9487
3,260 1,750

Munagement board's remuneration

Employees
The average number of persons employed by the Enterprise during the period was as follows:

30 June zozq4 3o June 2023

Technician Team 7,396 6,751
Commereial Team 5,503 5,662
Support Team 4,844 4,763

16,742 17,176

The table below shows the number of employees, emoluments in the first quarter ended 30 June 2024 and
ware within the bands stated balow:

Jo.June 2024 30 June 2023

K ; .. - i =
a 488
16,738 16,688

10,000 - 30,000 i
30,001 - 50000

i 16,742 17,176

fd
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27

a8

2H{n)

=8(b)

28{c)

a9

Cantingent liabilities

The Enterprise is a party to numeraus legnl actions brought by different organizations and individuais arising
from its normal business aperations. The Enterprise conalders It to be prabable that some judgerments will not
be in its favour and should therefore recognise a provision in relation to these claina as disclosed under Note
a0,

The potential undizeounted amount of the total payments that the Enterprise could be required to make if there
wiis an adverse decislon related to the numerous legal actions is astimated to be approximataly Birr 47,230 (30
June 2033 Birr 59,814).

Launch of Mobile Money Operation

The Enterprize has started maobile money business, branded as “telebin® with the license number of NP5 P11
forfzom to provide digitalized financial services to ita customers, The servicos include cash In, essh out,
alrtime top up, cash transfer, fund raising, mobile remittance, merchant transaction pavments, cush deposit,

microeradit and various utility payments.

Evenis after reporting pericd

Except a5 disclosed below, there wara no signifieant avanis that occurred betwean 30 June 2024 and the date of
issue of these financial atatements,

Faraign Currency Policy Changa

The Federal Government of Ethiopia announeed the execution of the Macro economic Polley on 28.July 2024
by enacting implemeantation guideline directive No FXD/01/2024 effective on 2g July 2024,

The directiva ravokes differant restrictions an foreipn curréney management such sz, But nat limited 1o,
cesgation of NBE's authority to determine the daily forex rate against ETB, allowing the opening of bank

aceounis denominated in foreign currency in the country by any rasidents, end enterprise, unrestricted use of
own [oreign currency, buying and selling forelgn currency from open market with a competitive exchange rate

and 50 on.

The adoption of tha policy and the enactment of the directive have pros and cong to Eilio Teleeom's Share
Company current and fortheoming daily operstions since the enterprise has foreign currency denominated

Government plans to s¢ll stake in Ethio Telecom

The Ethiopian Investment Holdings (EIH) plans to sell a 10% stake to the public

The Enterprise Naming change

In nccordance with Article 6(1) of the public enterprises privatization Proclamation Ne.1206/2020 the
anterprise is renamed as Ethiotelecom Share company on July 1, 2024,

Daie of Authorization

The finaneial statements on pages 11 to 55 wers authorised for issue by Chief Excutive Officer on 16 August
2024
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Section C

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June
2023
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Management Board

H.E Ambassador Girma Biru
H.E Dr Evob Tekalign

Ato Yodahe Arayasilassic
Ata Worku Gachena

Ato Muluneh Desalegn

Ato Samual Legesse

Ato Eassahun Sehoka

LExecutive management

W/t Frehiwot Tamiru

Ato Asseged Avele Wendimbun
Ato Mesay Woubshet Bekele
Ato Teressa Belete Gudeta

Ato Said Aragaw Ahmed

Ato Mahdi Jemal Shikur

Ato Lemma Tesemma Yimere
Ato Tsegaye Emanuel Mekael
Ato Endale Asrat Asfaw

W/ro Beletu Delamo Dindamo
Ato Solomon Abora Molla

Ato Mohammed Haji Abdulahi
Ato Tewodros H/meskel

Ato Tesfaye Yemane Jembere

Ato Tesfaye Tadesse Woldesemayat

Ato Tarlku Demissie Gebre
Ato Chalew Demlie Anteneh
Alo Ayele Adugna Amanu
Ato Aynalem Albene Ayele
Ato Tilahnu Negash Guta
Ato Zerihun Chekol Ejigu
Ato Abebe Ambaw Aredo
Ata Bruk Adhana Haile

Independent auditor

Audit Serviees Corporation
Addi= Ababa
Ethiapia

Corporate office

Ethio telecom headquarters
Churchill Road

PO, Box 1047
Addis Ababa, Ethiopla

Tel. +251115515700
with: www.athiotelecom,et

Principal banker
Commercial Bank of Ethiopia

Addis Ababa Branch
Addis Abaha, Ethiopia

Chairperson Appointed o3 February zozo
Mumber Appointed 03 February 2020
Member Appointed 03 February 2020
Member Appointed a3 February zozo
Member Appointed 04 February 2020
Member Appointed a3 February 2020
Member Appointed o3 February zozo

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Finance Officer

Chief Communiecations Officer

Chief Customer Serviees Officer

Chicf Marketing Officer

Chief Strategic Flanning and Program Management Officer
Chief Legal Officer

Chief Information Security Officer

Chief Information System Officer

Chief Supply Chain Officer

Customer Experience and Quality Management
Chief Sales Officer

Chief Network Officer

Chief Security Officer

Chief Metwork Infrastructure Officer

Chief Technology Officer

Chief Wireless Network Officer

Chief Telecom Excellence Academy Officer
Chief Fleat and Facilities Officer

Chief Human Resouirces Officer

A/Chiel Internal Audit Officer

Chief Service Operation Center Officer
Chief Mabile Money Business Officer
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The management board members submit their report together with the financial statements for the period
ended 30 June 2023 to Ethiepian Investment Holdings (EIH).

Incorporation and address

Ethio telecom was established as an autonomous public enterprise in November 2010, Tt assumed the rights
and obligations of the former Ethiopian Telecommunieation Corporation with effect from 29 November 2010,
The Enterprise is governed by public enterprises Proclamation No. 25/1092.

The Enterprise's address is as below

Ethio telecom headquarters
Churehill Road

P.O. Box 1047

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

Tel. +251115515700

web: www.ethiotelecom.et

Principal activities
The Enterprise's principal activity is to provide a comprehensive range of integrated telecommunication
services including voice and data (both mobile and fixed), SMS |, internet solutions and Finanacial Service

(Telebirr) to its wide range of subscribers,

Results
The Enterprise's results for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out on page 11, The profit for the year has been

transferred to retained earnings. The summarised results are presented below.

j3oJune zo23 30 June zoz=z

Birr' 000 Birr'ooo
Revenue from contracts with customers 71,525,903 59,448,361
Profit before income tax 28,186,778 17,833,003
Income tax charge 10,158,76 8,834,321
Net praofit / (loss) for the year 18,028,014 8,009 582
Other comprehensive income / (loss) net of taxes 130,233 64,103

18,158,247 9,063,685

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Management Board
The management board members who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on

page 3. E )
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In accordance with the Financial Reporting Proclamation (No. 847/2014), the Accounting and Auditing
Board of Ethiopia (AABE) has directed the Enterprise to prepare financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

The Enterprise’s management board is responsible for ensuring proper books of accounts are kept.

To enable the management board to meet this responsibility, the management board and executive
management implement systems of internal control, accounting and information systems aimed at
providing reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and the risk of error, fraud or loss is reduced
in a cost-effective manner. These controls, contained in established policies and procedures, include the
proper delegation of responsibilities and authorities within a clearly defined framewark, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties,

Nothing has come to the attention of the management board to indicate that the Enterprise will not
remain a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement,

Signed on behalf of the management board by:

/. 7
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H.E Ambagiador @irma Biru ’{
Managenfent Board Chairperson T &7 ¢ N\
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Office of the Federal Auditor General

Audit Service Corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ethio-Telecom (the Enterprise),
which comprise the statement of finaneial position as at 30 June 2023, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the ycar then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Enterprise as at 30 June 2023 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRSs).
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Enterprise
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Eihics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
10 our audit of the financial statements in Ethiopia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue

A risk is that accounting principles for revenue recognition may be subject to differing
interpretations. There may be a risk that management is inflating income by improperly
recognizing revenue related to agreements with terms that preclude revenue recognition or by
recording services before they are rendered or invoicing before products are delivered. In our
response to these risks, we made a sclection of transactions from source records and tested the
completeness of the source records by ensuring their numerical sequence, We checked that data
was input only once and was subject to validation. We selected a sample of individual
transactions to determine the propriety of their recognition during the year, We scanned the
revenue records to check whether there was any duplication of document numbers or gaps in the
sequence of document numbers to identify documents cancelled, if any. We judgmentally
selected a number of transactions each before and after the closing date to test the cut off
procedures and controls. We determined that the accounting policies and methods of revenue
recognition were appropriate and were applied consistently. Our testing did not identify major
weaknesses in the design and operation of controls that would have required us to expand the
nature or scope of our planned detailed test work. Overall, we found noe concerns in respect to

the recording of revenue at appropriate values.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged witlh Governance Jor the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Enterprise’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Enterprise or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Y o] f{."llll . ‘I'.I ! =\
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements (continued)

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversceing the Enterprise’s [inancial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Enterprise’s internal control.

e LEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Enterprise’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Enterprise to cease to

continue as a going concern.

e LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance reparding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Woizero

T

Alganesh Araya. T



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF

ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on Other Matter

Additional Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the additional information. The additional information comprises
the information included in the Management Board and Executive Management, in the report of
the Management Board, and in the statement of Management Board's responsibilities, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
additional information and, in so doing, consider whether the additional information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work that we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this additional information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw atlention to Note 14(c) of the financial statements which describes the receivable from
MoF for Paid-up Capital fulfilment as debtor to the Corporation. Our opinion is not qualified in

respect to this matter,
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30Jdune 2023 30 June 2ozz

Notes Birr'ooo Birr'oon
Revenue from contracts with customers 5 71,525,093 59,448,361
Direet costs 6(a) (11,318,736) (9,749,007)
Operating expenses 6(b) (27.699,085) (20,872,135
Net impairment losses on finaneial agset 14 (347,607) 271,868
Other income (expense) B 5.460,102 2,315,166
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 47,619,767 31,414,253
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11 (5,785,449) {5,715,562)
Depreciation charge of right of use aszet 12 (383,7086) (342,402)
Amortization intangible assets 13 (323,310) (573,881)
Depreciation charge of Investment Property 13(a) (4,395)

(6,496,860) (6,631,845)

Operating profit 31,122,907 24,78z 408
Finance income g 31,764 82,4958
Finance costs 9 (2,967,803) (7,030,963)
Finance costs - net (2,936,129) (6,948,505)
Profit before income tax 28,186,778 17,833,003
Income tax (expense) / credit 10(a) (10,158,764) (8,834,321)

Profit after tax 13,4:23,015 Etggglﬁﬂn

Other eomprehensive income (OCI) net on income tax

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified into prafit or loss:

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on post employment banef; ts 19 186,047 91,576

obligations

Deferred tax (liability)/asset on remeasurement gain or loss 10(a) (55,814) (27.479)
130,233 64,103

Total comprehensive income for the year 1"9&3.“&2 9,063,685

The Notes on pages 15 to 54 are an integral part of these financial statements,




Ethio Telecom
Statement of finaneial position

For the year ended 30 June 2023

ASSETS

Non eurrent assets

Praperty, plant and equipment

Right of use assets

Intangible assets

Invesiment Fraperty

Other assets

Other financial asscts gt amortised sast
Deferrod tay Assets

Current assotg
Inventories

Other assuts

Trade recelvables

Other financial assats a1 amortised cost
Notes receivable ot amortised cost
Cash and cash ediiivalents

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

LIABRILITTES
Non-current Habilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Lease linbilities

Grants

Defined benefit labilitics

Current liabilitios
Borrowings

Contract Uabilities

Trade and other payables
Provigions

Lease liabilities

Grants

Défined benefit liabilitjns
Dividend payable
Current income tax

Total liahilites

Equity attributable to owners
Capital

Retained earnings

Lagal resorve

Other reserves

Total equity
Total equity and liabilities

The Notes an pages 15 10 54 are an integral part of these financial stite

Notes

11

iz

13
13(a)
14(a)
14(e}
10(d)

15
14(a)
14(b)
14(c)
16(a)

17

18
2o(e)
iz
3
19

18
zo(a)
2a(b)
20(c)

1z

25(b)
10 (¢)

21
25
23
24

30 June aozg

30 June zoza

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
50,924,449 a8,857, 4as
1,207,765 961,266
L,293,718 1,608,350
213,686
310 174
7,101,156 7,101,635
3,576,830 3,931,220
64,317,084 53,460,464
14,998, 876 6,308,208
2,974,273 2,366,469
6,773,369 6,530,101
92,983,778 92,510,752
3 650,540
33:544,502 28,101,157
150,774,888 136,557,247
2:5.021:'-'.172 186,017,711
16,997,715 20,576,144
127,778 84,206
647,210 519,662
497 514
E 597441 640,151
18,300,641 21,820,771
Si1z,627 6,702,921
8,231,300 6,068,799
53,636,335 38,824,825
31,956 13,772
341,037 312,233
23 43
76,288 69,206
2,304,066 4,804,066
7,555|32:| ?.046‘1!2
77,079,023 65,641,900
895,379,674 87,462,761

100,000,000

100,000,000

17,241,702 115,086
2,301,324 1,399,923
170,174 a9,941
119,713,200 101,554,050
2 JEIEEE‘B?R

ments,

-

184g, 17,711
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Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26
Interest income received 9
Interest expense paid 1Bakh,12
Income tax paid 10

Arrear tax paid
Net eash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Sale of placements with finaneial institutions 16
Settlement of Treasury Note receivable from MoF 16
Purchase of intangible assets 13
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 11,18h

Payment for right of use asscts
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowings 8
Principal elements of lease payments 12
Payment to Minstry of Finance

Net eash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities

Net increase/{decrense) in ensh and eash equivaléents

Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year 17
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivale 17

Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year 17

so0June 2023 30 June 2022

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo

43,771,628 44,665,627

30,986 75,218
(1,042,711) (577.301)
(10,560,943) (7,932,368)
(1,458,504)

32,198,061 34,772,581

400,000

650,000

(8,678) (147,360)
(17,895,120) (11,423,007)
(6,324) (8,356)

187,162 148,970

{17,072,060) (11,029,753)

(6,610,985) (8,283,127)
(195,338) (317,421
(2,500,000) (500,000)

(9,506,323) (9,100,548)

S,GIQIGIB 1.&5&”-'23'3

28,191,157 15,194,080
(266,244) (1,645,204)

33,544,592 28,191,157

The Notes on pages 15 to 54 are an integral part of these financial statements,



General Information

Ethio telscom ("the Enterprise”) was established as an autenomoiis public Enterprise by the council of ministers
regulition No.197/2010 in November 2010, 1t assumed the rights and obligations of the former Ethlopian
Telecommunication Corporation with effect from 29 November 2010 The Enterprise is governed by Public
Enterprises Proclamation Mo, 25/1992.

The Enterprise’s nddress is as helow

Ethio telecom headquarters
Churchill Road

PO, Box 1047

Addia Ababa, Ethiopia

Tul. 4251115515700

webh: www sthiolelecom.ct

The Enterprise’s principal activity is to provide a comprehensive range of integrated telecommunication services
including voice and data (both mobile and fixed), SMS , internet solutions and Mobile Maney operation o its
wide range of subscribers.

Bignificant accounting policles

Introduction to slgnificant aceounting policies

The signifieant accounting policies applied in the preparation of thess finaneial statements are &t out below,
These policies hove bien conalstently applied ta all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basls of proparation

“The finaneial statements for the period ended 30 June 2023 have been prepared in accordunce with Interational
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("LASB").

“The financial statements comprise the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statemont
af financial position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial
statements.

The measurement basis used is the historical cost busls except whers otherwise stated in the accounting palicies .
Under the historical eost basis, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid of the falr value
of the consideration given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition. Liabilitles are recorded ot the amount of
proceeds received in exchange for the obligation or, in some eases, ot the amounts of cash or cash equivalents
expected to be paid to satisfy the labllity in the normal eourse of business.

For those nssets and liabllitles measured at fair value, fair value is the prics that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Enterprise uses market observable data as far as
possible, If the fair value of an asset or a lability is not directly observable, it {s estimated by the Enterpriss using
valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and mininiise the use of unobservable
inputs (g, by use of the market comparable approach that reflects recant transaction prices for similar items or
discounted cash flow analysis). Inputs used are conslstent with the characteristics of the nsset / liability that
market participants would take into aceount.

Fair values are categorised into three levels of fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to the
measurements aré ahservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

Level 1 fair value measurements are derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
asnats or Uabilities.

Level 2 = fair value measurements are derived from inputs other than quoted prices used in Level 1 that are
abservable for the assets or liabilities, ither dirsctly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived fram prices),

Level 4 — fair values measurements are derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for angits or
linbilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

The preparation of financial statements in eonformity with TFRS requires the use of certain eritical accounting
estimates, It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Enterprisc's
accounting policies, Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial Matements in the
period the assumptions changed, The areas involving & higher degree of judgment or complexity, ar areas whare
assumptions and estimates are slgnificant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Noteg.
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2.1
z.d(i)

z.d(ii)

z.e(i)

Going concern

The financial statemints have been preparad on a going coneern basts. Nothing has come 1o the attention af the
management board to indicate that the Enterprise will nat ramain a going concorn for at least twelve months from
the date of approval of these financlal statements far issue.

Changes in aceounting policies and disclosures
New Standards, amendments, interpretations not yet offective but earlier sdopted by the

There are no new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations that are not mandatory for the
period ending 30 June 2023 but have beon early adopted by the Enterprisn

New Standards, smendments, Interpretations not yet offective and not early adopted by the
Enterprise
Theta are no standards, amand ments, imterpretations that are not yet effoctive and that would be expected (o have
A material impact on the Enterprise in the eurrent ar future reporting periods and on foreseiable future
transsctions except IFRS 51 Goneral Requirment for Disclosure of Sustainablity related financial information and
IFRS 52 Sustainablity Disclosure standard Climate telated information Diselosures for which an efiterprise is
expected to apply these standards on or after January 1, 2024 (Effective date)

Forelgn eurrency translation

Functional and Presentation Curreney

Items included in the financdal statements are measured using the ey rrency of the primary economie environment
ich

in which the Enterprise operates ('the Fuictional Currency'), Both the Functional Currency and Presentation
Currency of the Entorprise is the Lthlopian Birr (Birr) rounded to the nearest thousand (Rirr ‘ooa).

2.e.(ii) Transactions and balances

Forsign currency transactions are translated into the Functional Currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transsctions. Foreign excliange gains and losses resulting from the settlemant of foreign currency

currencies other than the Enterprise’s functional currency are recognised in profit or loss within other
(lozs)/ineome, Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated using the closing rate as at the
reporting date.
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RII;DSIII“HH of revenue from enntracis with customers

Revenue Is measured based on the cosideration specifled in » contraet with a customer and exclides amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, Revenue s recagnised to depiet the transfor of goods/survices to customers in
an amount that refleets the consideration that the Enterprise is entitled 1o,

The Entarprise principally generates revenue from providing telecommunication services, such as noeess to the
network, airtime usage, messaging intornet servicas + Cloud Solution service Infrastucture rent (Collocation) and
sales of mobile devices as well as from Mohile monuy services. Products and services may be sold separately or In
bundled packages. The typical fverage term of o contraet for the products and services ranges from 24 months to
72 montha.

For bundled packages, the Enterprise accounts for individual products and services separately if they are distinel
Le. il s produet or service is separately identifinble from other fiems in the bundled package and if & customer can

Enterprise sells the mobile devices, extended warranty and telecommunieation serviees, For items that are not
sold soparately, th Enterpriso estimates stand-alone solling prices using the adjusted muorket sssessmont
approach.

The Enterprise typleally satisfies its performance obligations over time with the exeeption of the sale of devicas
which oceurs st a polnt in time. The nature of its porformance obligations is service arising from provisions of
voice, data and 8MS . The Enterprise uses the output method to Tecognise revenue from contracts with customers
85 this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods or services to its customers,

The Enterprise has applied eustomer churn rates which rapresent the average life a customer stays connected an
its mabile, fixed line and datn servieas, This typieally ranges bitwasn 24 to 72 months. The Enterprises uses
average customer life in aecounting for revenue from upfront and CAF commisions, connection, installation,
reconnection services over Hme.

Contract aequisition costa relates to eustomer applieations commissions and dealers upfront esmmissions settled
in advance. Contraet liabilities #alate mainly to unused airtime and other revenue {con nection, reconnection and
installation fees received) where the Enturprise has not fulfilled perfomance obligations to custemers,

The Enterprise derives revenue from the tranafer of goods and services over time and at & point in time in the
following major product lines:
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Revenue recognised over time

Froducts and services

Nature

Voice revenue

This revenue nrises from outgoing domestic and internationsl voice calls
ineluding premium rate ealls gnd directory enquires,

SME/MME revenue

This revenus arises from outgaing domestic and international SME {Short
Messige Servies) and MMS {Multimedia Mussage Service) Ineluding hulk
SMS serviens,

Internat revishue

Internet protacol (IF) service relates 1o the flow of data acrass the Intorner,
IP Traffic is also commonly referred to as web traffic. This includes VAT
{Vary Small Aperture Terminal) rental services,

Internet revenus arises from narrowband and broadband internet serviees
ineluding mebile data internet.

. 0
Roaming revenus

Roaming service enables subseribers (o automatieally make and reeeive
voice calls, send and recelve SMS and to get mobile internet access and
other services whan travelling outside the goographieal coverage area of the
Enterprise via foreign country’s operator's network,

Subscriptions revenus

Subscription revenue arises from Arst Gme activation of & service such ag
sim-card bought by a subscriber, Tt is the amount paid by the subscriber ta
obtain a sim-card and/or subscribe for other services,

Interconnections revenue

Interconnection revenue anses from eonnection batween the Enterprise's
network infrastructure and those ewned by third parties,

Leased circuits revenus

Leased eircuft service enables customers, mainly multi-national
corparations and international organizations to extend the reach into key
overseas locations. It provides the means to establish eannectivity for|
Enterprise customers inte their premises worldwide.

Leased circuit revenue arises from International Private Leased Cireudt
(IPLC) facility with sepurs digital poini-te-point leased ling aurvice between
two intornational locations

Hybrid services revenue

Hybrid services enables a subscriber to nse voice, data and SMS services on
a SIM eard with both prepaid and postpaid paymunt faatures,

Hybrid services revenue arises from voice,data and SMS services on hyhrid
8IM account plan.

Infrastructure sharing revenue

Short eade revenue

Infrastructure sharing service revenue arising from renting of sites,
building , shelters, ground Bpaca, towers, masts, pawer supply, Eenerators,
UFS, poles, main/commercial power supply, air conditioner, transmission
capacity, switching reom colloeation, and ather servi like physieal

Short codes (also known as & ort numbers) are special telsphons num o5,
significantly shorter than full telephone numbers that can be uaed to
address SMS, MMS and volee.

Short ende revenue arises from SMS, MMS and Vaice services to three or

four diglt numbers subseribed by businesses,




2.f(ii) Hevenue recognised at a point in time

Products and services Nature
Dievices revenus Devices are ficed and mobile devices available for customers to buy from

the Enterprise such a2 handsets, mobile wifi, dongles which snable
customers lo aceess the Enterprise’s services, Dovices revenue arises from
gile of Mxed and mobile devices to customers,

Airtime credil service revenue Airlime credil survice (ACS) revenue relates to fees charged on euslomers Lo
access alrtime on credit, The enterprise offers this service in partnership
with an agent whe earna 20% of the fees charged, This Bo% fues earned by
ethio telecom are recognised as revenue at 4 point in time.

Financial Serviee Commission Financial Serviee Commission 1s arising from services Provided which
includes Cash in, Cash out, Airtime top up, various utility poyment, Cash
transfor, fund raising, moblle Remittance and merchant transaction
payments and micro loan services 1o ils customers.

Intcrest and similar Income and expense

For all the government bills measured ot nmortised cost interest income or expense is recorded using the effective
intersst rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly diseounis estimated future cash paymenta or receipts through the
axpeeted life of the finaneial inglrument or a shorter period, where apprapriate, to the net carrying amount af the
financial assel or fnancial labllity. The calculation takes into account all contractual termsa of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) and {ncludes any fess or ineremental costs that are directly
attributable to the inatriment and are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR], but not future eredit
lonsisa,

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial lability is adjusted if the Enterprisc revises its estimates of
payments or receipts, The adjusted earrying amount iz calculated based on the original EIR and the change o
carrying amount is recorded s 'interest and similar inceme’ for financial assets and interest and similar expense
for financial Habilities.

Once the meorded value of o financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an
impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Financinl Instruments
Financlal Assets
Classification

The Enterprise classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categorios:
* thase to be measured subsiqu ently at fair valug (either through OC] or through profit or loss), and
* those to be measured st amortised cogt,

The clussification depends on the enterprise's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows of the finanaial agget. The Enterprise business model s Juat hold 1o maturity,

Far assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will elther be recorded in profit or loss or GCL For investmants
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Enterprise has made an
irrevocable slection ut the time of injtal recognition to aceount for the equity investment at fair valus through
other comprehensive income {Fvocor),

The Enterprise reclassifies debi investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ure recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Enterprise
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial nssots ore derecognised when the rights o receive eush flows from
the finaneial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Enterprise has transferred substantially all the
riska and rewnrds of ownership,

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Enterprise measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the ease of a financial asset
not at falr value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss,

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt ingtruments depends on the Enterprise's business model for mannging the
financial assets and the cash flow characteristios of the financial asset,

The Enterprise classifies its debt instruments under amortised cost measurement category for nssets that are held
for vollection of contractual cash flows where those eash flows represent salely payments of prineipal and interest
are messured al amortised cost. Interast incomo from thise finnneial ansets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate methed, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised direetly in profit or loss
and presented in other gnins/(losses) together with forign exchange gaing and losses, Impalrment losses are
presented as separate line {tem in the statement of profit or lags,

Trade recefvables and other receivgbles

Trade recelvables are amounts due from custamers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 90 days and therefore are a1l classified a5 current. Trade
recuivables are recognised initlally at the mmount of consideration that is uneonditional, when they are recognisud
at fair value,

The Enterprise holds the trade receivables with the ebjective to eollect the contractuil cash flows and therefors
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Details about the Enterprise’s
impairment policies and the ealeulation of the loss allowance are provided in Note 4 to the financial statements,

Due to the short-term nature of the current recelvables, their earrying amount is eonsidered to bo o rensonable
approximation of thelr fair valye,

Other recelvablos generally arise from transactions outside the ysual aperating activities of the Enterprise,
I. :I II b
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at eall with financial institutions, other shart-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturitics of three months or less that are readlly convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject te almast zaro risk of chinges in value.

2:.h(li} Financial labilities
Borrowings

Borrawings for the Enterprise comprise of loans, notes payables, pramissery notes ond bank sverdrafis,
Borrowings are initially recognized at fale value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measiured al amortised cost. Any difference between the procesds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective intersst method. Fies
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction eosts of the loan to the extent that it s
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw dewn
aceuss, Ta the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn dawn, the
foe is capitalised 48 a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility ta which it
relates,

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract i
discharged, cancelled, expirod or otherwise extinguished The difference betwssn the carrylng amount of o
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and tha consideration pald, including
any non-cash assets transferred or Uabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance
cosla.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Enterprise prior to the end of financial
yuar which are unpaid. The smounts are unsceursd, Trade and other payables nre prasented as current lisbilitias
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at thelr fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost ,

2.11(iii) Impairment of inancial nssets

The Enterprise ansesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses assoclated with its debt instruments
earried at amortised cost. The impairment methadology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk,

For trade receivables, the Enterprise applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected lifitime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 4 for further details,

2.h{iv) Offsctting finaneial instrumenta

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position where
The Enterprise has o legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to setile
on a net basis o realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneausly,

Hl
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Froperty, plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and aecumulated impairment
lossus, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment if the recognition
criteria are met, When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required te be raplaced at ntervals,
the Enterprise recognises such pans as individual assets with specific useful lives and dupreciates them
aecordingly, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as (neurred,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised ns a separate asset, a4 appropriate,
atily when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will low to the Enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amoust of the replaced part is derecognised,

Dapreciation is caloulated using the straight-line methoe 16 alloeate thair cost leas Fesidial values over thelr
estimated useful lives, ax follows;

Asnwt class Muajor category Useful life in years Residual value %
Metwork Assets
Maobile natwork squipment 0 1.o%
Fixed network equipmant 10 1.0%
Transmission equipment 19 1.0%
IF nutwork i 1.0%
Power Equipment Power Equipmart 5-20 Lo%
Buildings Buildings 20 - 50 10,0%
Motor Vehicles Motor Vehicles 520 5.0%
Suervers Servers 5-7 0.5%
Spares Parts Spares Parts 520 2.0%
Other Equipment Furniture and fittings 5-12 0.5%
Other office squiment 4-10 1.0%

The Enterprise eommunces depreciation when the asset is available for use. Spare parts, standby squipment and
servicing equipment are recognised as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property,
plant and equipment,

Capital work-in-progress s not depreciated as thess assets are not yet available for use,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the nsset (caleulated us the difference between the net disposal proeseds and the carrying amount
of the asset) 2 ineluded in statement of profit or loss whan the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewsd at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Froperty, plant and equipment are reviewad for impairment whenever events or ehanges in circumatancas indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is rocognised for the amount by which the
assel's earrying amount exceeds its reeoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costa to sell and valus in uses,

Froperty, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for non-menetary nssets or o combination of monetary and
non-monetary assets are measured at fair value of the new asset, If the falr value eannot ba determined reliably,
then the exchanged asset is measured at the carrying amount of the asset givon up,

EH
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Right use af free hold land

The Enterprize has owned 5,608,567 meter square free land received from the government of Ethiopia. Since zo16
IFRS adoption the Enterprise diselosed that such free land hold has been alatud with nominal value ag permited
by the standard. During 3023 period thoar free hold land has been revalued and disclosed in the financial
statemunts. Their useful life are expected to be infinte and are not deprecinbla,

Investment Property

The Enterprise rented different buildings to lessees that will be catagorized as an operating lease on different
terms and the detail lists and their revanua are disclosed undar Note 8 and 13 (a). The property stated at eost and
depreciated using stright line method,

Intangible nasets

Intangible assuts acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carrived st cont lags any aceumulated amortisation and secumulated impairment losses, if any,
Internally genorated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure s reflectod in statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is inourred .

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the nmortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life aro reviewed at least st vach financial year-ond, Changes in the expected
useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the nsset, ore
accounted for by changing the amortisation perlod or mathadology, as appropriate, which are then treated ax
changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expenses on Intangible assets with finite lives is presented s o
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss,

Amortisation for intangible assets with definite useful lives is ealeulated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost less resldual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asgel class Useful life in years
Network licensos 6-8

Softwares 6-8

i) Netwaork licenses

Suparstely acquired netwark licences are shown at historical cost. Licenees acquired in a business eombination ars
recognided at fair value at the aequisition date. Licences have o finite useful life and are carred at cost less
aczumulated amortisation, Amortisation is ealeulated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licences over their estimated usefu] lives.

Teleeommunication license fees are capitalised at cost and amortsed over the period of the license using the
straight-line method from commencemant of the service of the network,

Netwark licences are reviowsd for impairment whenever events or changes In cireumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the azsat's
earrying amount excesds its recoverable amount

i) Softwares

Softwares comprises softwares purchased from third parties as wall as the cost of internally diviloped software.
Boftware licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to nequire and bring into use the specific
software. Software integral to an item of hardwars equipment ia elassified as property, plant and equipment,

Costs associnted with malntaining software programmes are recognised as an expense ns incurred,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in elreumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes [n clreumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the smount by which the asset’s carrving amount
exceeds its recovernble amount.

]



Leases
The Enterpise as o lessee

The Enterprise leases various offices, warehouses, retuil shops, equipment and vehicles, Rental contracts ire
typically made for fixed periods of 6 months to 15 years but may have extension/termination options. The
extenstion options range betwesh § years to 10 Yoars,

Contracts may contain both lease and nen-lease components, The Enterprise alloestos the consideration in the
contract 1o the lease and non-lease components based on thelr relative stand-slone prices. However, for leases of
rual estate for which the Enterprise is a lussee, it has electod not to separate lease and non-lease esmponents and
Instead accounts for these as a single lease companent,

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain & wide range of differont terms and conditions, The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased pssets that are held

by the lessor.
Lease liabilities

Lease linbilities include the net present value of the fol lowing lease paymants:

i} fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivabie

li)  variable lease payment that are based on an index or & rats, initially measured uging the index or rate as at
the commeneemant date

iii) amounts expected to be payable by the Enterprise under residual value guarantees

iv) the exercise price of a purchase aption if the Enterprise is rensonably certain to exerclse that aption, and

¥) payments of penalties for terminating the Jease, if the leass term reflects the Enterprise exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the ease for leases In the Enterprise, the lessea’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds neeessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar sconomic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions. The discounting rate applied by the Enterprise is 10% p.a which is assumed 1o bo 8 representative af
the Enterprise's incremental borrowing rate.

Lense payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finanee cost s charged to profit or loss over
the lease period 50 45 to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for

each period.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all lenses of low-value asanls are
recognised on o straight-line basis as an expenss in profit or loss. Short-term lanses are leages with a lsase term of
12 months or less without & purchase option. Low-valun assets comprise equipmant and small ftema of office

furnitura,

Right of use asset

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

i) the amount of the initial measursment of lease linbility

if) any lease payments made at o before the commeneement date lass any lease incentives recelved
iii) any initial direct costs, and

iv) restoration costs,

Restorations costs relate to eatimate of costs to be incurred by the lesses in dismantling and remaoving the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease. The provislon for the restoration costs ia rucognised as o
separate lability from lease labilities,

Right-of-use assets are generally deprociated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on &
straight-line basis. If the Enterprise is reasonably certain to exercise & purehase option, the right-of-use asset {s
depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life. The Enterprise applies LAS 36 - Impairment of non-current
assels on the right-of-use asset the same way as in property, plant and equipment,
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Lease term - extension and termination options

Lease paymonts to be made under reasonably eertain extension options are also included in the measurement of
the linbility. In determining, the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension aption, or not exereiss o termination option, Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only Ineluded in the lease term i the lease is feasonably cortaln to be
extonded (or not terminated),

Reassessment of lease terms and lease modifications that are not accounted for 6z o separate lease

When the Enterprise reassoases the terms of any lease (Le. it re-assesses the probability of exercising an extension
ar termination aption) or madifies the terms of  luase without Inerousing the scope of the lease or where the
increased scope is not commensurate with the stand-alene price, it odfusts the carrying amount of the lease
lability ta reflect the payments to be made over the revised term, which are discounted at the applicable rate at
the date of reassessment or modifieation, The carrying amount of lease lability is similarly revised when the
variable sloment of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is rovised,

For reasseasments to the lesse terms, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right of use
asset, with the rovised carrying amount being depreciated over the revised lease term. However, if the carrying
amount of the right of uso sxset is reduced ta zoro any further reduction in the measurement of the lease linbility i
recognised in profit or loss.

For lease modifications that are not nccounted for as a separate lease, an equivalent adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right of use asset, with the revised carrying amount baing deprecioted over the revised
lease term. However, for lease modifications that decrease the seopi of the lease the carrying amount of the right
of use asact is ducreased to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, with any resulting difference being
ricognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease,

Lease modifications that are accounted for as a separate lease

When the Enterprise modifies the terms of a lease resulting in an increase in acaps and the consideration for the
leasn increases by an amount commensurate with a stand-alane prico for the increase in scaope, the Enterprise
accounts for these modifications sx & separate new leass, This nccounting trestment equally applies to leases
which the Enterrise alected the short-term lease axemption and the leases term L5 subsaquently modified.

Residual value guarantess

The Enterprise initially estimates and recognises amounts expected to be payable under rasidual value Fuarantees
us part of the lease labllity. At the end of each reporting period, the expected residual values are Feviewsd to
ruflect actual residual values achieved on comparable assets and expectations about future prices,

Short term lease and low value assers

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a stralght-line
busis ax an expense in profit or loss. Short-term loases are leases with & lease term of 12 months or less without o
purchase option, Low-value assets eomprise [T equipment ane small items of offies furniture,

The Enterpise oz o lessor

Whan the Enterprise acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement each lease is a finance lease or an
onerating liise,

To classify each lease, the Enterprise makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers to the Jassee
substantially all risks and rewards of ewnership incidental ta the ownership of the undarlying asset. If this ls the
casg, the lease is o finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease, As part of this ngsessmant, the
Enterprise considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for o major part of the economic life of the
asgel,

If an arrangement containg lease and non-lease components, the Enterprise applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideralion in the contract, The Enterprise recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as
incame on o straight-line basis over the lease torm as part of other ineome, -
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Inventories

Inventories eonsist of handsets, 8IM cards, scrateh eards, modems, dongles and other appasitis required for
fistwork connectivity. Network maintenanece apares that do not mast criteria for capitalisation are included as part
of Invenlares,

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisoble valug, Cost iz determined by the weighted average
method. The cost of inventories comprises purchase price and other ineidental costs. Net realisable value ls the
estimate of the selling price and other incidental costs.

Employee benefits
Short-term abligations

Liabilitles for wages and salarles, including non-manetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the emplayees render the
reloted service arv recognised in respoct of employees' servicss up to the end of the reporting peried and are
meagured at the smounts expected to be paid when the Habilities are sottled, Non monetary benefits include
handsets, gifta/rewards, medical and communication benefits and cars for management staff, The labilitdes are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the statement of financial position.

Bonus plans
The Enterprise recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, The Enterprise recognises o provision where
contractually obliged or where there (s 8 past practics that has ereated s constructive obligation,

Other long-term emplayee bengfit abligations

Other long term obligation that are not expected to be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are measured as the present value of expected future payments
to be made in respect of services provided by smployess up to the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is glven to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employes
departures and periods of serviee, Expected future payments are discounted using market yiclds at the end of the
reporting period of high-quality corporate bands with terms and eurrencies that match, as elaiely ns possible, the
estimated future cash outflows, Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recopnised in profit or logs,

The obligations are presented as eurrent liabilities in the statement of financial position if the Enterprise does not
Litve an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of
when the netual settlement is expected ta secur,

Post-employment obligations

The Enterprise operates various post-smployment schemes, ineluding defined contribution pension plans and
defined benefit post-employment medical plans, Refer to Note 19 for furthar details,

The Hability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined banefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation ix
caloulated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future eash
outflows using interest fates of zoro-coupon government bond yield curves.

The interest cost is ealeulated by applylng the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit abligation,
This cost Is included as employee defined contribution expense in operating eXpenses.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial sssumptions are
recognised in the peried in which they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income,

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments oF eurtallments are
recognised immedintely in profit or loss as past servies eosts,

For defined contribution plans, the Enterprise pays contributions to publicly administered pension Insirance
plans an a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Enterprise has no further paymint obligations once the

contributions have beon paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due,
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that o cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available, :
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Other post-employment obligations

The Enterprise provides eommunication benofits, farewell benefits, funeral benefits, medical benefits and
Bereavoment Benefit to their retirees as below.

- Communication benefits
The Enterprise provides communication bonefits for iis rutiring employees, The communication benefit js
dependant on the retiring employes's position as at the time of retiroment.

- Faruwaell benefits
Upon retirement, eatly retirement or voluntary retirement, the Enterprise pays an employee o manetary award of
Ethioplan Birr 20,000, Additionally, the Enterprise arranges n farewell function and ithe retiring employes
receivis an Enterprise pin,

= Funeral benefits
In the event of the death of the employee, the surviving family of the employee is entitled to 3 months' salary,
subject 1o a minimum of Ethiopian Birr of 15,000. An additional cash banefit of Ethiopian Mirr of 20,000 i
payable in respoct of the Chiel Operating Officor and Chief Exgeutive Offleer on the death of a first level family
membar,

- Gratulty benefits
The gratuity benefits are based on the severance bensfits as autlined by the Ethiopian Labeur Proclamation
a77/2003, Upon retirement of an employee who haa been in service for more than 5 years, or death in service if
the emplayes has between 5 ta 10 years in service, the Enterprise pays out 30 days of salary for the first year of
aervice and 10 days of salary for each year of serviee aftor the first yeir, to n maximum of one year's salary,

= Post Retirement Madical Aid benefits
Upen retirement, early retirement or valuntary retifemaont, the Enterprise provides 100% local treatment and g5k
local medicing coverage the retirons for life available at ethio telecom clinics.

- Betrsavement Support Henstt
Ethio telecom formed & fund which is named as *ET Edir Assistance and suppart Assoclation through collecting
ETB 30 from the monthly salary of the voluntary employess, The purpose of the fund is to provide support and
asslstance to the survival family during the death of emplayen, In the event of the death of the emplayes, the
surviving family of the employes is entitled to get an amount which s equal to one third of the total monthly
contribution made by the members as at the event (death) happened. The benefit will be paid to the survival
family of the employes, weather the employee eontributed or not the amount to the Association fund a0 far,

The entitlement to these benefits is usually eonditional on the employes remaining in service up to retirement age
and the completion of 8 minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period
of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit pinzion plans.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or oredited to equity in other comprohensive income in the perlod In which they arlse. These obligations
are valued annually by independent qualified actuaries, Refer to Note 19 for details on the valuation techniques

and assumptions applied,
znliv) Termination benafits

Termination benefits are payables when employinent is terminated by the Enterprise befors the normal retiremeant
date, or when an employee nceepts voluntary redundincy in exchange for these benefits. The Enterprise
recognisea termination benafits at the earlier of the following dates: (x) when the Enterprise can ne longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the Enterprise recognises conts for n restructuring that is within
the scape of 1AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benafits, In the case af an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are mensured based on the number of employess expected ta
accept the offer. Benefits falling due mara than 12 months after the end of the reéparting period are discounted to

present value,

Ed
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Guvernment Eranis

Grants from the government are recognised at thir fair vitlue where there is a reasonable nssurance that the grant
will be received and the Enterpriss will comply with all attached conditions.

Oovarnment grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss aver the period necessury to
match them with the costs that they are intended 1o compensate,

Governmuont grants rolating to the purehase of propurty, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as grants and they are eredited to profit or loss on o straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
reluted assets,

The Enterprisc has received frechold land for business use from the Governmenl of the Fedoral Demeeratic
Republic of Ethiopia which is also the sele owner of the Enterprise. Nonsmonetary gevornment grants such as
frouhold land are recognised ns both an asset and capital contribution at a nominal smount.

The Enterprise aceounts for the benefit arising from below-market loans from government or governinent related
institutiona as government grants. Such loans arc recognised and measired in accordance with 1FRS 9 Financial
Instrumonts. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest is measured us the difference between the initial
earrying value of the lonn determined in accordance with IFRS g and the proceeds received,

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing eosts that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, constrietion or produstion of
i qualifying asset are copitalised during the perlod of ime that is required 1o eomplete and prepare the asset for it
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assots that neesssnrily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specifie borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets ix deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the periad in which they are ineurred,

Provisions

The Enterprise recognises provisions when all the following conditions are met;

- there ia a present obligation (legal er construetive) as o result of a past event;

= it is probable that an outflow of resourees embodying sconomie benefits will be raqquired to settle the obligation;
and

- & reliable estimate can be mada of the amaunt of the obligation.
Provisions ralated to legal claims, restoration €0als, service warranties and other similar ubligations of uncertain
timing or amount. Provisions are not recognised for future uperating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelthood that an outflow will be roquired in settlement is
determined by eonsidering the class of obligations as a whole, A provision is recognised even If the likelthood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be amall,

Provisions are measured at the Ppresunt value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is
8 pre-tax rate that reflects current market assussments of the Hme valus of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of ime Is recognised as interest expense,

The Enterprise nocounts for the costs associated with dismantling and removing network infrastructure asauls and
returning a network infrastructure site operated under i lease to (s original condition upon termination of the
network infrastructure site lanse in aceordance with TAS 16,

A restoration provision is recorded based on the best estimate of the average restoration costs (being the future
coats relating to dismantling and remaving property, plant and equipment and restoring sach site) multiplied by
the number of sites for which the Entarprise has a restoration ohligation, This is then diseounted to the prasent

vilue of the abligation.




Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current perod's taxable income based on
the applicablo income tax Fate for Ethiopla adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and lisbilities attributable 1o
temparary difforonces and to unused tax losses,

The eurrent income 1x churge is caleulated on the busis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted ar the
und of the reporting poriod i Eihiopia, where the Entérprise operates and Evnerates taxable incomg
{(Proclamation number 979/2016 - Federal Income Tax Preclamation dated fith July 2016 effoctive an ; July 2016
and Proclamation number 983/2016 - Fedora] Tax Administration dated =0 August 2014). Management
parindically svaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect La situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation,

Deferrod income tax

Daferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differcnees arising between the
tax bises of assets and liabilities and their earrying amounts in the financial statements, Deforred neome tax is
dotermined using tax rates (and lawz) that have beon enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reparting
Period and dre expeeted to apply when the related deforred Income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
linbility is setiled,

Deferred Lax nssets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses, Realised foreign currancy exchange losses related with capital expenditure
incurred during a year are dereciated for six year useful lifis,

Deferrod tax assets and linbilities are offset whan there in a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
linbilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority, Current tax assets and tax
labilities are offset where the Enterprise has legally enforeeable right to offust and intends sither to suttle on «
net basis, or ta realise the asset and settle the lability simultancously,

Current and deferred tax in recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to itema recognised in
other comprehensive income or direetly in aduity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, res pratively,
Critieal aceounting judgements and key sourees of estimation unoeriainty

The preparation of the Enterprise's financial statements Fiuires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and labili s, and the Enterprise's
disclosuras, ns wall as the diselosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outeomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or linhilities affected
in future periods,

As disclosed in Note 4, other disclosures relating to the Enterprise's exposure to fsks and uncertainties includes:
+ Capital management
» Financial risk management and palicies

In the process of o Pplying the Enterprise's aceounting policles, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant uffect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Ravenue recognition - allocating the transaction prive

The Enterprise enters into contracts with eustomers for the provision of telecommunication servicss . These
survices are normally sold individually but from time to time, thesa products are grouped together and sold 1o
eustomers as o bundle st o diseounted price.

Because such contracts inelude several performance obligations, the transaction price must be allocated to the
performance obligations on & relative stand-alone selling price hasis. Manngement estimates the stand-alone
solling prices at contract incaption based on observable prices of the good and or services likely to be provided and
the goods and or services tendered in similar vircumstances to similar eustomers, If o discount is granted, it iz
allocated to both performance abligntions based on thelr relutive stand-alone nolling prices,
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Kevenue recognition - average customer life

Management applies judgomont in estimating avorage oustomer life. Average estimated life of o customer is
dutermined as total gross eustomer disconnections in the period divided by the average total customers in the
period. The Enterprise receives payments of subscriptions for mobile, fixed line and data services for which
performance obligations are fulfilled over 3 years, & years and 2 years respectively for colloctions starting from
duly 01, 2022, The Enlerprises uses average customer life in accounting for revenue from uplront & CAF
commisions, eonneetion, installation, reconnection survices over time.

Leases - determining right of use and lease liability
Critieul judgements required in the application of IFRS 16 includes the following:

- Identifying whether o contraet (or part of  contract) includes & lease;

- Determining whother it is rensonably certain that an extension or termination option will be sxercised;
- Classification of lease agreaments (when the enterprise is a lessor);

= Determination of whether variable payments are in-substance fixed:

- Establishing whether thers are multiple leases in an arrangement;

= Datermining the stand-nlone selling prices of lease and non-lease eompanents,

- Determining the leasa tarm,

FProperty, plant and equipment

The depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment is derived using astimates of its expected useful Jife
and expeeted residual value, which are reviewed annually, Increaging an nsset's expected life or residual value
would result in o reduced depreciation charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Management détermines the useful lives and residual values for assets when they are acquired, based on
experience with similar assets and taking into account other relevant factors such as any expected changes in
technology, The depreciation rates used are sol out in Note 2i,

Post-employment bengfits

Management uses estimates when détermining the Enterprise’s Habilities and expenses arising for defined benefit
schemes. Management is required to estimate the future rates of inflation, salary increases, discount rates and
longevity of members, each of which may have a materlal impaet on the defined benefit obligations that are
recorded. Further details, including a sensltivity analysis, are included in Note 19 to the financial statements,

Impairment on financial assits

The loss allowanees for financial nssets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expeetad loss rates,
The Enterprise uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impalrment
calculation, based on the Enterprise's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are diselosed in Note 4 to the
financial statements.

Income tax and difierred tax osscts / Habifities

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Realised foraign currency exchange losses ineurred during a yesr
are carried forward for next five years and equally distributed as an expense for six year wseful life of the
capltalized assel, Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of defurred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tay

planning strategies.

Provizians and contingent Habilities

Management exerclses judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent
liahilities related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to negotiated settlement, mediation,
arbitration o gavernment regulation, a5 well as other contingent linbilities as disclosed under Note 28 1o the
financinl statements, Judgement is necessury to assess the likelihood that & pending claim will succeed, or o
liability will ariss, and estimates are required to determine the possible range of ony financial settlement, The
inherent uncertainty of such matters means that actual losses may materially differ from estimates,
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Financial risk management

Introducton

The Enterprise’s uctivities expose it 1o g variory of financial Haka: market risk (ine luding foreign exchangs Fsk and {nterest rag risk),
credit risk and lquidity risk, The Entorprise’s overal] risk management progrumme foeusos on the unprodietability of financisl
markets and seeks to minimise potenijal udvarse effecls on it finuncial performangs,

¥inaneial rsk management s carried out by the finnnce division under poliofes spproved by the managemant board. The
fanngament board provides written principles for evoral) risk managemeat, i well s waitten policios covering specific arens such a
farwign exchange risk, intorss rate risk, oredit risk and investment of excaas liguidity,

Categories of financial instruments

The Enterprige his the following finnncig) inatruments in the statement of fiinelal pasition s at the reporting date:

a0 June aoag 3o June 2oa3
NirF' o0 Hirr'ooo
Financial assets at amortived oo Nore
Chirrant
Trade receivablos 14(h) 6,771,360 530,101
Other fnanglal asscts st smortised cost 14(e) 02,484,770 92,810,752
Notes receivuble at aimortised cost 18{n) . 650,540
Cagh and cash equivalants 17 2 28,3
149,001,739 137,8Bg, 550
Non eurrent
Other financiil nssats 8t imortised cost 1a(c) 201,156 ERLIR T

119,90 E‘le w

Financial liabilitias ar amortised cost

CuiFrent

Horrawings i 8,212,627 8,702,521
Lanzé labilities 12 341,087 312,451
Contract liabilitins o) 8,231,900 b,980,75g
Foreign eroditors 20(ly) 106,647,378 14,602,002

Local creditors za(h) m,!jiﬂs 5,463,107
48,571,14 J4E39, 052

Non oureeni

Norrowings 18 16,927,715 20,576,144
Lensn linhility iz Eﬁ:m 1
17,574,925 095,80

1l
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4.2 Market risk

fi) Fargign exchange risk

The Enterprise is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various eurrency exposures, primasily, with reapect 1o tie US dollar,
Euru and Jupunase Yen. Forvign axchinge visk irises from futare eommereial trinsactions and recognised assets nnd Habilitlos,

Tlie Enterprise applies market forign exchange rutes with referenee to Mational Bank of Ethiopin, the financial institutions regulator,
Forelgn exchinge risk srisss when future commareial transactions or recognized wasets or liabilities are denominated in @ eurrency

thil is not the enterprise’s functional ou Teney.

The Enterprise’s exposurs to forign eurrency rivk st the and of the ruparting period, expresed in Ethiopian Birr currency units, wis
A8 follows: Exchamge rate as al Jun 30 2oz USD=Buying Kate 54,5043 Belling Raio 55 686z, EUR=Huying Rate 59.7043 Salling

Ratp 60.0gRy, JPY=Buying Kato 0,7785 Selling iate 86

Ao June 203y
UsD EUR JIY
Birr'uun Blrr'ooo Birr'ooo
Trada rocsivibles 3,528,276
Cagh and ensh equivalants 1,505,786
Trade paysbles 16,647,978)
Rorrowings (23,133,502} (7441}

3o June anzp
usi EUR JPY
Birr'ooo Birrtoon Birr'ooo
1,276,846 i -
R LR - -
{10,328,157) (97.068) -

(30,864,903) (1m,330)

If the lcal surranay (Ethiopian Birr) had weakened /atrengthonod by 10% against the major foreign eurrencios with 6l ather variablon
held canatant, the impact on pre-tax profit and retained sarnings would have as below]

USD/Birt exchange mte — Inerese 10% (2033 — 10%)
Euro/Birr exchange rile = incranss 10% (2002 = 10%)
JPY/Birr exchange rate - increase 10% (2022 - 10%)

USD/Birr exchunge rate — decreise 10% (Goa3— 10%)
Euri/Birr axchange rile = decroass 10% (2022 = 10%)
SV exchange rte - decrease 10% (2029- 10%)

{10} Prive risk

30 June 30 Junc
2e327] FLEEH
‘oo B
(1,336,459) (10,821, 586)
(12,199)
{8H1) {6Ha)
1,326,450 19.821,586
5 13,109
581 6Hz

The Enterprise does nat hold investments or sscurities that wauld be subject to price risk. The Enterpriss {s not exposed to price risk

(0} Interast rate Fisk

Inturest rate visk i the cisk that the value of u financisl Instrument will by affscted by chinges in market Intercat rates. The
Enterprise's exposura to Interest rate riak relatas primarily 1o borruwings at variable rites. Fixed rata horrowings oaly give rias io
interest rut risk if measured at fir valus, The Enterprise hus no financial assels o linbility measured at fair value at the reporting

duta, Maximum exposure to interst rate ek ire detuflod balow ;
HMota
Bormowings 18
The sensitivity analysis for Interest rate sk shows how changes in the

Ao June 2023 0 Juns angz
llﬁnnu Birr'ooo
23,140,942 27,979,008

fuir value or future cash fows of & Ananolal nstrument will

fuetuite bocause of ehanges in markat rates at the reporting dute. The following tibile demonstratas the sensitivity of changes in TR

ruta with all other variables hald canstant :

Effect on profit before tax with increase in interust rato of 1%
Effeet on prafit before tis with decreass in interest rate of 1%

30 Juna 3033 30 Juns aogg
Birr'ouo Birr'ooo
486,683 574,189
(486,983) (874,10g)
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4.1 Credit elsk

Eredit rink is e sk Uit 5 counter party will defuuli on ity contraciug) ubligationa resulting {n financlal Jox. The Enterprise iz
expoaed 10 eredit risk in respect of
Payment of trade recaivibles ng inveicas fall dus betwnen 30 and 9o days after bolng rajsed {Haie 14)
finnneial nzsets with banking institutions {Nore 17)

Eredit risk on trade recaivables i manugsd by ensuriig thai eredii s extanded (o “uslomers with an establiahed eredjf hisiory, The
eredit history s determined taking Into secount the finangig] POKITIOn, past exporience and other relevant factors, Credit js
managed by setting s credit i and eredit periad for euch Customer. The utilisation of the credit limits snd the credjp pariod s
monitered by minagemoni on rejular basis. Managemen muniges credit rink arising from it dealer traide debiofs by im poming
Runrantes rucjuifements,

Eredit riak on financial ussets with banking institutions (s Managed by dealing with inatitutions wigh #ood eredit ratings, The
Eniterprise’s dabt investmenty arn limitad to gevernment seciiriting (ssued by the Federal Domocratio Republic of Ethiopia,

Far these purpese dafault management hus made an assumption that default oocurs for recaivables invoices outstanding abova afo
diiys for all produrts,

The Entorprise’s recognize lifetims expacted lopg allowanes, The Lnterpriae groups its finuncla) uxsnts on the bisls of shared oredi;
risk characteristics, comprised of; Postpald, interconnect, roiming, leasnd snd daajer,

A financial assat 15 eredit-Impuired when one ar mafe svents that have n dotrimenta) Impact on tha estimated fugire ehali ows of the
finnnolal waant have oooupred, Bvidence that a finaneial sssel in credis fm Paired inalude abservabla data nboyt the fallowing svenis:

i) slgnificant financial difficulty of tha issuer or the borrower;

i) & brench of contract, such ps g dofault or past dua event;

1ii) the lender(x) of the horrower, for econoimic ar contrachusl reasons relating 1s the bisrrewsr's Anancial difficulty, having granted 1o
tha borrowsr & concoaslon(s) that the lenderta) would not othorwise conalder;

v)itis beooming probuble that the borrower will anter bankruptey or other fnancial reorganisation;

¥) tha disupposrance of an active tarkor for that financial gasct becaus of finuncial difficulties; or

vi} the purchiase or ariginution of u finggeial nsact at a deep disoount that reflocts the incurped eradit loxsgs,

The Enternrise's grom carrving amount of finangigl nasirts with exDosure ta eredii gk g the renorting dute fs 5 Tellonws:

TFully Impalrad
Performing over 360 days
Jodunie sosg Noto Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Cither financial aasots at amortised L] 14(0) 99,584,034
Tradn receivablas 14(ls) 6,773,300 8,075,626
Moles recaivable at Amoriand cosl 16(n) h
Cash und cash squivalents 17 ——dldddes
139,902, Hgj5 — 1075826
30 June gogs
Other financiul nasets ot amortjsed wnsl 14{a) 0,813,387 -
Trude receivales 14(ls) 6.510,101 2,720,019
Notes reeuivable at amorised cost 16(x) 650,540 %

Cash and cash squivalents 17 ELRETRY .
ﬁﬁ% — 738,089
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Fully performing assets represents counier parties thut ure paying tiele dues us thoy {al] due and are uperaling within thelr approved
eradit limits. Impaired finanolsl agsets represants contractual obligation that are overdue and/or have ssoeeded the appreved eredit

limits und arw fully provided for.

Crodit risk is managed by the Chiof Finance Officer who ix responsible for munaging and analyslng eredit risk for each new elient
bafore standitd paymant and delivery terma aro offered, For financial nxxats, the following credit risk madalling apylies:

The Enterprise considers the probability of default upan inital recognition of asset and whether thars has been a significant incraase
In eredit risk on an ongoing busis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether thare s 8 slgnificant increasa in oredii risk the
Entarprise compares the risk of s default oceurring on the asset 03 at the reporting date with e risk of dafault a2 at the date of inftia)
rmshilfun-d It canxidars avallable reasansble and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
ingorparaiod;

Actual or expected significant adverse changas in business, financial or sconomic conditions that ars expected Lo causo » significant
change to the horrower's ahility to meat itz abligations

Significant changes in the expected performanee and bohaviour of the deblor, including changes (s the paymant status of debtor in
the growj and ehanges in the operating resilts of the debior

The Enterprise docs not grade the eredit quality of recolvables, The utilisation of eredit limiis i in place and regularly monitored.

Magroceonomic infurmation {such us market intursst rates or growth rutes) ix Incorporated us part of the Internal Fiting model.
Regardlens of the analysis above,  significant inorease In eredit duk in prasumed if o debtor s mare than 30 days past due in making
u contractual payment. A default on 8 financial asset is when tha eounterparty fails to muke contractual piyments within 360 days of
whan they fall due.

Finanicial asuets nro writtan off when there is no masonable expectition of recavery, such s a deblar fuiling to engage in o repayment
plan with the Enterprise. The Enterprise categorises receivables for writs off when a debtor fails to make contractunl pryments
greater than 360 days paat dun, Where recelvables have boon written off, the Enterprise continues 1o engage in anforcament aetivity
10 attempt to meaver the receivable due. Whers recoveries are made, these are racognised i profit or loss,

Contract acquisition costs/dopoxits and prepayments/ prapaid benefil assets by nuturs are not subject to eredit risk and therefore not
subjeet o expacted oredit losses. Sundry dubtors include short term ndvances to staff which do nat buar credit gk, Expected eredit
lowsan huve been assessed and rocognised for for trade recoivables, Investment securition st amortised eost and caxh and cash

efjuivalents.
(1) Trade receivables

The Enterprise applies the IFRS § simplified approach to measuring expected crodit losses which wses » lifetime expected lom
ullawanca for ail trade recelvables. To measure the expeeted credit |osses, trade receivibles have bean grouped bused on shared credii
risk characteristics nnd the days past due. Thess catogories comprise of | postpuid, inturconneot, roaming , leased and dealer

The expectad loss rates are based an the payment profiles of sales over » pariod between 01 Octabar 2017 and 30 June 2033 and the
carrasponding historieal crodit losses experienced within thix period, The historicl loss rates are adjusted to refloct currant and
forward-looking information on maerceeonomic factors affeoting the ability of the cusiomers 1o gette the rucnivables, The Enterprise
has identified the GDP, foreign currency axchangs rate and the inflution rate to b the most relevant factars, and accordingly adjusts

the hixtarizal 1688 Filés based on wepooted changes in these factor,
On that buals, the loss allowanes was datermined as follows :

Faat due but Impaired
not impaired {Over 360
days)
30 Juna popy
Average probability of default (%) 10% 100%
Avarage loss given defuult (%) 76% LLES
S0 June 2ouy
Average probubility of dafauli (%) 13% 100%
Average lons given defiault (%) 7H% By

The loss ullownnea praviaion for tude recoivablos regonalles to the wpning loas allowanoe for thit provision as follows)

30 June 2023 3o Juns
poze
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Al BLart of year ) = n.?nﬂ,mp 4,001,040
lhiereise (ascranse) in =T =y
it oredit losses I 347,607 1,893 1201
expecied eradit lowas - oy vk
At this ond of the yeur O Baf 2728019
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Trude recalvabios are written off when thore (& no reasonable expecintion of Fecovery. Indicators that there [s no ressonable
axpectation of recovery inelude, smongst sthers, the fallure of & debtor 1o engiuge in & rupayment plan with the group, and a failurs o
make cuntractual payments for & period of greater than 360 days past dus, Impatment losses on trade receivables sre presented o
net impairment losses within operating profit, Subsequent recoveries of Amounts previously written off are oredited igainst the same
line hem,

{11} Debt investrnenis at amortised cost

Dbt Investmanis at amortised cosl comprises of investment in government honds and treasury bills and loans receivables.
Muanagoment congiders the investmaents io be low eredil Hak since thay hive a low risk of default and the [ssuer has i slrung capcity
to meel its contructual cash flow obligations in the nesr term. The luss allowanes provision fof investmenis si smortised cost
rueoncilas to the opening loss allowanca for that provision as folluws:

a0 JJune gogg 30 June
FIaa
Birroos Birroon
Moles recelvablo
Al atart of year {1q1,587) 8,333
Inoresse {decrense) in expacted oredit losses 1557 {19, H90)
At thet enid of the year - “ﬁ‘lﬁiﬂ

{iii) Deposits with financial instifutions

This comprise bank halances with local finaneial inxbututions, Commereial Bank of Ethinpda, Management considers the investmenta
to ba low oredit risk since they have n low risk of default and the issuer has o strong capacity Lo meet it contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. Tha loss allowance provision for depasiis with financial institutions reconciles (o the opening loss
allowanee for that provision as follows:

10 June 2023 30 June
anag

Birr'ooo Lirr'ono

Impairmant losses on Mnancial aeseis b sommarized below @

30 June aoag a0 June zoge
Kote Birr'ooo lirr'ooo
Impairment losses on trade recelvables 14(h) 4,005, 828 2,728,019
Impairmant lossns on notes receivable 16(0) . (141,557)
Impairment lodses on placemants with financial Instittions  16b) - =
Impuirmant loaess on deposits with financial instiations 17 . -
Total loss allowance under IFRS o 3,075,626 &, mHé, gha




Il tae ' eloen

Fodes b the Lonond stade ponie
Foe e venr ended 3o dahe 2009

4-4 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the sk that the Entarprise will nat ba able to meet [t Aaincial ohligations as they fall dus. Prudent liquidity risk
management includes maintaining sufficient cash balances, and the avalabllity of funding from an sdequate amount of commitied
erudit facllities, Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the finanes depariment milntains Nexdbility in funding by
maintiining availability undsr committed eredit lings.

Management porforma cash flow foreeasting and manitor rolliig forecasts of the Enterprise’s lquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficiant cash to meet s operational nesds while maintaining sefficient headroom on its undrswn committed borrowing facilities at
all times 0 that the Enterprisn doos not breach barrowing limits of covenants (whers applicable) on any of its horrowing facilitics.
The Enterprise's approach when managing liquidity 15 1o ensure, as far as possible, that 1t will slways have sufficient liguidity to meat
it liabilities when due, without incurring unaceeptable loases or risking damuge Lo the Enterprise's reputation.

The tably bolow analyses the Enterprise's undissounted finaneial Labilitios that will be settled on nat basls inte relevant maturity
groupings hased on the remalning pariod at the statement of financlal positien date to the contractual maturity data,

Lass than 1 Between 1 Over § yoara Total Carrying
year  mnd § years amount
Nirr'ooo Birr'oono Birrfooo Blrroon Blrr'ono
At 30 June 2023
Narrowings 5708601 17,436,741 304,006 23,440,339 R2,147,784
Farsigm creditors 16,647,978 16,647,978 16,647,378
Local ereditors 10,538,795 10,538,995 10,538,795
Contract linhilitian f231,309 ﬂ_ _3.2!_'.32&,
—ALIR6OH3  _17.4a6,74) - — 104,986 ] = HZE05,200
Al 30 Juna apaz)
Barrowings 218,041 814,031 13,001,411 26,733,484 &7,4&7y,005
Farslgn creditons 14,692,092 - - 14,69a,903 14,602,948
Local ereditors Esbaa07 - - 5:568,107 5.562,107
Cantraot llabilities 6,968,700 - - 6,968,795 6,968,800
— 34,441,009  _5,614,092 T eldafBLd 01857382 - 54,503,064
Laan thin i Between 2 Over § yoars Totul Carrylng
your  and 5 years amount
Birr'oon Birr'ooo Birroon Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
At 3o June goggi
Lansa lisbility allzfz 625,757 105,601 1,110,539 002,036
At 30 June goze:
Laase labilivy 371,431 B, 720 07,330 1,084,360 Bgi590

4.5 Capltal management

The Enterprise’s ohjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Enterprise's sbility o continue as a going concern In order 1o
oarn returng and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduca the sost of capital. The gearing ratios at 30 June 2023 and 36
Juné @022 were an follows;

soJuncaozy 30 Juns aoas

Rirr'opo Birr'oog

Dbt (Hate 1fic) 23,128,591 all, 0,960
Leax: cash and cash equivalents (Nota 17) (83.844,501) (=B,191,157)
Wet dubt (i) —lindie oo —0018T]
Equiry (i) 1g,71,800 104,854,950
Hel debit to squity ratlo L0051 D005

(I} Dbt la lefined as Habilites from financing activitios as detalled in Note 18 (¢)
() Iquity comprises of enpital, retained sarnings, legal reserve nnd othar ressrves



5 Revenue from contracts with customaers

The disaggregation of revenue based on timing and nature is as below

Overtime;
Subscription

Traffic Voice

Traffic Data

Traffic [P

Traffic Visitor Roaming
Interconnect

Leased Clreuit

Hybiid Services

Short Code (Premium SMS)
Cloud Service

Al a point in tme;

Mobile Money Service
Devices revenue

Alrtime credit service revenue
Domain & Web Hosting

Cantract acquisition costs and contract labilities as at reporting date ix az below :

30 June zo23 Jo.June 2033

Birr'oo0 Birr'ooo
267,634 17,423,092
14,414,169 17,181,366
24,703,831 1,520,151
11,708,937 11,084,438
682,112 937,991
6,336,371 5,725,237
98,458 224,792
4,603,855 2,HHQ,194

2,475,660
15,276

60,167,321 50,985,063
757,143 5637
3,729,292 1,666,176
849,340 780,175
22,808 10,410
5,358,672 2,462,998

—lii25993, __59.448,361

J0 June 2023 30 Junec 20332

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo

Reconcilliation of movement in contract nequisition costs arising from revenue from contracts

with customers;

Beginning
Additions in the period
Recognised as Expense

Balance at the end of the year

with customers:

Beginning

Additions in the period
Recognised as revanue
Balance at the end of the year

62162
58,564

RH.454
27,623

— (23.014)

Elﬂm 6:| 162

Reconcillintion of movement in contract linbilities arising from revenus from contracts

f.a68,700
57,735,228

(56,472,718)

231,30

711,727
41,505,959

{41,008, 887)
6,068,799

The Enterprise reeognised impairment losses of Birr as at 30 June 2023 3,075,026 (20322 : Birr
2,728,019) from financial assets arlsing from revenue from contracts with customers.

& Expenses by naturs

6({a) Direct cosis
Metwork access costs
Metwork maintenanes and sUpport costs
Handset and othor devices costs
Purchase of materials

30 June 0273 30 June zpzz
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
3,184,332 2,260,021
2,213,425 1,778,081
3,441,140 4,309,609
2470 849 1,399,496
11,318,735 9740007 ST
JAY

37




6(h) Operating expenses

Employee benafits expense
Commiasion

Sundry Expense
Travelling

Rent

Utilitins

Maintenanes

Other opernting expenses

Other operating expenses include costs ineurred for advertisement & publigity,

uniforms, fuel, insurance, training,

7 Employee benefits expense

The following items are included within employes benefits axpense;

Short term employee benefits :

Salaries and wapes
Allowaiices

Bonus

Chvertime

Leave and holiday pay
Staff medieal eost
Staff loan benefit cost
Staff commissions
Other staff benefits

Employee defined contribution expense

Long term employee benefits :

Employee defined benefit expense

8 Other income (expensce)

Gains from sale of property, plant and equipment
Write (down) or writchaek on inventary
Write (back)/off of differences on praperty, plant and equi]

Building Rent fee

Grant income / (expense)
Sundry expense

Sundry income

2 Finanee income / (coat)

Finance income
Interest inenme

Finance costs

Interest expense

Other finance charges

Nut foreign exchange losses

Finance costs - net

3o June 2033 30.June 2oz
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
12,420,030 9,449,458
7,389,476 5H90,844
1,569,211 2,362,574
562,463 471,423
596,037 439,069
789,566 407,144
536,740 350,045
3,836,460 1,500,678
22162 mgai :mtﬁznil“
stationery, entertainment and refreshment
audit fees, land and building tax and legal provisions, =
6,581,080 5,388,185
2,252,474 1,933,497
1,314,530 911,145
224,803 353,792
338 198,798
290,780 13,262
B,a75 19,338
451 134
570,234 13,510
640,002 490,376
12,285,120 9,321,143
194,909 128,314
12,430,030 9,449,457
181,028 115,114
1,363,664 (596,3094)
{229, 728) 208,617
8,510
20 25
231,805 (24,961)
3,903,815 2,312,768
102 2,315,166 /
31,764 82,458
31,764 82,458
(775,262) {Bf6,201)
{175,258) {=258,211)
2,01 886,550
(2,967.893) (7,030,963)
—{2:936,120) _(6,948,505)

an
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1a{a}

1{h)

10 (o)

30June 2023 30 June zozz
Hirr'ooo Birr'aoo
Skl OO0

Current income and defapped inx

Current income tux

Current income tax 9,860,208 9,343,724

Deferred income tax/(eredit) to profit or loss 298,556 (1,967,957)

Current tax of prior periods 1,458,
" gl

Total ineame tax charge to profit or loss 10,158,764 8,834,am

Income tax (eredit) on other comprehensive ineame 55,814 27,473

Total current income tax expense in statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income 10,214,578 &,B61 704

Reconcilintion of sffective tax to Elatutory tax

Tha tax on the Enterprise’s profit before income tix differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the statutery income tax rate us follaws:

30 June 2033 30 June 2oag

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
e —Ja_".

Profit before tax 28,186,778 17,833,003
Tax calealated at applicable income tax rate of 30% (2017:30%) B.456,033 5:350,171
Tax offect of:

Income not subjeet to tax {(6,053,358) {5.182,794)
Expenses not deductible for tax 757,532 9,176,347
Current tax of prior periods = 1L458,504
Tax eharge due to deferred tax 454,370 (1,940,824)
Income tax expense 10214578 __B.861,904

Expenses not deductible for income tax mainly inelude the following;
30June 2023 jo June 2033

Birr'ooo !ll.rr'nug

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (5:785,449) (5.715,562)
Amortization intangible assets {323,310) (573,881)
Write (down) or writehack on Inventary 1,363,664 {596,394)
Net impairment losses on finaneial aszets (347,607) 471,868

Nt forelgn exchange losses (2,017,374) (5.886,550)

30June 2023 30 June oz

Current income tax Hability Birr'aoo Hirr'ooo
Balance at the beginning of the vear 7946127 6,534,773
Income tax expanse = e 9,860,208 0,343,724

Payment during the year

T (10,560,943) (7,932,368) -
Balunce at the end of the year . .a \ b T y 7,245,392 ?.Ed‘mz"

0




1oi{d)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that It is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

3o.June 2023 30.June 2033
Rirr'ooo Birr'ooo

Deferred tax assot A,570,850 3,931,220

3,576,850 3,931,220

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities, deferred income tax charge/(credit) in profit or loss ("F/L), in equity
and other comprehensive income are attributable to the following items:

Credit/ Credit/ (charge) 30.June zoz3

Deferred income inx Ati1July (charge) to o equity
aspets/(liabilities): I0ZE F/L

_Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooe __ Birfooo
Property, Flant and Equipment 1,635,239 {75173) 1,560,066
Investment Property (64,106) (64,100)
Intangible axsets (a71,084) 87,120 (283,957
Right of use nssets {288,379) {73,940) {362,330)
Investment securities nt amortised cost 155,001 (195,001) -
Notes receivable at amortised cost {195,162) 195,162 T
Inventories 1,352,082 (416,441) 935,642
Other assets 59,148 {14,250) 44,890
Other finaneial assets at nmortised cost  (14,150) 8,237 (5,922)
Trade recelvables (a8,8g0) 168,047 129,156
Cash and cash equivalents (523) 523 =
Defined benefit obligations 212,808 (15,206) (55.814) 141,788
Borrowings (98,748} 97800 (947)
Lease labilities 249,569 46,905 266,474
Contract labilitiea 142,514 4,059 146,573
Trade and ather paynbles 1,062,216 (az,70) 1,039,515
Provislons 25,420 (29,420) =
Grants 169 (169) =

Total deferred tax asscts/(liabilitih_3,831,220 (208,856) !m&l:! 3,576,850

Credit/  Credit/ (charge) 30 June
Deferred income tax Atiduly (charge)io to equity 20232
nsswta/(liabilites)t zoR1 P/L
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Praperty, Flant and Equipment 74,914 1,560,325 1,645,230
Intangible assets (a41,620) {z9,404) {371,084)
Right of uss azsets (205,612} 7,233 (288,379)
Investment securities at amortised cost 195,463 (483) 195,001
Notes recelvable at amortised cost ~150194 {44,968) (195.162)
Inventories 1,165,823 186,250 1,352,082
Other nascls HH, 221 {29,075) s9.148
Other financial assets al amartised cost (35,700} 21,632 (14,159}
Trade receivablea 112,659 (151,549) (38,850)
Cash and eash equivalents 12,119 {12,642) (533)
Defined benefit obligations 194,173 af, 108 {z7.472) 212,808
Borrowinjs 9,126 {101,873 {a8,748),
Leage liabilites 248,117 1,352 249,560
Contract labilities B&,130 56,476 142,514
Trade and other piyables 617,558 444,658 1,082,216
Provisions 15017 14,103 29,420
Grants 183 (14) 164

Total deferred tax assets/(linbilitic llizl:l‘ﬁﬁ "!521221 (27,473) 3,931,220,

a ' I'{.-'-.‘_' f/ ,



- T ey

=z LCg'gE £95*bon‘on [= i (=714 4 ] s6u'rT's Bbo'GoS' T55'95g'L CEB564 CEgrziz Junoare ¥oodq jeu Bomdn
- TTOT IUNe 0L papaa Jway
ZTCR'LSE'SE | LgG'Fooor | OSFGED ELLEE B6I'Zzz'z  BGO'BOCT 1SC'9CgL  CgL'6o6't  SEgzizbi WINoUre joeq ¥
[Boe'zig ST} 2 T (5go6a]  TosTesgt)  (9LLI06)  [99Ti6et)  (6Ugedky)  [RLIigE uoglenadap pevemumoy
ST GG L LSgofon oge'thss BESFTL {0 ] CLg'grk'E LEg'L¥S'n Fzo'nEl'y Ero‘oza'sE B
TTOT anp of 3y
ZEF g ak L T oLFEED [ S Thlzza®  GHOBOST TESERL | SREESeT . ThpEeh Wmoure jooq 12 dnsep)
(zo5=1LE) {o'ggz) [EEFoE) (519°Zrg) (S84 goE]) {Lzl05) (zEs"tgE) (EOCSEE'E) aZiey odyerzandag
(95g'EE) I5e5z) (bzi"En) (B6L°ET) (S (5+#E) s[esndsyg
SkE100'TE gELimhatnn aStzos bog*Ssn Lgkak S'TE oSl Bo6'S EoE'grr SUnQppY
o {159'0g8) F] L1144 1 ERSgk sped aeds g0 suopenpssepay
[EgToga) (¥ EGEg) - g gzl - B0 gES oTE'eEs THTME'E (412} suoyesyissepay
gSagz'tt EEO'SqEs EEL' s Ciz'6zE LBy oGl ol idge’s [T T BERSgL yancur wooq B funadn
ET0T Funyp 0F papEa Jway,
mmw.ﬂ_mﬂ.ﬁm LEQ'SgE™s PEL Lzl Siz“bzE BRL STl Fot'ealt Polllglts EBL Lol 65g'Sel'Er AR R 00 1]
[GF5 060 DE] - [EzrFgo) [tcFoog) ToSBEOE] . e oeaT) BEERT]  [Efogoe)  (RFrgFE noneasdap palzmTay
Foo'EQE'Eg TooSgES gy bl sEg'bgha £ Lo e Tl -] SEO'RGEE'E ehozi6hor oS5 bogs FEE b S0y
- rEoz Ampe ey

D0 B oooLng Qoo g Qoo Lmng | 0 Ang W00 Lag T00 L1y 000 1Eg

ssasBorg wamdinbg SR e “fe., wuessndmby  sjassy
Tewo ] 2y, Er b Ty saredg SIaAIag SIPIYIA SO0R - 'SSUEpENY.  , Jameg NrOMmEaN
e p— Y yusasdmba pae ywepd “eedoa g ]
- r L 4 ....... Ly ....|.. —
.,
P



D £33 o=

Ethio Telecom
Notes to the financial statements
Far the vear ended 30 .June 2029

= - -

12 Lenses
0 Amaunts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:
joJune 2023 30 Junezozz

Birr 'ooo’ Birr 'voo’
Right of use nsset
Properties 1,207,765 961,260
Lease liability
Eumcnl ; 441,037 312,233
Dn-CUrTen 647,210 19,662
—t8aay 851805 (]
i) Right of use assets 30 Junc 2033 30 June 2022
Birr 'ooo’ Birr 'ooo'
Balance at start of the year 961,205 088,37
Additions in the year 381,426 199,833
Remeasurement of Right of use asset 248,780 118,464
. 1,591,471 1,303,667
Depreciation expense (383,706) {342,902)
Balance at end of the year :Ian'r,':rﬁi gﬁllaﬁi
fit)  Lease liability
Balance at start of the year 831,897 827,390
Additions in the year ‘375102 191,474
Remeasurement of lease liability 176,588 130,454
Interest expense 96,662 86,451
1,480,249 1,235,768
Repaymenis in the year __ (491,999) (403,871)
Balance at end of the year 0BB,248 831,897

i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
goJune 2023 3o.June 2022

Birr 'ooo’ Birr 'oo0’
Depreciation charge right-of-use assets 383,706 342,402
Interest expense included in finance costs under Note g 6,662 B6,451
:_;ﬂu,;zﬁ : 52&}'&52
v} Amounts recognised in the statements of cash flows ;
Cash generated from operations = Interest paid (96,662) {(86,451)
Cash generated from financing activities - lease payments {(395,338) (317,421)

a2
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Intangible nesets

At 1 July 2021

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June zozz
Opening net baok value
Reclassifications from WIp
Additions

Amortisation charge
Closing net book value

At 3o June zozz

Cosl

Aceumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June zozy
Opening net book value
Reclassifications from WIP
Additions

Amortisation charge
Closing net book value

At 30 June 2023

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

13(n) Invesiment Pmm:rqr

At 30 June 2ozz
Cost

Accumnulated amortsation
Net book amount
Year ended 30 June zo24
Opening net book value
Additions

Depreciation charge
Closing net book value
At 30 June 2oz

Cast

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Plespinegsd

Network Software Total
licensex
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'oono
285,329 3,972,225 4,257,554
(248,370) (2,654,876) (2,003,246)
36,959 1,317,340 1,354,300
36,959 1,317,349 1,354,309
359,620 320,843 680,563
114,459 32,901 147,360
(74,304) {499,577) é_s"@.ﬂﬂa)
436,735 1,171,616 1,608,350
759,400 4,326,069 5,085,478

(322,674) (3.154,453) (3,.477.127)
436,735 :.:7!113'. 16 1,608,350

436,735

8,678
(B0,414)

1,171,616

364,909

1,608,350

8,678

(242,897) (323,310)
928,719 1,293,71

768,087

4,326,060

5,004,156

(403,088) (3,397.350) (3.800,438)
3 51999 926,719 1::“5,‘?1

244,159
(26,078)
zi#,080
218,080

(4,395)
213,686

244,159

(30,473)
213,686

a3




14{u) Other sescis

3o June 2023 30 June 2022

Birs'ooo __Birr'oon
Contract acquisition eosts 04,660 62,162
Deposits and prepayments 2,408,543 2,060,356
Prepald benefit assets ar7 745
Sundry debtors 474,003 237,077
n—'JLM 5'3 Eﬂiﬁ |6d o
Current 2,974,273 2,360,469
MNon-Current 310 171
‘-97ﬂ|ﬁaﬂ 2,366,640

Contract acquisition costs relates to customer applications eommissions and dealers upfrant commissions
settled in advance. Deposits and prepayments mainly relate to advances pald to suppliers.

3oJune 2oy o June 2023
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
14(b) Trade receivables
Trade recoivables &,848,995 9,258,130
Less: Provision for impairment losses {3,075,626) (2,728,010)
ﬁ.waigﬁg 6,530,101
Movement on impalrment losses on trade is as follows:
At start of year 2,728,019 2,728,019
Impairment losses for the year 347,607 -
ﬂlnﬁ‘ﬁnd 2,728,010
14(c) Other finaneial assets at amortised cost
30 June 3023 30 June zozz
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Staff receivables 14,741 47,194
Advanee to Minstry of Finanee 7,101,156 7,101,156
Reeelvable from Mo for Paid up Capital fulfillment 92,464,057 ga[gﬁg‘uiz
— 90,484,004 12,38

Included in staff receivables are staff mortgage, holiday and other loans and advances to the Enterprise's Staff.
The loans are secured by the staff's terminal benefits, Management has assessed the attrition rate for permanemnt
Staff as buing low. As sueh, the loss given default for staff loans is desmed to be low and consequently the
expected eredit losaes as immaterial,

Current 92,483,778 92,810,752
HNons=Current 7,101,156 7,101,6

99,584,934 99,612,387

Inventories 30 Jine 2023 3o June 202z

Birr'ono Birr'ooon

Commereial 1,313,214 . Be5aay

Non commarcial inventories 13,685,662 2,60
14,998,876 -6,303.:2& -

Commercial inventories are meant for sale to customers and include handsets, 8IM eards, seratch cards,
modems and dongles. Non commerclal lnventories consists of consumables and support items network
maintenance spares that do not meet criteria for capitalisation as property, plant and equipment,

Write (down) or writeback of inventories to net realisable value in the year amounted to Birr for 2083
1,363,664(2022 — Birr (596,394). These were recognised as other expense/income in the statement of profit or
loss in the respective perlods,

..-_" g 1 . . II A
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16(n) Notes receivable st amortised cosi
3o.June zozg

30 June zozz

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Motes receivable at amortised eoxt 650,840
Less: allowance for impalrment . -
x 650,540
Non Current y _
Current = 650,540
- 650,540

The treasury notes arise from the conversion of a treasury bill ta a note receivable a from the Ministry of

Finance of Ethiopia in aceordanes with Proclamation Nao, 648/2009, The notes recelvi
650,000 bearing interest at the raie of 0.533% per annim and repayable as a lump

A reconciliation of the changes in treasury notes receivable is as follows:
ao June 3023

ble princlpal is Birr
=5um on 6th May 2022,

30 June zozz

Bire' oo Birr'ooo
Balance at the beginning of the year 500,647
Interest eharped 3,461
Intercst Fopaymenis {3,459)
Impairment losses - B
Balance at the end of the year - 500,650

Movements on expected credit losses on assets at amortized is as follows:

Al start of year - 149,850
Impairment losses ineurred for the year - (149,8490)

The investment seeurities at amortized cost represen investment placements with finaneial institutions,

30 June z2oay 30 June zozz
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 25,102 10,468
Cash at bank 33,519,490 28,180,685
33,544,592 28,191,157
Impairment losses u "
z 2 28,191,157

Effects of exchange rate changes on eagh and cash eqr 30 June 2023

30 June zozg

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Realised (zains)/losses on eash and cagh equivalents during tt 284,313 1,806,550
Add closing unrealised (gains)/losses on cash and cash equiva (923,464) . {905,304)
Loss opening unrealised (zains)/losses on cash and cash equiv 905,394 ke 644,048
206,344 2 .1{;'\5;5,!94
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1B  Borrowings

Non Current
Government loan  18(n)
Promissory notes  18(h)

Current

Government loan  18{a)
Promissory notes  18(h)

18 {(a) Government lonn

Ministry of Finance

joJune zozy go Junc zozz
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
6,136 8,183
16,021,580 20,567,061
16,929,715 20,576,144
1,305 L462

211,322 6,701
5,212,627 6,702,921

iiliii}h‘ﬁi izlizglﬂﬁﬂ

Ministry of Finanee borrowing is an on-lending facility from the Japanese government. The loan principal is
JPY 118,973 (Birr 1,970) bearing interest at the rate of 0.75% per annum and repayable in 30 seml annual
instalmenta. Tho loan will mature in 2029. A reconciliation of the changes in government loan s as follows :

Balance at the beginning of the year
Interest charged

Principal repayments

Intereat repayments

Amortisation of grant

Translation effect on foreign eurrency loans

Balance at the end of the year

30 June 2033 3o Junc znzz2
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
0,645 10,33
g1 104
(1,2558) (1,338)
(51 (84)
20 25
{noB) 570
741 9,645

This loan was issued at below market interest rate. The Enterprise's recognition of the grant arising of Birr 25 (

zozz: Birr 63) is presented under Note 2.

18 (b) Promissory notes payable

ZT'E corporation - Next Generation Network
ZTE corporation = Telecom Expansion Project
Huawaei Technologies Co. Ltd

Ericsson Credit A.B

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
o 1,137,577
4,504,023 4,795,354
15,453,578 17,846,204
2,175,500 0,286
22,132 502 [ 27,2 20

it



lir e ff Haneny staliasim

For the year ended 5o June sosy

The promissory notes arise from financing agrecments with various vendors for the Enterprise’s next
generation network and Telecom Expansion Projeet (TEP). The torms of the financing agreements are as below

Contractual
interest rate

Effectve
interest rate

Maximu
Currency m eredit
i (Million)
ZTE corporation = USD LE00
Next Generation
Metwork
ZTE corporation - USD sl]
Telecam
cxpansion project
Huawei Ush Boo
Technologies
Co.Ltd
Ericason Credit  USD 400
AB

& montha USD
LIBOR 4+ 1,0%
margin

& montha USD
LIBOR + 1.5%

margin

6 months USD
LIBOR + 1.5%
margin
& months USD
LIBOR + 3.0%
margin

A reconciliation of the changes in promissory notes payable is as follows;

Balance at the beginning of the year
Promissory notes issues

Interest charged

Frineipal repayments

Interest repayments

Translation effect of foreign currency promissory notes

Balance at the end of the year

18 {c) Net debt reconcillintion

Maturity

1.53% 1th January,
2033
2.30% 16th February,
2029
2.16% 1fith October,
2028
4.10% 15th March zo38
3o June 20a3 J0 June 20332
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
27,209,420 30,564,202
. 578,338
662,837 767,480
(6,609,730) (8,281,789)
(945,908) {490,786)
1,756,372 4,131,074
22,132,903 27,269,420

The Enterprises financing activities comprise of borrowings and leasing arranpements. An analysis of nat debt
and the movements in net debt arising from financing activities for each of the periods is as presented below :

Net debt as a1 01 July zoa1
Net cashilows
Forelgn exchange adjustments

Other changes (effective interest and other fina;

Net debi as at 30 June zozz

Naot debt as at 01 July zaz1
Net cashflows
Foreign exchange adjustments

Other changes (effective interest and other fina

Net debt as at 30 June 2023

Borrowings
Birr'ooo

30,574,540
(8,195,639)

4,132,554

767,600

27,279,065
27,279,065
(7,557,034)
1755374
663,938

22,140,343

a7

Lenses
Birr'ooo

Baz380
(212,308)

216,905

831,806

831,896
(116,808)

273,250
988,248

Total
Birr'aooo

'3],,3{01,.9 29
(B,408,037)
4,133,554

984,514

28,110,060

28,110,960
(7.673.932)
L755:374

036,188

23,128,501
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30 June 2023 jo June 202

Birr'ono Birr'doa

Dafined benefit obligationa

Dafined benefit Hubllitios;

= Communication benefli 161,532 11,218
= Furowell benefit 25,34 24,028
- Funeral benefit 74,601 sH,ag7
= Gratulty benefit 20b,102 171,928
— Pust Felirement mudical beneii 174,118 a5l gog
= Bereavemant hanefit ab.Gde 34.985
Liabllity in the statemant of finanelal position 673,739 FO9,357
Statement of profit or loss charge lneluded in personnel expansns;

= Communication benefit 36,613 42,393
— Frewell benefit 512 4,338
= Funaral bonefit 18,444 13,778
- Oratuity benafit sH.547 d44,183
= Paxt rotirement medieal bonafit 64,191 53,358
= Beftiverment banasfli 11,067 4
Total defined benefit expansss 105,974 m,ﬂ-nz
Hemasruraments for:

= Comimunication benaeflt (3a,6a2) {110, 798)
= Furuwall tenofit {4,703) 2,084
= Funeral benefit (528) {4,014}
= Gratuity banaflt 4317 1H,42
= Pogt retirement medical banafit (145,208) 4,807

= Bereavement banafit 18] 3
!!!giu!j;] Ellﬁgi

The statement of profit or loss shasge ineluded within smployee expensen includus current service cost, interast cost, past
#ervice conts on the defined benefit schomas,

Communigation benefit linbility has been decreased significantly during the pericd that is because the enterprisn has
been ehianged the srtimation base from the anttlement of the benefil to tha aetunl sonsuin tion buis.

JoJune 202y jo June 202z

Muturity analysis
Birr'uoo Birt'ooo
Current 2 K]
Non-Current 597,441 640,151
673,730 Fite TH A

The significant actunrial musumptions were as follows:

Tinanglal assumuptions npplisd

godunaanay 30 June 023

Discount Bate {p.x) for all benefis aLh5% 21.50%
Salnry increase rate (p.a) for funoral, gratuity and post retirement medical benefit 19.65% 19.50%
Inflation rute (p.a) for sll benefits except gratuity

Inflution rate {p.a) for gratulty

Inflation rite (p.a) for all banefite 13, 60% 1B.45%
Benefits incranss rate (p.a) for communication and farewell Benefits 4% q.50%
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Morality in Survice
Thie rate of mortality ussumed for employees are thoss according to the Demographic and Health Survey (*D15%) of
Ethlopia is below:

Age Mortality rate Maortality rale
Miles Females
20 0.91% 0.923%
a5 o.30% o %
a0 0.36% 0.91%
kL o 1M o, 20K
Al 0.52% 0.3a%
5 o.45% o41%
L3] 0.76% XL
55 1,04 % 0.H6%
& 1.76% 1,00%

Post retirement mortallty rates were assumed 1o follow Kizo-og morality, Sample rates are provided below,

Age Maortality rate Martallty raie
Mulas Femules

.1 3.42% 248%

70 B.55% 4.30%

ki i4.481% 9.66%

8o 20,85% 2B.04%

Hy 28.07% 1,74%

gn A0.00% F0.38%

Withdrawal from Sarvioe

The withdruwal rates are believid to ba reasonably reprasantarive of the Ethiopian expericnee. Tha valustion assumed a
rite of withdrawal of 8.00% at the youngest nges falling with iterensing sge ta 0.50% al age 50,

Tha sansitivity of the overall defined banufit Habilities 1o changos in the weighited pri neipal aEsUmpLions s aa balow,

Impaet on eommunication beneflt abligatlon
2

A0 June 2037 Ao Juns gog
Change i [mpact of un increase Impact of a Impact ofan  Impact of 2
assiiimplion decrense ncrease  decroass

Bir'ooo Booo ___ Birgvo Bir'aco
Discount rate 1% {57,568) 69,160 {8, 6061) 7,500
Benefit Ratn 1% 73,006 (60,503) 55,225 (45.656)
Salnry growih rate 1% 23,3009 (13,774]
Morality Kata 1% 12,765 {13,004}

The abave sensitivity analyals Is hased on changea in an assumption whils holding ll other AAUMPIions eonstant, In
pragiio, this is unlikely to occur and changes In some of tha nasumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined enefit obligations to significant actuarial assumptions the same method, preasnt value of the
defined banefit obligation caloulated with the projected unit eredit method st the end of the roporting period has baan
applied as when ealculating the defined banofits labilities recogninsd within the statamant of finaneial position,

Proected deflned bensfit obligations

The the affuct of the defined banefit plans on the Enterprise’s future cash flows (8 summarised as hlow |

Fﬂ!ﬂtﬂ benefit puymants irr'ooo
eir ending 30.Juns 2024

2
Year anding 30 Junc soas B, g1
Yaur ending 30 Juns gozi 104,688
Year ending 30 June 202y 121,133
Yuar anding 30 June 3028 48,142
Totul projected benefits payments over § years gab 16y

Riaks Lo the Enterprise in respact of the benefits are sammariged and deseribed bolow;

Tuks-up rigk: If the proportions of emplayses who will Like up variows parts of the benefiis inorenses from currant
reported utilization, the cost to the Enterprise will inerease;

Infiation Risk: if costs of the benefils incraass ot a faster rute than that assumed inflation rate, the cost to the
Enterorise will inorease:

Demagraphie risk: if more employees rotirs than expeeted, the cost 1o the Enterprian will inorease;

Cushflow plak: similarly, If more employess retire tan expocted, the Enterpriss will nesd 1o allocats additional
cashilows to pav for the benefits: and

Discount rate rinks: If bond yields drop significantly from year to yoar, the libilitiea and oosis will Inerease. This will
not impact the ultimate eosl of the bansfit but ey udvarsaly affect the Enterprise's statement of Goancial position in the
short tarm,

i L= &




20 Contract Habilities, provisions, trade and other paynbles

3o June oz 30 June zozz
Note Birr'ooo Birr'ono
20(a) Contract linbilities
Cantract linbilities 8,231,300 6,068,799

Contract liabilities relate mainly to unused airtime and other revenues (eonnection, reconnection and ingtallation fees
recelved) where the Enterprise has not fulfilled perfomancs obligations to customers.

20(b) Trade and other payables

Trade puyables

Forelgn creditors 16,647,978 14,692,042

Local creditors 10 EEB,EQE 5,502,107
27,186,173 20,255,000

Other payables

Other taxes 150,553 122,817

Unclaimed salary 9,271 9,271

Leave accrial 1,154,876 B4B,161

Deposits received 302,134 254,347

Sundry creditors Etﬂgﬁ%zz ‘Z&Eﬁﬁa“‘B
26,450,101 18,509,724
53,636,334 38,824 834

zo(c) Provisions

Provision for logal expense 31,056 13,772
Provision for lease restoration costs 127,778 84,206
159,734 98,068
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at start of the year oB,068 51,057
Pravision in the year 61,666 47,011
Balance at the end of the year 159,734 98,068
Provisions relate to legal elaims and restoration costs which are of uncertain timing or amount.
3o.June 2033 jo June 3022
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Current
Provision for lease restoration
Provision for legal expense 31,056 13,772
= - 31,056 13,772
Non-Current o — :
Provision for lease restoration W = O 127,778 84,206
Y P, ' ' '\I Al o 159,734 o 9B068
: 1 Ty}

11}




Ethio Telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

1

a3

Capital

The Enterprise Capital has been amended in 2021 by regulation No.480/2021, As per the amendment the entorprise
authorized eapital has been proclaimed to be 400 billion birr of which birr 100 billien is paid up in eash and in kind,
Legal reserve

The legal reserve is a statutory reserve, The legal reserve is accumulated by transferring 5% of annual net profits to the
reserve until the amount reaches 20% of paid up eapital,

Granis

30 June 2023 30 June 2032
Eil‘r'ﬂﬂﬂ Rirr'ooo
Government grants 2 23
Other grants 518 549
520 561

Maturity
Non-Current 497 520
Current 23 41
520 51

Loans at below market interest rate

The Ethiopian government obtained a loan from the Japanese government through the Ministry of Finanee and
subsequently provided a loan to the Enterprise dated 7 November 1979 G.C for an actual proceed of Japanese Yen
118,973 (Birr 1,970) to purchase radio equipment which was subsequently purchased. The maturity date of the loan iz
May 2029 and it bears an interest rate of 0.75% per annum. This interest rate is below the current market interest rate
estimated at 1.0% which is referenced from World Bank historical data. This loan is payable to Ministry of Finance in
birr equivalent of Japanese Yen and the Enterprise bears the risk of foreign currency exchange losses. A reconciliation
of the grant arising from is as shown below.

a0 June 2023 30 June 2032

Birr'ono Bire'ono
Balance as at the beginning of the year ; 22 a7
Amortisation E) [m
2 22

Grants arising from leasehold land

The Enterprise received o grant in form of leasehold land worth Birr 1,080 from the government in 1998 G.C fora
period of 5o years. A reconcilistion of the grant arising from is as shown below,

go.June 2023 30.June 2022

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Balance a8 at the beginning of the year . 539 560
Amortisation T atlo R (21) (a1)
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,J Ethio Telecom
Notes to the financial statements

24

a6

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Other rescrves

Other reservos inelude remeasurement gains and losses
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions. See

on employee defined henefit schemes arising from experience
further details in Note 1g,

30 June zo23 30 .June 2023

Cash generated from operating nctivities Nutes Birr'ooo Rirr'ooo
Profit bofore tax 28,186,778 17,831,903
Adjustments:
Deprecintion of property, plant and equipment i1 5785449 5,715,562
Deprecistion charge on right of use assets 12 383,706 342,402
Amaortisation of intangible asaets 13 dzam10 573681
Amortisation of grants 18 20 25
Employee defined benefit Expense 19 (186,047) (91,576)
Effect of Remeasurment on Right of use Azset 12 (248,780) (118,464)
Effect of Remeasurment on Lease Liablity 12 176,588 130,454
Write (down) or writeback on inventory L] (1,363,664) 596,394
Impairment of trade mesivablas 14(h) 347,607 (1,293,121}
Impairment of investment securlties at amortised cost 16(b) - (1,544)
Impairment of Note Recievable 16 - (149,800}
Impairment of cash and cash equivalents 7 - (42,141)
Gaina from sale of property, plant and equipment 8 (181,928) (115,114)
Interest income arsing from investments 9 {30,446) (75.221)
Interest income arising from fair valuation of staff loans g {1,218) (7.237)
Interest expense g 775,202 886,301
Net foreign exchange (gains) / losses ] 2,017,374 5,886,550
Changes in operating nssets and linbilities:
-Ducrease/ (Increase) in inventories (7.326,984) (974,219)
=Decrease/ (Increase) in trade recelvables 140 {500,87%) 2,030,780
-Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets (607,943) (104,821)
-Decrease/ (Inerease) in other financial assets at amortised cost 27,453 ¥3,108
-Increase/ (Deerease) in defined benefit labilities 150,419 124,176
=Increass/ (Decrense) in conteact linbilitine 1,262,510 (342,927
-Increase/ (Decrease) in grants arising from loans at below market interest rate (z0) (25)
-Inerease/ (Decrease) in grants arlsing from leasehold land (z1) (=1)
-Inerease/ (Decrease) in provisions 61,666 47,011
-Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables 14,811,512 13,742,495

— 43,771,638 44,605,627




Ethio Telecom
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023
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Related party transactions

Related parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other Parly or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financlal or aperation decisions, or one other party controls
bath,

The related parties for the Enterprise include management board members and key management personnel,
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the enterprise, directly or indirectly, including any management board members.

In the normal course of business, & number of transactions are entered into with related parties i.e. staff,
managemant board members or companies associated with management board members, These include staff
loans and employment compensations, These are disclosed below:

Loans to key management

The aggregate value of outstanding interest free loan related to key management personnel are as follows, The
market rate used to diseount the loan is 11.5%.The loans are secured by the key management's terminal
benefits. Management has assessed the attrition rate for permanent staff as being low, As such, the loss given
default for staff loans i2 deemned to be low and eonsequently the expected credit losses us immaterdal,

3o .June 20323 goJune 2022

Birr'ooo Birr'ooon
Loans to key management 22 220

Key management compensation

Key management has beon determined to be the membors of the management board and the exccutive
management of the Enterprise, The compensation paid or payable to key management is shown below. Key
management also receive free communication benefits (mobile equipments and telecommunication services) ,
vihicle and monthly fuel coupon as per the Enterprise’s benefit policy. Such costs are expensed within emplayee
benefit expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

3o June 2oz3 30 June 2022
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo

Executive management's compensation 03,087 79,400
Management board's remuneration 1,750 1,021

The outstanding obligation related to post employment benefit plan for key managemaent as at 30 Jun 2023 was
birr 2,514 (2022; Birr 2,102)

Employees
The average number of pefsons employed by the Enterprise during the year was as follows:
jo June zozgy o.Ju 022
Technician Team 6,751 6,601
Commercial Team 5662 5.855
Support Team 4,767 4,573
17,176 17,029

The table below shows the number of employess, emoluments in the year and wore within the bands stated
below;

3o June 2023 30 June 2022

10,000 - 30,000 P oGk - 1

30,001 = 50,000 CAY  —— i : 4
50,001 - 100,000 - " L 488 7bq
Above 100,000 i % \, i 16,688 17,246

il 17,176 18,015
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

20

jo

31

3z

Contingent liabilities

The Enterprise is a party to numerous legal actions brought by different organizations and individuals arising
from its normal business operations, The Enterprise considers it to be probable that some judgements will not
be in its favour and should therefore recognise a provision in relation 1o these claims o disclosed under Note

20,

The potential undiscounted amount of the total payments that the Exterprise could be raquired to make if there
wiis an adverse decision related to the numerous legal actions is estimated to be approximately Birr 59,814 (30
June 2022: Birr 52,080).

Commitments
The Enterprise has undrawn facilities for purchase of various capital ftems a8 summarised below:

3o June 2023 30 June 2022

Birr'noo Bi rr‘gnn

ZTE corporation 7,788,175 578,321
Huawei Technologies Co.Ltd 11,877,518 11,202,358
Erfeason Credit AD 11,019,001 10,392,642

30,684,603 22,173 921

Launch of Mobile Money Operation

The Enterprise has started mobile monay business, branded as “telebirr” with the license number of NPS P11
/o1/z021 to provide digitalized financial services to its customers, The services include cash in, cash out,
airtime top up, eash transfer, fund raising, mobile remittance, merchant transaction payments, eash deposit,
microcredit and various utility payments,

Events after reporting period

Except us disclosed below, there were no significant events that occurred between 30 June 2023 and the date of
issue of these financlal statements,

Government plans to sell stake in Ethio telecom

The Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia which is the sole owner of the Enterprise plans to sell a 40% stake
in the Enterprise to investors

Possible damage of nsseis in the Northern Part of Ethiopin

From November 2oz2o-November 2022, the government of the Federal Democratic Rapublic of Ethiopia has
been carrying out military operations in the northern reglon of Ethiopia, The impacted regions of the company
with this situation were North Region, North East Reglon, North East East Region, North North West Region
and Central North Region. Even though majority of the network elements have been maintained and recovered
to functional statethe enterprise has not yet assessed and completed the extent to which its assets located in
the Tigray Regional State of the country may have been damaged by the military operations, There are also
shops of the Region which are inaceessible and unsecured,

Date of Authorization

The financial statements on pages 11 to 54 were authorised for issue by Chief Exeutive Officer on 36 October
2023
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Fihio Televam

LIRS financial statements

Forthe vear ended so.dune 2ouo
Report of the management board

The management board members submit their report together with the financial statements for the period ended 30 June
2022 to Ethiopian Investment Holdings (EIH).

Incorporation and address

Ethio telecom was established as an autonomous public enterprise in November z010. It assumed the rights
and obligations of the former Ethiopian Telecommunication Corparation with effect from 29 November 2010,
The Enterprise is governed by public enterprises Proclamation No, 25/1903.

The Enterprise's address is as below

Ethio telecom headquarters
Churchill Road

P.O. Box 1047

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

Tel. +251115515700

web: www.ethiotelecom, et

Principal activities

The Enterprise's principal activity is to provide a comprehensive range of integrated telecommunication services
including voice and data (both mobile and fixed), SMS , internet solutlons and Finanacial Service (Telebirr) to its wide
range of subseribers,

Resulis
The Enterprise's results for the year ended 30 June 2022 are set aut on page 9, The profit for the year has been transfarred
to retained earnings. The summarised results are presented below,

30 June 2o22 30 June 2021
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Revenue from contracta with customers 59,448,361 55,499,19
Profit before income tax 17,833,003 12,527,758
Income tax charge 8,814 921 (1 1
Net profit / (loss) for the year 4,669,582 5,583,227
Other comprehensive income / (logz) net of taxes 64,103 67,819
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 9,063,685 5,651,046

Management Board
The management hoard members who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 3,
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Llhio Telecom

[FRS financial statemen s

Lar the vear ended 30 June 2020

Stademerd of management boared's responsihilities

In accordance with the Finaneial Reporting Proclamation (No. 847/2014), the Accounting and Auditing Board of
Ethiopla (AABE) has directed the Enterprise to prepare financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"),

The Enterprise's management board i responsible for ensuring proper books of aceounts are kept.

To enable the management board to meet this responsibility, the management board and executive management
implement systems of internal eontral, accounting and information systems aimed at providing reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded and the risk of error, fraud or loss is reduced in a cost-effective mannar. These
contrals, contained in established policles and procedures, include the proper delegation of responsibilities and
authorities within a clearly defined framewark, effective accoun ting procedures and adequate segregation of duties.

Nothing has come to the attention of the mana gement hoard to indicate that the Enterprise will not remain a going
concarn for at least twelve months from the date of this statement,

Signed on behalf of the managament board by:

3
_,-r'
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'H.E Ambassado Glr;&{i Biru

Management Bdard C airperaon
30 December 2022




16,560 PG KhEAC avp”4 @ (Vi
FLYI] J°Cavd. RN DCT LY
Office of the Federal Auditor General
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statcments
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ethio-Telecom (the Enterprise),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Enterprisc as at 30 June 2022 and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Enterprise
in accordance with the International lithies Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Lthics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) logclhcaaui.g‘h the ethical requirements that arc relevant
to our audit of the [inancial statements "?'Eltbftjﬁiahﬁii\wu have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilitics in accordance with thos réquirements and'the [1:SBA Code. We belicve that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

\
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue

A risk is that accounting principles for revenue recognition may be subject to differing
interpretations. There may be a risk that management is inflating income by improperly
recognizing revenue related to agreements with terms that preclude revenue recognition or by
recording services before they are rendered or invoicing before products are delivered. In our
response to these risks, we made a selection of transactions from source records and tested the
completeness of the source records by ensuring their numerical sequence. We checked that data
was input only once and was subject to validation. We selected a sample of individual
transactions to determine the propricty of their recognition during the year. We scanned the
revenue records to check whether there was any duplication of document numbers or gaps in the
sequence of document numbers to identify documents cancelled, if any. We judgmentally
selected a number of transactions each before and after the closing date to test the cut off
procedures and controls. We determined that the accounting policies and methods of revenue
recognition were appropriate and were applied consistently. Our testing did not identify major
weaknesses in the design and operation of controls that would have required us to expand the
nature or scope of our planned detailed test work, Overall, we found no concerns in respect to
the recording of revenue at appropriate values,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance Jor the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are [ree [rom material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. =

P R PP
In preparing the financial statements, mandagement ig\responsible for assessing the Enterprise’s
ability to continue as a going contern; disclosing, as Applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis-of accounting unlesk management cither intends to liquidate
the Enterprisc or to cease operatic ns, or has no rca'liﬁtijg;a[tcma_livc but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Staternents (continued)

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Enterprise’s financial
reporting process,

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or crror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.,

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opini ¢ effectiveness of the Enterprise’s internal eontrol.

o [Evaluate th¢ appropriaicness of accounting policics used and the reasonablencss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management, e




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Enterprise’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Enterprise to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters.  We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disﬂﬂg}g{‘p"?bmit the matter or when, in cxtremely rarc
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not;bé&“ecdmmunicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasbnably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication. g ;3

="
l T

I'he engagement partner on the audit resulting in-this independent auditor’s report is Woizero
Algancsh Araya. b N N 7



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SUPERVISING AUTHORITY OF
ETHIO-TELECOM (continued)

Report on Other Matter
Additional Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the additional information. The additional information comprises
the information included in the Management Board and Executive Management, in the report of
the Management Board, and in the statement of Management Board’s responsibilities, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
additional information and, in so doing, consider whether the additional information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work that we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this additional information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

/(Q/J,Lgfh}; ga}ﬂw " (el CE%}OB%E‘W

30 December 2022
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Ehins Telecom
Statemcent of profit or loss ad other coriprechensioe meoe
For the yvear ended soJune 2022

30Junc 200z 3o June 2021

Notes Birr'ooo Birr'ooo

Revenue from contracts with eustomers 5 59,448,361 55,490,106
Diirect eosts 6(a) (9,749,007) (6.593,213)
Operating expenses &(h) (20,872,135) (19,415,473)
Net impairment losses on financial asset 14, 16, 17 271,868 (713,997)

Other income (expense) B 2,315,166 73,273
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 31,414,253 28,840,786
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment it (5,718,562) (5,488,176)
Depreciatian charge of right of use nsset 12 (342,402) (241,722)

Amortlzation intangible assets 13 B8 623,141
(6,631,845) 6,353,039)
Operating profit 24,782,408 22,496,747
Finance income g Bz,458 292,053
Finanece costs 9 (7,030,963) (10,191,041)
Finance costs = net (6,048,505) " (0,968,58q)
Profit before income tax 17,833,903 12,527,758

Income tax (expense) / eredit 1a{a) 8,834,321 (i 1
Profit after tax 8,999,582 5:583,227

Other comprehensive income (OCI) net on income tax

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified into profit or logs:
19 91,576 96,884
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on post employment benefits obligationa

Deferred tax (liability)/asset on remeasurement gain or loss 10{a) (27,473) {29,065)

64,103 67,810
Total comprehensive inecome for the year " g9.06 3 6
The Notes on pages 15 to 55 are an integral part of these finanelal
s .-"'--h_ 3 -‘-\1"'.-..\.
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Ethio Telecom
Statement of financial position
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Mates
ASBETS
Non eurrent assets
Propetty, plant and equipment 1
Right of use assets 12
Intangible assets 13
Other assets 14(a)
Other financial assets at amortised cost 14{c)
Nates receivable at amortised cost 16(a)
Deferred tax Assets 10(d)
Current asseia
Inventories 1§
Other assets 19(a)
Trade receivables 14(h)
Other financial assets at amortised cost 14{e)
Nates recelvable at amortizsed cost 16{n)
Investment securities at amortissd cost 16{b)
Cash and eash equivalents 17
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Mon-current labilities
Borrowings 18
Frovisionz 20(c)
Leaze liabilities 12
Grants 33
Defined benafit labilitiox 19
Current liabilitiaz
Barrowings iB
Contraet liabilities zofa)
Trade and other payables ao(h)
Provisions 20{)
Laase labilities 12
Crants 23
Defined benefit liabilities 19
Dividend payahle 24(b)
Current income tax 10 ()

Tatal liabilities

Equity attributable to owners

30 June 3oz1

Capital il

Retained sarnings e Lk o 115,086 (5,648,273

Logal reserve el T A 1,399,923 249,944
3 ho Th

Other reserves. i e

Tutal equity

Total equity and liabilities

The Notes on pages 15 to 55 arc an integral pa ?«r—mm finnncial statemmion
:

s rd

3o June 202z As Restatad
Rirr'ooo Birr'ooo
38,857, Raa 33,286,458
961,266 985,374
1,608,350 1,354,309
71 6,846
#101,635 7,127,568
= i 497,183
3,931,230 1,990,607
52,468,464 45,248,458
6,308,228 £930,403
2,366,469 2,254,973
6,530,101 7,207,760
92,510,752 95,343,168
50,540 3.465
= 308,456
28,191,157 15,194,080
— 16557247 16303313
ooz 71840749,
20,576,144 22,808,082
84,296 47,858
519,662 631,605
518 563
640,151 618,667
21,820,771 24,166,825
6,702,021 7,676,488
6,068,799 711,726
38,824,823 25,083,338
13,772 3,199
313,203 195,703
43 45
69,206 58,090
4,804,066 5,304,066
z,ggu,mz 6,5 1
5:041,990 52,166,41
ﬁ?’aﬂ!ﬂ&l 76,363,340
100,000,000 100,000,000
39,941 (24,162)
\ 101,454,950 95,277,500
3
4 ’ l-ﬂgtmz,zn . n?llﬁin.ﬁg
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Ethio Teleeom
Statement of cash flows
Farthe vear ended 30 June o

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Interest ineome received

Interest expense paid

Incame tax paid

Aftear tax paid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Sale of placements with financial institutions
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Payment for right of use assets

Froceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities
Cash flows from finaneing activities

Repaymenis of borrowings

Frincipal elements of lease payments

Payment to Minatry of Finance

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and eash equivalents ot the end of the year

The Nateson pages 15 to 55 are an integral part of these financial ututqm:ﬁﬁ,h'z Lymy 2y

W e
Yo i
—

;**:1;; W
/ R
! -;\ -

\I.

Notes

26
9,26
18akhb,12
103

16

13
i1,18b

18

30 June 2oz
30 June 2023 As Restated
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
44,665,627 33,050,552
75,218 205,028
(577.301) (606,360)
(7.932,368) (8,841,181)
1,458,594) (9,990,128
34,772,582 13,817,911
400,000 2,150,000
(147,360) (23,388)
(11,423,007) (2,867,869)
(B,356) (6,979)
148,970 73,092

(u!nngl_z:a! (675,143)

(8,283,127) (8,744,224)
(317.921) (310,268)
{(500,000) (1,000,000)
(9,100,548)  (10,054,492)
1595&:‘381 mnsﬂlnﬂ
15,194,080 15,172,910
(1,645,204) (3,067,106)
2821211157 15,134,080
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General information

Ethio telecom (“the Enterprise”) was astablished aq an autonomous public Enterprise by the council of ministers regulation
Mo.197/2010 in November 2010, It nssumed the rights and ebligations of the former Ethioplan Telecommunlcation
Corporatian with effect from 29 November 2010, The Enterprise |s governed by Public Enterprises Proclamation No,
25/1993,

The Enterprise's addross j5 as belaw

Ethio telecom headquarters
Churehil] Road

P.0. Box 1047

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

Tel. +381115515700

il www ethiotalacom. et

The Enterprise’s principal activity is to provide a comprehensive range of integrated telecommunication serviees including
voice and data (both mahile and fied), SM5 , Interngt solutions and Mobile Money sparation ta its wide range of
subscribers.

Significant accounting policies

Introduction to significant sceounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the proparation of these financlal statements are sat out balow, These policies
have baen consistently applied to all the years pruxented, unless atherwise statad,

Basls of preparation

The financial statementa for the period ended do.June 2022 have been prapared in aceordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as lssued by the International Accounti ng Standards Board (“IASE™).

The finaneial statements eamprise the statement of profit or loxs and other comprehensive income, the statement of finansial
position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements,

The measurement basia used is the histarical cost basis uxcopt where otharwize stated in the accounting policies . Under the
historieal cost basis, assets are recorded at the amaunt of cash or eash equivalents paid or the fuir value of the eonsideration
given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amouat of proceeds reevived in exchange
for the obligation or, in same cases, at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the l{ability in
the normal course of business,

For those asiets and llabilities measured at fair value, fair value i the prics that would be recajved to sell an aszet or paid to
transfer a liability in an arderly transaction between market participants at the meazurament date. When meaauring the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Enterprise uses market obaervable data as far as possible. If the fair value of an asset or a
liability is not direatly observable, it is estimated by the Enterprize using valuation teshniques that masimise the use of
relevant ebservable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs (e.g. by use of the markst comparable approach that
reflects recent transaction prices for similar items or diseountad cash flow analysis), Inputs uzed are consistent with the
characteriatics of the asset / liability that market participants would take into account.

Fair values are eatogorised into thres levels of fair value higrarchy based on the degree 1o which the inputs to the
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs ta the fair value measuroment in its entirety:

Lavel 1 - fair valus measuremants are derived from quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical aasets or
liabilitics.

Level 2 - fair value measurements ara derived fram inputs ather than quoted prices used in Lovel 1 that are oheervable for
the assets or liabilities, eithor directly (i.e, a5 prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — fair valuos measuremonts are derived from valuatj mjg_udn that include inputs for assets or liabilities that are
not based en observalle market data (unobssrvable g AT
3 i, ™

P R
.'__lﬁ"l uq_ilfirn_;‘ thi :i‘:; of certain critical aceounting estimates, [t

nfinth es4 of applying the Enterprise’s accounting policios, Changes i

l‘%ﬁﬂ& néinl statements In‘ﬂu period the assumptions changed. The areas

hlr* areas where assu mptions ind extimates are ;ipaiﬁcn_m o the
] .

=%

The preparation of financial statements in confa
also requites management to exereise its judg
nssumptions may have a signifieant impact on
involving a higher degree of ndgmnent er compl
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3.
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2.c  Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on o going concern basis. Nathin & had enme to the attention of the managemant
board to indicate that the Enterprise will not remain a going concern for at least twelve months from the date of approval of
these financial statements for jssue.

#d  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

#d(l) New Standards, smendments, interprotations not yot effective but earlicr adopted by the Enterprise

There are no naw standards and amendments to standards and interpretations that sre not mandatory for the period ending
JoJune 2022 but have boen early adopted by the Enterprise

2.d(ii) New Standards, amendments, interpretations not yet effective and not early adopted by the Enterprise

There are no standards, amendments, interpretations that are not yet effective and that would be expectid ta have o marerial
Impact on the Enterprise In the current or future reporting periods and on foresesable future transactions,

2. Foreign curreney translation

2.e{l) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the finaneial statements are measured using the curreney of the primary econamic environment in which
the Enterpriss operates ('ths Functional Ci rrency’). Both the Functional Currency and Presentation Currency of the
Enterprise is the Ethiopian Bire (Bire) rounded to the nearest thousand (Birr ‘0o0).

2.edii} Transactions and balanees
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b Teleam
Nutvs b the finaneial stateninis
For the vear ended o June 2o

af

Rocognition of revenue from contracts with customers

Ravenue is measured bused on the consideration apucified in o eantract with a eustomer and exeludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties, Revenue i recognised to depict the transfer of geods/vervices to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration that the Enterprise is sntitled to,

The Enterprise principally generates revenua from praviding telecommunication servicus, such as aceess to the network,
airtime usaga, messaging ,internet services and sales of mobile devives as well us fram Mobile tianey services. Products and
services may be sold separately or in bundled packages. The typical average term of a contract for the products and services
ranges from 36 months to 22 montha.

product or service is separately identifisbls from ather ftems in the bundled package and If a customer can beneft from it.
The consideration in allocated batwaan separaty products and services in a bundle based on their stand-alone selling prices.
The stand-alane selling prices are determined based on the list prices at which the Enterprize sells the mobile deviees,
extended warranty and telecommunication séivieas, For items that are not sold separately, the Enterprise estimates stand-
alone sulling prices using the adjusted market sxsazsmant & pproach.

The Enterprise typically satisfies its performance obligations over time with the exception of the sale of devices which securs
ata point in time, The nature of its performance obligations is servies arlsing from provisions of voics, data and SMS . The
Enterprise uses the output methed to recognide revenue from eantracts with eustomers as this method provides a faithful
depiction of the transfer of goods or services ta its customary,

The Enterprise has applied custamer churn rates which repeesont the average life a customer stays connected on its mobile,
fixed ling and data services. This typically rangas between 36 to 72 months. The Enterprises uges average customer life in
accounting for revanue fram upfront & CAF commisions, con nection, installation, reconnection services over time.

Contract acquisition costa relates to eustomer applieations commissions and dealars upfront cemmissions settled in advance.
Contract liabilities relate mainly to unused airtima and other revenue (connection, reconnection and installatian fees
received) where the Ente rprise has not fulfilled perfomance nbligations ta customers.

The Enterprize derives revanue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in the fallowing major
product lines;
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af(l) Revenue recognised over time

Products and services

Nature

Voloe revenun

This revenue arises from outgaing domestic and international voice calls el uding
premium rate ealls and directory enguires.

BMS{Mﬁrevenu-

This revenue arises from outgoing domeatic and international SMS (Short Message
Service) and MMS (Multimedia Message Service] ineluding bulk 5M3 serviees.

Internet revenue

Intornat protocol (IP) service relates to the Mow of data across the internot, 1F
Traffle is alse cammonly referred to as web traffic, This ineludes VSAT (Very Small

Aperture Terminal) rental services,
Internet revenu arises from narrowband and broadband internet services

including mabile data internet.

Roaming revenus

Roaming service enables subscribars to automatieally make and receive vaice calls,
send and recelve SMS and to get mobile intarnat access and other services when
travelling outside the geographical coverage area of the Enterprise via foreign
eountry's operator's netwark,

Subseriptions revenus

Subseription revenue arises from firat time activation of a servioe such a8 sim-card
bought by a subseriber. It is the amount paid by the subscriber to obtain 2 sim-card
andfor subseribe for other services.

i
Interconnections revenue

Interconnection revenue arises from connection batwesn the Enterprise's network
infrastructure and those owned by third parties,

Leaged girguits ievenus

Leased clreuit survice enables customars, mainly multi-national corporations and
International arganizations te extend the reach inte kay overseas locationa. It
pravides the means to establish connectivity for Enterprise customers into thair
premises woeldwida,

|Leased circuit revenue arises from International Private Leased Cireuil ( 1PLE)

facility with secure digital point-to-peint leased line service bitwaen two
international lacations

'ﬁyTnd Services revenue

Hybrid services enables a subscriber to use voice, data and SMB services on & SIM
card with both prepaid and posipaid payment featuess,

Hybrid services revenuw arises from vaice,data snd SM3 servicss on hybrid 5IM
account plan.

Short rode revenun

Shott codus (also known as shart numbers) are apucinl telephone numbers,
significantly shorter than full telephone numbers that can be used to address SMS,

MMS and voica,

Short coda revenua arises from 5M8, MMS and Volce servicas to three or four digit

numbers sibmeribod:by businessia.
w._r AT 4 ymp o
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2.f(il) Revonue recognised at a point in time

2.h

2.h{i)

Products and services Nature

Deviees revenus Devices ara fixed and mabile devices available for customers to buy from the
Enterprize such as handsets, mabils wifi, dongles which enable customers to
access the Enterprise's services, Devices revenus arises from sale of fixed and
mobile devices to custamars,

Alrtime credit survice revenue Airtime credit service {ACS) revenue ralates to fees charged on cuitomers to aceess
aigtime on credit. The enterprise offors this service in partnership with an agent
who earns 20% of the fees eharged, This 80% fess earned by ethio telecom are
recognised a5 revenie at a point in time,

LFl-h-rlt'h!l Service Commiasion ervice Commission I3 arising from services Provided which Inclodes
Cash in, Cash out, Airtime top up, varlous util ity payment, Cash transfe, fund
raizing, mabile Remittance and merchant transaction payments ane micro loan

services to its custamers,

‘Intereat and similsr income and eENpEnse

For all the gavernment bills measured at amortised cost interest income or expense {5 recordid using the effective interest
rate (EIR), which is the rate that axactly discounts estimated future cash PAyments of receipts through the expected lifa of the
finaneial instrumant or a sharter perlod, where appropriate, to the net earrylng amaunt of the financial asset or financial
liability, The ealeulation takes into accaunt all eontractual terma of the finaneial instrument {for example, propayment

The carrying amount of the flnancial asset or financial lability is adjusted if the En terprise revises its estimates of payments
or receipts, The adjusted eaerying amount is caleulated bLased on the original EIR and the change in carrying amount {s
recorded as ‘interest and similar income’ for finaneia] ansets and interest and similar expense for financial liabiljtes,

Onee the recorded value of a financial asset or 3 graup of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an impalrment loss,
internst ineame continues to be recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flaws for the purpase of
measuring the impairment loss,

Financial Instruments

Financial Asseis

Clazsification

The Enterpeise classifles its financial azsots in the following measurement eatagories:

« those to be measured aubsequently at fair value (either th rough OCI ar through profit or loss), and

- those ta he measured at amartised cost.

The classification depends on the anterprise’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms af
the cash flows of the financisl asset, The Enterprise businass modal is just hald to maturity.

For assets measured at fair value, gning and losses will eithar be recorded in profit ar loss or OCL. For investmants in equity
Instruments that are not held for trading, this will depond on whether the Enterprize has made an lerevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to sccount for the equity investment at fair valuw through ether comprehensive income (Fvocr).

The Enterprise reelassifies debt invostments whon and only when its business medel for managing those aasels changes.

Recognition and dereeognition

Regular way purchases and salos of financial Jssetaary recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Enterprise commits
ta purchase or sull the axet, Finaneial ?mj

3 :[umq? when the rights to recwive cash fNlaws from the finanaial assets
have expired or have beon transfar nd the Entpgw_ nafvrred substantially all the risks and rewards of
wivnership. e

T

# %, 4

# . | -

i

=1

Measuroment

fiu e R !
Atinitial recognition, theé Enterfirise m-L-'aureu 1 financial assetat its/fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at falr

value through profit or lans (FVP], ‘Arinsaction costs that are directly attributable ta the acquisition of the financial asset,
Transaetion costs of financial asx 5 Earrigd at I'VPLarg wpcn;cﬂj profit or loxx, 2
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Debi instruments

Subsequent measursment of debt instruments depends on the En terprize's business madel for managing the financial assets
and the eagh flow characteristies of the fing neinl ssat,

Debt instruments at amortised cost for the Entreprise mainly include National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) treasury bills, notes
receivable from the Ministry of Finance of Ethiopia and placements with other financial Institutions,

Trade receivables and ather receivables

Teade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services porformed in the ordinary course of business.
They ae generally due for setflement within 90 days and therefore are all classified as current. Trads receivables are
recagnised initially at the amount of cons| deration that is unconditienal, when they are recognized at fair value,

The Enterprise halds the trade recelvables with the objective to eollact the eontractual eash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortisad cost using the effective interest mathod. Detalls about the Enterprise’s impairment palicies
and the calculation of the loss allawance are provided in Note 4 to the finaneial statements,

Due to the short-term nature of the eurrent receivablos, their carrying amount is considered to be a reasoanhle
approximation of their fair value.

Other receivables gonerally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Enterprize.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shart-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three manths or less that are readily convertibla to known amounts of cash and
which aré subject ta almost zero risk of changas in value,
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2.hiii) Financial liabilities
Horrowings

Borrowings for the Enterprise comprize of loans, nates payables, promissory notes and bank overdeafis, Borrawings are
initially recognised at fair valus, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cast,
Any difference between the proceeds (not of transaction costs) and the redemption amaunt |3 recognised in profit or loss aver
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilitivs are
recognised as transaction eosts of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn dawn,
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down ncours. To the extent there is no evidenee that it is probable that some oF
all of the facility will be deawn down, the fex s capltalised aza prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates,

Barrowings are removed from the statemant of finaneial pavition when the obligation specified in the eantract is discha rged,
sancelled, expired or otherwise extinguished The difference betwean the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transfeered to another party and the eonsideration paid, including any non-cash ussets transferred or
linbilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income of fina noe costs.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Enterprise prior to the end of finaneial year which
are unpald. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other piyables are prasented as current liabilities unloss payment is not

due within 13 months afer the reparting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently maasurad
atamartized cost .

2.hiii) Impairment of financial assets

The Enterprise assosses on a forward looking basis the expected oredit loasos associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised eost. The impairment methadology applied dopends on whather there has been significant increase in cradit risl.

Far trade reeeivables, the Enterprise applios the simplified approach permitted by IFRS g, which ruguires expected lifstime
lneses to be recognised from initinl recognition of the recelvables, see Note 4 for further details,

2.h{iv) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and lHabllitios ara offsst and the net amount reported in the statement of financial pazition where The
Enterprise hax a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and thers i an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and swttle the liability =i miultage
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Froperty, plant and Equipment

Froperty, plant and equipmant iz stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and acoumulated impairment losses, if any,
Such eost includes the cost of replacing part of the praperty, plant and equipment if the recognition criterin are met, When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required ta ba replaced at intervals, the Enterprise recognises such
parts as individual assews with specific useful lives and depreciates them aceordingly, All other repair and maintenance costs
are recagnised in statement of profit or loss as ineurred,

Subsequent costs are included in the assat's carcyling amount or recognisd as a separate assut, as appropeiate, only when it is
probable that future economic bonefits associated with the ftem will flow to the Enterprise and the cost of the item can be
measured raliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part iz derecognised,

Dupreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method ta allocate their eost less residual values sver thair estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Aszot class Major category Useful life in years Residual value %
Network Asgatz
Maobile netwark squipment 10 1.0%
Fixud network equipment 10 1.0%
Transmission equipment 10 1.0%
IP network in 1.o0%
Power Equipmant Power Equipment 5-20 1.0%
Buildings Biiildings a0 - 50 10.0%
Mator Vehicles Mator Vehiclas §-30 5.0%
Servers Sarvars E=7 0.5%
Bparws Parts Spares Parts 520 2.0%
Other Equipmant Furniture and Attings 5-13 o.5%
Other offics squiment 4-10 Lo%

The Enterprise commances depreciation when the asset is avallable for use, Spare parts, standby equipment and servicing
equipment are recognized 0 property, plant and squipment when they meet the definition of proparty, plant and equipment.

Capital worl-In-progress is not depreciated os thess asssts ars nat yot available for use,

An item of property, plant and equipmant and any significant part initially recognised iz derecognised upon disposal or whan
no future sconomic banefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on dereeagnition of the asset
(ealculated as the difference betwesn the pet disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the azset) iz included in statement
of profit or loss when the saset iz dereeognised,

The residual values, useful Tlives and methads of depreclation of property, plant and equipmant are reviewed at each finaneial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

ent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
5 recognised for the amount by which the assat's carrying
is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and

Froperty, plant and equipment are reviewad for |
eanying amount may not be recoverabla,
amount exceeds its recoverable amou
value in use.

e AT 29

£ e
Praperty, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for nnn.-rn;-m?n. assets or a combination of monetary snd non-
monetary assols are measurod at (i balio of the new asset, If the fairivalue cannot be dotormined relinbly, then the
exchangod asset is moasured at th carrying ameunt of the “/m givenjup,
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2§ Intangible nexots

Intangible assuts acquired sepa rately are measured on initial recognitian at cost, Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and secumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
Intangibles, exeluding capitalised develapment costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in staternent
of profit or loss in the pariod in which the exponditure is incurrad .

ef consumption of future economic benefits embadied in the asset, ave sccounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methadalogy, as approprinte, which are then treated a3 changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation eXpEnded on
intangible assuts with finits lives i presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss,

Amartization for intangible assets with definite uxeful lives ix caleulated using the straight-line method to allacate their cost
lozs residual values over their estimatad ugeful lives as follows:

Adsot class Useful life in years
Networl licenses 6-8

Softwares &-8

i) Network licenses

Separately acquired network licenees are shown at historical cast, Licences acquired in a business combination ars
recognised at fair valua at the acquisition date, Licenees have a finite useful life and are cacried at cost less sccurula ted
amorisation. Amortisation is caleulated using the straight-line mothod to allocate the cost of trademarks and liconces over
their estimated useful lives,

Telecommunication ligense fuux are capitalised at cast and amaort ized over the perlod of the license using the straight-line
method from eommencement of the service of the network.

Network licences are reviewad for impairment whenever events or changes in cireumstances indicate that the carrying
imaunt may not be recovarable. An impalrment loss iz recognised for the amount by which the agsat's carrying amount
uxceeds its recoverable amount

i) Sofhwares

Softwares comprises softwares purchased from third parties as well s the east of Internally developed software, Software
lieences are capitalised an the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring Inta use the specific softwars, Software integral
toan item of hardware squipment is alassified az property, plant and aquipmant,

Casts axsociated with Mmaintaining seftware programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred,

2k Impairment of non-financial assots

Intangibla assets that have an indefinite useful life are nat subject to amortisation and are testad annually for impairment, or
more fraquently if events or changes in of ,umnmmqq ate that they might be impaired. Other asdéts are tested for
impairmeat whenever svents or chan uftl'.rf githy ll‘i:qliiﬁlgm that the carrying ameunt may ot be recoverable, An
impairment loss is recognised for th -’gnw'ug tbY whichthe assets carrying amount sxcaeds its rucovarable amount.

—
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Leuses
The Enterpise as a lesses

The Enterprise lnases various offices, warehouses, retall shops, equipment and vehiclos, Rental eantracts are typically made
for fixed poriods of 6 months ta 1§ years but may have extension/termination aptions. The extenstion aptions range botween
8 Yeara to 10 vears,

Contracts may contain both lease and non-leasa components. The Enterprise allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and nan-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. Howaver, for leases of real estate for which
the Enterprise is a lessee, it has olected not to saparate loase and non-lease components and instead aecounts for thesn as a
single leaze companent,

Leass termz are negatiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of diffsrent terms and conditions. The loass
Agresinents do not impose any covenants other than the seciirity interests in the leased assats that are held by the lessor.

Lease labilities

Lease linbilities include tha net present value of the following lanss paymants:

i) fixed payements (ineluding In-substance figed payments), less any lease incentives recaivabls

ii) variabl lease payment that are based an an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or Fate as at the
commencement date

lii) amounts expected t be payable by the Enturprise undur residual value guarantoes

iv) the exercise price of 3 putchise option if the Enterprise is reasenably certain ta exercige that optian, and

¥) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease torm reflects the Enterprise exercising that option,

The lease paymants are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lesza, 1f that rate cannat be readily determined,
which is generally the easa for léazes in the Enterprise, the lossee's incremental barrowing rate is used, baing the rate that the
individual lassee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an sssat of similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions, The discounting rate applied by the
Enterprize is 10% p.a which 5 assumed to be a representitive of the Enterprise’s incrementil borrowing rate,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finanee east. The finance cost ia charged to profit or loss over the lease
period 50 as to produce a constant periodle rate of interest an the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Payments associated with short-term leasns of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets gre tecognised on a
straight-line basis a5 an expense In profit or lass. Short-term leases are lenses with n lanza térm of 12 manths or less without a
ptchase option, Low-value assets comprise equipment and small items of offics furnitire,

Right of use agsef

Right-of-use assets are measurad ot cast comprising the follawing:

) the amount of the Initial maasurement of lease liability

ii} any leass payments made at or before the fommencement date less any lease incentives receivad
ifl}any initfal direct costs, and

1¥) restaration costs,

Restorations costs relate to estimate of costs to ba incurred by the lessen in dismantling and removing the underlying azset,
restoring the site on which it is located op festoring the underlying assot to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the leasw, The provision far the restoration costs is recognised a3 separate liability from lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are gonera lly depraciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a atenight=line
bagis. If the Enterprise s reazonably certain to exereise 3 purchase option, the right-af-uss asset iz depreeiated over the
underlying asset's useful life, The Enterprise applies IAS 36 - Impaitmant of non-current axsats on the right-of-use asset the
#ame way as in proparty, plant and eq ulptnant,

Leare terin - axtonsion ongd termination options

In determining the lease term, managem tslites/iN. fyetiand circumstances that create an woonomie incentive ta
EXercise an extension optien, or not ex rindtion _,gﬁffiu “Extension options (or periods after termination options)
atoonly included in the lease term if

Leise pnyments to be miade under reasonabl rtaimextansion optiens are alse included in the measurement of the lability,
%EWE L
nlﬁaim

be extended (or not termitnatod).
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Reassesxsment of lease terins and lease madifications that are not aceounted for as a separate lease

be made over the revised term, which are discounted at the applicable rate at the date of reassessment ar modification. The

carrying amount of lease lability is aimilarly revisud when the variable element of future lease payments dependont on a rate
or indey iz revised,

For reassessments to the lease terms, an equivalent adjustment iz made to the carnrying amount of the right of use asset, with
the revised carrying amount being depraciated over the revised lease term. However, if the carrying amount of the right of
use asset is reduced to zero any further reduction in the measurement of the leaze liability is recognised in profil or loss.

For lease modifications that are not aceounted for as A separate leass, an equivalent adjustment is made to the citrying
amount of the right of use asset, with the revised carrying amount being depreciated over the revised lease term, However,
for lease modifieations that decrease the scope of the lease the carrying amount of the right of use asset is decreased to raflect
the partial or full termination of the leane, with any resulting differoncs being recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss
relating ta the partial or full termination of the lease.

Lease modifications that are aceounted for as o separate lease

When the Enterprise modifies the tarms of 1 lease remulting in an increase in seope and the eansideration for the lease
increasus by an amount commensurate with a stand-alone price for the increnss in scope, the Enterprise accounts for thess

The Enterprise initially estimates and recognises amounts éxpocted to be payable under residual value guarantees as part of
the luase liability, At the end of sach reparting period, the expected residual values are reviewed to ruflect actual residual
values achisved on comparable assets and expectations ahaut futurs prices,

Short term lease and low value assets

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of law-value assets ara recognisid on a stralght-line basis ag an
expense in profit or loss. Short-torm leases arw leases with » laass term of 12 months or less without a purchase eption, Low-
valun agsets comprise IT equipment and amall items of office furniturs,

The Enterpize as a lessor

Whien the Enterprise acts as » lessor, it determines at lease commencement each lease iz a finanes lease or an uparating lease.

To classlfy vach lease, the Enterprise makes an overall assessment of whether the |sase transfers to the lessee substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership incidental to the ownership of the underlying azset. If this is the cane, the leass is a finance
lease; if not, then the leasw is an operating lease. As part of this asyessment, the Enterprise considers certain indicators such
as whether the lease is for a majar part of the ¢conomie life of the asser,

Ifan arrangement econtains lease and non-lease companents, the Enterprise applies IFRS 15 to allseate the consideration in

the contract. The Enterprise recognizes loase pa under operating lonses as incame on a straight-line basis
aver the leage term as part of other income, At APh ™
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2m  Inventorios

Inventories consist of handaets, SIM cards, seratch cards, modemas,
conneetivity. Netwark maintenanee spares that do nat meet criteria

Inventaries are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable vilup,
coit of inventaries comprises purchase price and ather incidental

dongles and other apparatus required for netwark
for capitalisation are included as part of inventories,

Cost |5 determined by the weighted average method. The
costs. Met realisable value is the estimate of the selling price

and other incidental casts.

a.n Employes benafits
z.n(i) Short-tarm abligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, snnual leave and aeeumulating sick leave that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees rendar the related servien
are recognised in respact of emplayess’ services up ta the end of the reparting period and are maagured at the ameunts
expected to be paid when the liabilltles are sttled, Non monetary benefits include handsets, gifts/rewards, medical and
communication benefits and cars for management staff. The labilitics are presented as cureent emplayes benefit obligations
in the statement of financlal pasition,

Bonus plans

The Enterprize racognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Enterprise recognises a provision where contractual ly
obliged ar where thers ix a past practics that has created a constructive obligation,

2.nliiy Other long-term amployes bengfit obligations

Other long term obligation that are not expectad to be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are measured as the present value of expected future paymants to be made in
reapect of services provided by employsas up to the énd of the reporting period using the prajected unit credit mothod,
Consideration is given to expacted future wage and salary levels, sxperience of employss departures and pariods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporata
bands with terms and ourrencies that match, as clasely as possible, the satimated future eash autflows. Remeasursmants as 5
result of experionce adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or lass.

The obligations are prasanted as currant liabilities in the statement of financial position if the Enterprize does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlemant for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of whon tha actual
sattlement ix expected to seeur,

2.n(lii) Post-employment obligations

The Enterprise operates various post-sm ploymeant schemes, including defined contdbution pension plans and defined
benefit post-smployment medical plans. Refer to Note 10 for further details,

The liability recognised in the statement of finaneial position in respeet of defined benefit pension plans is the pressnt value
of the defined banefit obligation at the end of the reporting period, The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by
Independent actuaries using the projected unit credit methad,

The present value of the defined banefit abligation Is determined by diseounting the estimated future cash outllows using
interest rates of 2ero-coupon government bond yield curves,

The intereat cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined bunefit obligation. This cost is
included a5 employos defined contribution expensa in operating expanses,

Remedsiroment gaing and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognlsed
in the period in which they oeeur, directly in other comprehensive income,

Changes in the present value of
recopnized immediately (n p ;FH_\ P“WF_
[ Lt

s,

For defined contribution p ﬂ_f?ﬂl* ferprise pays cantributions ta publicly administered pension insurance plans an a
mandatory, eantractual o eluntary basis. The Enterprise sk no further paymunt obligations ance the contributions have
been paid. The contributigns 'url'rfnﬁgh ized as umpIJ\-qé beangfit expense when they are due, Prepaid eontributions are
recognised as an anset to the extent that o eash raﬁmﬁfnprn i

. 3 - 2
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Other post-employment obligations

Thé Enterprise provides communication benafits, farewell benefits, funeral benefits, medical benafits and Bereavenent
Benefit to their retivees s below,

= Communication benefits
The Enterpeise provides communication banefits for lks retiring employees, The communication benefit is dependant on the
retiring employes's position us at the time of retiremant,

= Farewell benafits
Upan retirement, early retirement ar voluntary retirement, the Enterprise pays an employee monetary award of Ethioplan
Birr 20,000, Additionally, the Enterprise arrangen a farewall function and the retiting employes racaives an Enterprise pin,

= Funeral benzfita
In the avent of the death of the employee, the surviving family of the smployee ia entitled to 3 months' salury, subject to a
minimum of Ethiopian Birr of 15,000, An additional oash benefit of Ethiopian Dirr of 20,000 is payable in respeet of the
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Exscutive Officer on the daath of a fiest level fa mily member.

- Gratuity benafita
The gratuity benefits are based on the severance benefits as outlined by the Ethlapian Labour Proclamation ar7/2003. Upon
retirement of an #mplayee who has been in service for more than 8 years, or death in service if the emplayee has batween 5 to
10 yeara in service, the Enterprise pays out 3o daya of salary for the first year of servies and 10 days of salary for each year of
service after the first year, to o maximum of una year's salary,

= Fost Retirement Medical Aid benefits
Upan retirement, early retirement or voluntary retirement, the Enterprisa provides i00% loeal treatment and 95% local
medicine coverage the retiress for life available at ethio telecom clinics,

* Bereavemant Support Benefit
Ethio telecom formad a fund which iz named 0a "ET Edir Assistance and support Association through colleeting ETB 30 fram
the monthly salary of the voluntary employess, The purposs of the fuid is to provide support and assistance to the survival
family during the death of emplayee. In the svent of the death of the employes, the surviving family of the emplayas is
entitled to get an amount which is equal to one third of the total maonthly contribution made by the members as at the event
(death) happened. The benafit will be pald to the survival family of the employes, weather the emplayee contributed ar not
the amount to the Association fund 5o fa.

The entitlement to these banefits (s usually eonditional on the employes remaining in service up to retirement age and tha
campletion of a minimum serviee pariod. The expected eosts of thess benefits are noerued over the period of employmaent
uging the same aceaunting methodology a4 used for defined benefit pension plans. Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience ndjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or erndited to equity in other comprehensive
ineama in the pariod in which they arise. These obligations are valued annually by independant qualified actuaries. Refer to
Nate 19 for details on the valuation techniques and assumptions applied,

2.n{iv) Termination benafits

Termination banefits are payable when emplayment is terminated by the Enterpriss before the normal retirement date, or
when an employee aceapta voluntary redindancy In exchange for thess benefits, The Enterprise recognises termination
benefits at the earlior of the following dates: (a) when the Entarprise can no longer withdraw the offer of thess benefits: and
{b) when the Enterprise recognises costs for restructuring that is within the seape of 1AS 37 and involves the payment of

2.0 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there {5 a ressonable assurance that the grant will ba
received and the Enterprise will comply with all attached conditions,

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in profit or loss over the pariod necedsary to mateh them
with the casta that thay are intended to compensate.

(]

Government grants relating to the purchase of prope _'_-;lnhﬂm '”‘nig!mnt arw included in non-eurront labilities 35 granta
and they are credited to profit or loss on 4 utrnlghf-; ‘Eu_nnls mgﬂ;’ xpécted lives of the related assets.

r 1 .

Foh ket

The Enterprise has recoived froehold land businesstise from thé Goyerfmint of the Federal Democratie Rapublic of

Ethiopia which in also the sole owner of th lorprise, Non-monetary governient grants such as freehold land are

reconlsed as both an asset and capital conlribution at 2 nominal amoyn. ©
. big o

The Enterprise accounts for the banefit aris ‘fr;‘a‘Fp below-market h.uifzg'ﬂ'oﬂ

i3 government geants, Such loans are recogn e and measured in ateordance with IFRS g Financial Instrumanta, The

bonafit of the bolow-market rate of interest is hﬁ:IHr:a anthe dlmnﬂnguhgtmn the initial carrying value of the loan

'H,‘__‘_-

determined in aceordance with [FRS g and the P r’énilm R

mment or government related institutions
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Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the aequisition, construction or praduction of a
qualifying nsset are capitalised during the period of time that s required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use o sale. Qualifying asseta are assets that necexsarily takie s substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use ar
Zils,

Investment income earned on the temparary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets 14 deduated from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrewing costs are expensed in the period in
whieh they are incurred,

Frovisions

The Enterprise recagnises provisions when all the following conditions are mat;
* there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as s result of a past avent;
- it iz prabable that an cutflow of resources embadying economic benefits will ba required to settle the obligation; and
- a relinble estimate can be made of the ameunt of the obligation,

Provisions related to logal claims, restoration codls, service warranties and other similar obligations of uncertain timing or
ameunt, Provisiens are not recognised for future operating losses,

Where there are o number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in xettlsment is determined
by considering the elass of obligationz as o whale, A provision ix recognised avan if the likelihood of an outflow with respact
to any one item included in the same elass of obligations may be small.

Provislons are measured at the present valua of managemant's best estimate of the sxpenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reparting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
refleets current market assessments of the tima value of money and the risks specific ta the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passnge of time is recognised ad interest expanya,

The Enterprise accounts for the costs associated with dismantling and ramoving network infrastructure assets and taturning
A nutwork infrastructure site operated under a lease to its original eandition upen termination of the network infrastructure
site lease in accordancs with IAS i8.

A restoration pravision Ia recorded based an the best watimate of the average restoration costs (being the future costs relating
ta dismantling and remaving property, plant and equipment and restoring each sita) multiplied by the number of sites for
which the Enterprise has a restarstion obligation, This s then discounted ta the present valua of the sbligation.

Current income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the cursent period’s taxable income based an the
applicable income tax rate for Ethiopia adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liahilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unussd tax lazsas,

The current income tax charge is ealoulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting perlod in Ethiopia, where the Enterprise operates and ge taxable income (Proclamation number 979/2016 =
Fuderal income Tax Proelamation dated fith July 2016 effective an 1 July 2016 and Proclamation numbser 9fi5/2016 - Fedaral
Tox Administration dated 2o August 2016).-Mansgament periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax mglémn iw#ilbjget f.interpretation,
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2.5  Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liabi lity methad, on temparary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, Deferred income tax Is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enactad ar substantially enacted by the end of the reporting piriad and are expected to apply
when the related defarred incomae tax assst is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferted tax assets are recopnised anly if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utiligs those
temporary differences and lodses,

Realiged foreign eurranoy exchange losses incurred during a year are carried forward indafinitely to affsst against realised
fareign currency exchange gaing in future years, The Enterprise does not recognise deferred tax assots relating to the realised
foreign currency exchange losses unless it is likely that foreign curreney exchange gains will ba realised to offset the losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ara offset when thers is o legally enforceable right 1o offiet current tax assets and labilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to tha same taxation authority, Current tax assats and tax liabilities are offast
where the Enterprise has a legally enforceablo right to offset and intends uither ta settle on a not basis, or to realise the azset
and settle the liability simultaneously,

Current and defereed tax i recognised in profit or loss, excapt to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also racoghised in other comprehensive income o directly
in equity, respactivaly.

3 Critical aceounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncerininty

The preparation of the Enterprise’s financial statements ruguires managemant to make judgemants, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reparted smount of revenuns, expenses, assots and liabilities, and the Enterprise's disclosures, as
well as the disclasure of contingent liabilitics. Uneertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying ameunt of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

As disclosed in Mote 4, other disclosures relating to the Enterprise’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
« Capital management
*+ Financial risk managament and palicies

In the process of applying the Enterprise's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

3.4 Revente recognition - allocating the transaction price

The Enterprise enters inte contracts with customars for the provision of telecommunication services . These services are
normally seld individually but from tieme to ti me, these products are grouped together and sold to cuslemers as a bundla at n
discounted price.

Biecause sueh contracts include several performance obligations, the transaction price must be allocated to the performance
obligations on a relative stand-alany selling price basiz, Managemuont estimates the stand-alone salling prices at contract
incaption based on observable prices of the good and or services likely to b pravided and the goods and er services rendered -
in similar eircumstanees to similar eustamers, 1f a discount is granted, it is allocated 1o both performance obligatiois based

on theit relative stand-alone selling prices,

Reuvenue rocognition - average customer tife

Management applies judgemant in estimating average customer life. Average estimated life of a customer is determined as
total gross customer disconnections in the period-dividod by the average total customars in the period, The Enterprise
receives payments of subseriptions fo_;;m;?li,lhf’.ﬁﬁﬂmc, afid data services for which performance obligations are fulfilled
Over 4 years, 6 years and 3 yoars resgeetive y.for céllégtiony starting from July o1, 2021, The Enterprisos uses average
customer life in aceounting for re nu _fm_l!jnpmm& Umg' 521 isions, connection, Installation, reconnection services over
tima, L & 7 - = B

ki
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Leases - determ ining right af use and lvase Hability
Critical judgemants requited in the application of IFRS 16 includes the fallowing:

* Identifying whether a contract (or part of o eantract) ineludes a lease;
- Determining whether it is rensonably certain that an extension o termination option will be exerclsed;
- Classification of lease agreements {when the entarprise (s o lessor);
- Dotermination of whether variable paymants are in-substance fixed;
- Establishing whether thare are multiple leases in an arrangEment:
* Datermining the stand-alane solling prices of lease and non-lease COMpPanEits,
‘- Determining the lcase term,

Praperty, plant and equipment

The depreciation charge for property, plant and squipment is derived using estimates of its expected useful life and sxpactad
residual value, which are reviewed annually, Increasing an asset's expected life or residual value would reault in a reduced
depreciation charge in the statement of profit or logs,

Managemant determines the useful lives and residual values for assets when they are acquired, based on experience with
similar assets and taking into aceount other relevant factors such a3 any expected changes in technology, The depreciation
tates used are set out in Note 3,

Fost-employment benafits

Management uses estimatas whan determining the Enterprise’s liabilities and expensges arising for defined bonefit schemas,
Management is required to estinuate the future rates of inflation, aalary increases, discount rates and longevity of membars,
each of which may have a material impact on the defined benefit obligations that are recorded. Further details, including a
aonsitivity analysis, are ineluded in Note 19 to the flnancial statements,

Impairment on financial axzata

The loss allowanees for financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. Tha
Enterprise uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, bazed on the
Enterprise’s past history, existing market conditions as wall us forward loaking estimates at the end of ench reporting period,
Detalls of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed In Note 4 to the financial statements.

Income tax and deferved tax assets / liabilitics

Defetred tax assets ara recognised for unused tax losses to the extant that it is probable that taxabla profit will be available
againat which the losses can ba utilised. Realised forelgn eurrency exchiange losses ineurrud during a year are carried forward

tax assets that can be recagnised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits tagether with future tax
planning strategies.

Provizions and contingent Habilitics

Management exnrcizes judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent labilities related
to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subjict to negotiated settlement, madiation, arbitration or gevernment
regulation, as well s othar continigent labilitiea lmmﬁﬂ,l‘“d" Mate 28 to the finaneial statements. Judgement is
pecisary to assoss the likelihood that a pendifig.olaim wi]lsyicerd, or a liability will arise, and estimates ara required ta
dotermine the possible range of any fina tht T 3mq:,l-‘;‘)llz‘-ﬂ;|h nt uncertainty of such matters means that actual logses
may materially differ from estimates, /3 -.-F"“ — :
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4 Financial risk management

41 Introduction

The Enterprise’s activities expose It to a varinty of financial risks: markat risk (including foruign exchange risk and Interust rate risk), erodit risk
and liquidity risk. The Entorprise’s overall risk managoment programme focuses an the unpredictability of financial markets and secks 1o
minimise potentinl ndverse effecis on its Ainancial performance.

Financial risk management is earried out by the finance division under policies approved by the management board. The management board
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policles covering specific areas such as foreign oxchange risk, interest
Faté risk, eredit risk and investment of excors liquidity.

Categories of financial instruments

The Enterprize has the fall Ang i inl Instr 5 in the statement of financial pazition as at the reporting date;
30 June zozz 3o June 3031
Birr'ooo Birr'noo
Financial assats at amortised coxt Note
Current
Trade receivables 14(b) 590,101 7,367,760
Othet financial assets at amortised cost 14(e) 9,510,752 95,343,168
Notes receivable at amortised cast 16(a) 650,540 3,465
Inveitment securities at amertized cost 16(h) B 338,456
Cash and cash equivalents 17 28,191,1 194,080
127,882,850 118,206,034
Non current
Other financial assets at amortised cost 14(e) 701,635 775060
Nates receivable at amortized cost 16(a) = 497183
1 . 125,831,688
Financial labilities at amortised cost
Curranit
Borrowings 18 6,702,021 #7488
Lease linbilities 12 312,233 195,703
Contract liabilities 20(a) 6,968,700 7311737
Foreign craditors z0(h) 14,602,002 18,450,308
Local ernditors 20(h) 63 1,71
34,250,052 27347014
Non current
Borrawings il 20,478,144 23,806,052
Laase liability i3 19,662 631,685
21,095,806 13,529,737

o
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(i) Fareign axchange risk

The Enterprise is exposed to forelgn vxchange risk arising from various Eurruncy exposures, primarily, with respect to the US dollar, Euro and
Japanese Yen, Foreign exchange risk arises from future commerclal transactions and recognised asawts and linbilitiay,

The Enterprise applies market fareign exehange rates with reference to National Bank of Ethispia, the finaneial institutions rugulator. Foraign
wxchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognized assets or lisbilities gre denominated in a curreney that is not the
enterprise’s functional currency,

The Enterprizs’s EXpuaure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reparting period, expressed jn Ethiopian Birr currency units, was as Tollows;
Exchamge rate as at Jun 30 zoz2 USD=Buying Rate 51.9938 Selling Rate 53,0337, EUR=Buying Rate 54.7339 Selling Rate 558286,
IPY=Buying Rate 0.381 Selling Rate 0.3886

3o June 3023 30 Junzs 3ozi
EUR JPFY UsD EUR JFY
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'oon Birr'ooo
Trade receivables 3,393,804 3,276,540 . g
Cash and cash equivalenes 5,669,760 4,210,506 - -
Trads payablus (14,668,831) (186,558) {1o,.328,157) {97.908) -
Barrowinga 27,269,420 b44  (30,564,202) - {10,128)

Ifthe local currency (Ethiopian Birr) had waakened/atrengthened by 10% against the major forelgn currencies with all other variabls held
canstant, the impact on pre-tax profit and retained earnings would have a3 belaw;

Jo June 2033 30 June 203

Birr'aon Birr'ong

USD/Birr sxchangs rate = increase 10% (2021 - 10%) {19,821,586) (,413,028)

Eura/Birr exchange rate = increase 10% (3021 - 10%) (13,199) (6,fi50)
JFY/Birr exchange rate - incragse 10% (2021 = 10%) (68z) (1)
USD/Birr exchange rate — decrease 10% (2021 - i0%) 19,831,586 2,413,928
Eurn/Birr exchange rate — decrense 10% (2021 - 16%) 131,199 6,858
JP¥/Ibirr exchange rate - decrease 10% {z021- 16%) 682 731

i) Price risk

The Enterprise does not hald investments or securities that would bo subjeet to price risk. The Enterprise is not expased to price risk

(if) Interest Fate risk

Intereat rate risk is the risk that the value of 5 financial instrument will be affucted by changes in market interest rates, The Enterprise's expasure
to Intereat rate risk relates primarily te borrowings at variable eates. Fixed rata borrowings only give rise to intereat rats risk if maasured at fair

value. The Enterprise has no finaneial azets or linbility measured at fair value st the taporting date. Maximum exposure to intarest rate rink are
detailid below ;

ao.June 2oz 30 June pozi
Nate Birr'ooo Birr'ann
Borrawings 18 37,379,065 30,574,540

The sensitivity analysiz for interest rate risk shows haw changes in the fair valus or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate
biecause of changes in market rates at the reparting date. The following table demonsteates the sensitivity of changes in EIR rate with gl ather
variables hald constant ;

3o June zozz 30 June 2oz
Birr'ooo Birr'ogo

Effect on profit before tax with increase in interast rate of 1% 574,1flg 572,069
Effict on profit bofore tax with decrease in interest rate of 1% {574.189) (528,077)

4.3 Crudit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will defaultn its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss The Enterprise is exposed ta credit
risk in reapect of _a-""--\ 2 4 he e
' paymient of trade receivables as i ‘i"*’"‘t“" fﬁjt df": .I;Fﬁn‘un"w and g6 days after bei ng ralsed (Mate 14)
financial usxets with banking ishtititiond (Natet7y
contractual cash Nows of debf ifve; tmigrits and stalFrocoivabl
R el y \ Tor

earried at amortised cost (Nate 14)

Credit risk on trade rocclvables | fnihnqgud by ensuring that creditis extended to custamors with an established eredit history, The eredit histary
is datermined by taking inte accaunt the financial position, phstesperience and other relevant Tactors. Credit is managed by sstting o ervdit limit
and credit periad for each custor r. THE utilisation of the erédif lniits and the credit perlod is monitored by management on g regular hasks.
Management manages credit risk rijlg‘nn'-l_rd:q tr dealer tridudebiofs by imposing guarantes requirements,

by, W, (mp iy 3

aQ o e
o e, “Ffom aain
Credit risk on financial assets with bnfllﬁ'ﬁ;.ﬂ’j@tltutlaﬁ:ﬁii_ﬁ)nh}gud by dealing with institutions with good eredit ratings. The ﬂnterpri_m': dubt

investments are limited 1o government securitES 8eied by the Federal Demacratic Ropublic of Ethjopia,

iz
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For these purpose default management has made an assumption that default oecurs for recejvables invoices outstanding above 360 days for all

prodiiets,

The Enterprise’s recognize lifstime expected loss allowance, The Enterprise groups its financial assets on the banis of shared eredit risk

characteristics, com prised of: postpaid, interconnect, roaming, lensed and dealer.

A findncial asset is credit-impaired when onie or mare svenis that have a detrimental impact on the extimated future cash flows of the financial

azget have oceurred, Evidenee that a finaneial asset is credit im paired Include obsorvable data about the follawi fig evants;

i} significant financiol difficulty of the issuer or the barrawer;
ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

iii) the lender(s) of the borrower, for scanomie or contractual reasans relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted ts the

bartower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

1) it is bacoming probable that the borrowe will enter banleu ptoy or other financial reorganisation;

v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial nsvet bacauae of financial ditficultios; or

vi) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflocts the incurred credit losses.

The Enterprise's groas earrying amount of financial axxuts with exposurs to oradit risk at the reparting dato is as follows:

Fuilly
performing
30 Juns zasz Note Birr'oon
Other financlal agsats at amortised cost 14(e) 09,612,387
Trade receivables 14(b) 6,590,101
Notes racelvable at amartised cont 16(a) 650,540
Cash and cash equivalents 17 28,191,1
134,984,185
3o June 2ogx
Other finaneial assets at amortised eost 14(c) 102,470,730
Trade receivables 14(h) 7,267,748
Nates receivable at amartised coat 6(a) 650,517
Investment securities at amortised cost 16(b) 400,000
Cash and eagh equivalents 17 — ifg36.21

136,025,262

Impaired aver
360 doys
Birr'ooo

2,728,049

4,021,130

- ——

e hiB3L140

Fully parforming assats represents counter parties that are paying theie dus as they fall dus and are operating within their spproved credit
limits. Impairéd financlal assets represents eantractual obligation that are overdue and/or have excecded the appraved eradit limits and ars fully

pravided for.

Greditrisk s managed by the Chief Financa Officer who is responsible for managing and snalysing eredit risk for each new client beforo standad

payment and delivery terms are offered. For financial assets, the following credit visk modelling applies:

The Entecprise considers the prbability of default upon Initial recagnition of asset and whether there has baan a significant increase in cradit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout ench reparting period. Ta assass whether there is a significant Inceeasy in cradit risk the Enterprise
evitipires the risk of a default accurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at tha date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information, Espeeially the follawing indicators are incorporated:

1
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Actunl or expocted zighificant adverse changes in business, financial or sconomic cond) Hona that are cxpected ta cause 3 significant change ta the
borrower's ability to meot itz abligations

“Slgnificant changes in the expocted performance and behaviour of the dubtor, including changes in the payment atatus of debior in the Broup
and changes in the operating results of the debtor

The Enterprise does not grade the cradit quality of recelvables. The utllisation of oredit limits ix in place and regularly manitored,

Mucraecanomic information (such as market interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as part of the internal rating model. Regardless of the
anulysis above, & significant increase in eredit risk is prosumed if a debtor is more than 5o days past due in making a contractual payment. A
default on a financial asaet is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 360 days of when they fall dua,

Financial arsats aré writien off when there is no reasonable expectation of recavery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Enterprise. The Enterprise categorises recoivables for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where receivables have boen written aff, the Enterprise continues to engage in enforcsment activity to attempt to recover the recejvable
dug, Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss,

Contract acquisition costs/deposits and prepayments/ prepaid benofit assets by nature are not subject to credit risk and therafore not subjsct to
axpected eredit losses. Sundry debtors include shart term advances to staff which do not bear credit risk, Expected credit lossas have been
ansessed and recognised for for trade recelvabley, Investment securities at amortised cost and cash and eash aquivalernts,

{0} Trade raceivables

The Enterprise appliss the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring sxpected eredit losses which uses g lifetime mxpected los allowanes far all
tade recelvables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have buen grouped based on shared credit risk charactaristies and the
dys past due. These categories comprise of | postpaid, interconnect, roaming , lesased and dealer

Tha expected loss rates are baged on the payment profiles of sales aver o period batwean 01 Detobar 2017 and 30 June 2022 and the
carresponding historical credit losses axperienced within this period, The histarical loss rates are adjusted o reflect current and famrd-lmjung
infarmation on macroecanomic factars affecting the ability of the customers to settle the tecolvables. The Enterprise has identified the GDP,

foreign currency exchange tate and tha inflation rate to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
wxpected ehanges in these factors,

On that basis, the losa allowance was determined nx follows :

Past due but Impaired
not impaired {Dver 360
ﬂlﬂ!
JoJune pogs
Average probability of default (%) 13% 100%
Average loss given default (%) i Ré%
o June zos;
Average probability of default (%) 2B% 1w00%
Average loss glven default (%) Ba% 8%

Thelaxs allowance provision for trade raceivables reconcilas o the apening lass allowanee for that provision as follows:

JoJune 2032 30 June zozi
Birr'ooo Birr'aoo
Al start of year 4,021,140 340,284

Increase (decrease) in
expeeted eredit Josses

1,253,121 530,856
E.Ealmz A02L140

expected credit lowwos
At the end of the year
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Trade receivables are written off when there is na roasonable expectation of recove
tecavery inelude, amongst othors, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
payments for a period of greater than 360 days past due. Impairment losses on tra

operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the snme line jteim.

{i(} Debt investments af amortised cost

ty. lmlicators that theve is no reasonable expoctation of
plan with the group, and a failure to make contractual
de recelvables dre presented os net impairment losses within

Dobt investments at amortised cost eamprises of investment in government boncls and treasury bills and loans receivablus, Managesment
considers the investments to be low eredit risk since they have a low risk of dofault and the issuer has a strong eapacity to meet ts eontractual
cash flow obligations in the near term, The loss allowance provision for investments at amertised cost reconeiles ta the opening logs allowanee

fof that provision as follows:

Placements with finaneial institutions
Al start of year

Impairment lasses (reversals) for the year
At the end of the year

Notes recalvable
At stait of year
Increase (decrense) in expectad eredit losses

Atthe end of the year

(10} Depasits with financial institutions

Thiz comprise bank balanees with local finaneial instututlons, Commercial Bank of Ethi

a0 June 2023

20 Junhe 2o2i

Birr'oon Birr'ooo
1,544 15,982
(1,544) (14,438)
2 1544
— i
140,850 B,333
i o 141,557
- |-12:55u

opia. Management considers the investmeits te ba low

credit risk since they have & law risk of default and the Issuer has 3 strong eapicity to meet its contractual cash flow ebligations {n the near tarm.
The loss allowance provision far deposits with financial institutions raconeiles to the apening loss allowance for that provision as follows:

At start of yéar
Inerease (decrease) In expected oredit lossis

Atthe end of tha year

Impalrment losses on financial assets is summarised below -

Nate
Impairment losses on trade receivables 14(k)
Impairment lasses on notes recejvable 16(a)
Impairment lasses on placements with nancial institutions 16(b}
Impairiment losses on deposits with financial institutions i7

Total loas allowance under IFRS ¢

AE "rv..,fq:
\,j "r‘_‘lj- g 'f'.e,l '?;f:._ 7\.\

e

kL

30 June gozs
Birr'ooo
43,141
3

— (azaqn)

30 June 2022
Hirr'soo

298 o1g

30 June 2oz

Birr'ooo

23,541

18,600

3o June zozi

Birr'noo

4,021,140
149,890
544
EEREN

E‘ E.Eﬂlﬂis

.

—dTI
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s Telivrnn
St i e fsiiefal shaleimmenis
B the vesr o so e deyes

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Enterprise will not be able to meet its fingneial ohligations as they fall due, Prudest liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash balances, and the availabllity of funding from an adequate smount of committed credit facilitics. Duo to the
dynamie nature of the underlying businoeses, the finance department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under

committed eredit lnes.

Management performs cash flow forecasting and moniter rolling forecasts of the Enterprise's liquidity requirements to snsure it has sufficiont
cash to meet its operational nevds while maintaining sufficient headraom on its undrawn cammitted borrowing facilities at all times so that the
Enterprise does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of ita borrowing facilities. The Enterpriso's approach when
managing liquidity is to ensure, as fur as possible, that it will al ways have sufficlent liquidity to mest its labilitios when o ue, without incurring

unaccoptable losses or risking damage to the Entorprise's feputation.

Th table balow analyses the Enta rprise’s undiscounted financlal liabilities that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings

basad on the remaining perfod at the statemont of financial position date to the contraetual maturity dite,

Less than 1 Between 3 Over 5 years Total Carrying
YeaE and § years amount
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Hirr'ooo Hirr'ooo Birrooo
Al jo June aopg:
Borrawings 7218, 041 5:614,032 13,001,411 26,733,407 27,288,709
Forwign creditors 14,692,992 13,601,002 14,692,992
Loeal creditors 5,563,107 5402107 5,563,107
Cantract liabilities 6,06 6,968,799 6,968,790
34 ,Eim“u - El“?ﬂﬂi 13,958,650 £ ﬁ.'u&!w
At 30 June zozi;
Barrowings 8,287,530 15,844,392 4,608,010 29,719,932 30,574,540
Foreign craditors 10,450,286 - - 10,450,286 10,450,286
Local eruditors 1,713,010 - - 1,713,010 1,713,010
Contract liabilities 711,727 . & ii — 231LTAT
‘Eaﬂﬂchﬂﬂ 16 Hifz ﬁlﬁiﬂlﬁiﬂ 137 2 Eniﬂzﬂlaﬁl
Logs than 1 Buotwean 1 Over § yoars Tatal Carrying
year and 5 years amount
Bir'ooo Hirr‘ooo Birr'voo Birr'onoo Birr'ooo
At 3o June zozs:
Leaxe liability 9,41 615,720 97,228 1allq,360 Ha6,500
At 30 June gozi;
Lease liability 247,514 5OFa71 87,524 942,300 58,000
Capital management
The Enterpriss's abjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Entérprise's ability to continue a5 a gaing concern in order to varn
ruturns and to maiatain an aptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of enpital. The gearing ratios at 30 Juns 3022 and 30 June 2025 were as
follaws:
3o Junc zozs 30 Juna zosi
Az restated
Birr'ooo Birr'noo
Debt {Note 18¢) 28,110,961 11,401,090
Lass: cash and cash equivalents (Note 17} (28,191,157) (15,194,080)
Met dabt (i) {8i,196) mm
Equity (if) 101,554,950 95,277,500
Net dult to equity ratia 110,000 1285.63

(i} Dobt Is defined as linbilities from financ
{ii) Equity comprises of capial, rotained
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Notes o the finaneiol statements
For the vear ended 30 dune s

a0 Juie 2ouas

30 June zoz;

4 Revenuwe from eontracts with customers Birr'son llirr'ooo
The disaggregation of revenue based on timing and nature is a5 below ;
Overtime:
Subscription 17,423,003 2149.949
Traffie Vaice 17,181,366 22,197,074
Traffic Data 1,520,153 582,579
Traffic IP 11,084,438 10,135,578
Traffie Visitor Roaming 937,991 581,248
Interconnact 5725337 5,564,105
Leased Cireuit 224,392 165,062
Hybrid Services 2,889,103 1,551,303
Shart Code (premium SM%) . ;;Ezmusg
55.““3!933 5£3.823,087
Al a point in time;
Mubile Monay Service 5637
Dovices revanue 1,666,176 468,110
Airtime eredit service revenue 7h0,175 707,009
Domain & Web Hosting 10,410
2,462,308 1,678,300

Hﬁﬂ!lﬂ“

Contract acquisition costs and contract liabilities s at Teporting date s aa balow ;
j0.June zoza
BiFr'oan

e 001499,396

30 June aoa

Birr‘ooo

Reconcilliation of movemant in contract acquisition costs arising from revenus from contracts with customers:

&

Eaginning 58,454 0,626
Additions in the period 27,623 36,930
Recognised ax Expense L

Balaniee at the end of the vear

ﬂ

Reconeilliation of movement in contract liabilities arising from revenue from

— Al

contracts with customers:

Baginning 7,311,727 7438510
Additions in the perind 41,505,050 40,907,838
Recognised as revenue B 1,0
Balance at the and of the year

6068790 __ 781720

The Enturprise recognised impairment losses of Birr as at
from financlal nasets arising from revenus from contracts

7

a0 .June 2022 2,728 019 {2031 ; Birr 4,021,140)
with customers,

Expenses by nature 30 June zozz a0 June 2om1
Hirr'ooo Birr'ooo
6(n) Direct costs
Network acenss costs 2,260,921 1,863,577
Hetwork maintenance and support costs 1,778,081 1,786,396
Handset and other devices costs 4,300,664 H6,203
Purchase of materials 1 6

2,857,036

& 212
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Nodes to the fincneiol statements
For the vear ended o dune aogwas

é(b) Operating expenses

Employee benefits exponzs
Commission

Sundry Exponse

Travelling

Rant

Utilities

Malftenance

Other operating expenses

30 June 2033

3o June 2021

Kirr'ooo Birr'ooo
0,449,458 539,207
5890844 7507005
2,362,574 2,024,142
471,423 492,418
435,960 sBram
407,144 329,037
450,048 273,466
1,500,678 G676 208
ED|BZIIIEE Iaﬂ:liﬂﬂ

Othet aporating expenses include costs incurred for advertisement & publicity, stationary, entertalnment and
refreshments, uniforms, fuel, insurance, teaining, audit fees, land and building tax and lagal provisians.

7 Employes banefits expense

The lallawing items are included within emplayes banefits expense:

Short term employee benefits :

Salaries and wagss 5,388,384 4,249,165
Mlgwances 1,933,497 1,220,040
Bonux 911,145 71001
Ovartime 352,792 564,647
Leave and haliday pay 198,708 256,505
Staff medical cost 13,262 10,405
Stafl loan benefit cost 19,235 .90z
Stalf eommilssions 134 501
Othar staff benefits 13,519 4,120
Employee defined contribution expensa 490,376 390,u8
9,321,143 432,492
Long term employee benofits §
Employss defined bansfit sxpense 128,314 ab,715
et 439,457 7:520,207
8 Other income {expenza)
Gains from sale of property, plant and aquipment 115,114 71,360
Write (dewn) or writeback on inventory {596,394) 05,017
Write (back)/off of differences on property, plant and equiprm et 508,613 {786,604)
Grant income - -
Sundry expanss 24,901 5515
Bundry income #12,768 283,538
— G0 2,20
9 Finanece income / {cost)
Finance income
[ntéreat income Bz.458 223052
82 458 222,052
Finance costs
Interest expanges (B886,201) (918,603}
Other finance charges {258,211) {636,773)
Mot foreign exchange lonses {5886 Hgg 8,615 &b
(7.030,0907 (10,191,841)

Finanee costs - net

T

- -
AN AThe ™
£ o PRy

WA i
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Notes to the financtal statcments
P the vear cindedd so B o

10 Current income and deferred tax

10(a)  Current income tax
Current income tax
DBeferred income tax/{eredit) to prafit or loss
Current tax of priar periods

Tatal income tax charge to profit or loss
Income tax (credit) on other comprehensive income

Tatal current income tax expene in statement of profit or loss and
other comprehénsive income

1w{b)  Reconeciliation of effective tax io alatutory tox

" 3o Junczozz 34 June zozi
Birr'oon Birr'ooo

9.343.724 7.878.867

(1.967.997) (234,336)

L458.504

8,834,321 6,044,511
27,473 29,0608

8,861,704 Gﬂﬂﬂgﬁ

The tax on the Enterprise’s profit before income tax differs from the thearatical amount that would arise using the

atatutory ineoma tox fate as follows:

Frofit before tax

Tax ealeulated at applicable incame tax rate of 30% (2017:30%)
Tax effect of:

[ncome not subject to tax

Expensms not deductible for tax

Current tax of prior perjods

Tax charge due to defarred tax

Incofie tax EXpense

Expenses nat deductible for income tax mainly include the following:

Depraciation of property, plant and equipment
Amartization intungible assets

Write (down) or writebaek an Inventory

HNet impairment lanses on finaneial aszata

Mat foreign exchange losses

10 ()  Currentincome tax liability
Balance at the baginning of the year

Income tnx sxpense
Fayment during tho yoar

Balanies at the end of the yen

jo Junezozz 30 June zoz:

Birr'ooo Birr'aoa
17,833,902 13,597,758
5:350,171 3,758,327
(5.182,794) (2,658,084)
9,176,347 6,778 Gag
1,458,504 5
(1.940,524) (gog.271)

Ilﬂil‘zzi Glazzﬁgﬂ

sodJunezozz g0 June 2o0zi

Hirr'ooo Birr'ooeo
(s.718,502) {5.488,176)

(573.801) {623,141)
(596,304) 6,017
271,868 Fi5.997
(5,886,550) (8,624,528)

30 June aoaz Ao June 2031

Rirr'ooo Birr'ooo
0,534,772 7497080
0,343,724 #B70.867

— (2932308) _ (8B41a81)
7.94 fi,1 27 n.ﬁisﬂl
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Notes do the financial statenents
Fow il v ol s e iy
wid]  Deferred ineome tag

Deferred inconie tat assets are recognised only ta the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be avallable
igainst which the tomporary differences can be utilised,

do June 2022 30 .June zogi

Birr'ooo Birr'aoo
Défarred tax asset 1,931,220 1,990,607

1,934,220 1,990,697

=

-

10(n)

Deferred income tax asxets and linbilities, deferred income tax chatge/(eradit) in profit or loss ("B/L), in equity and other
comprehensive income are attributable to the following items:

Credit/  Credit/ (charge) to joJune
Deferred incoms tax At 1 July {charge) to aquity aogg
ussats/(linbilities)) 2021 F/L
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Hirr'ooo Hirr'ooo
Praperty, Plant and Equipment 24,814 1,560,925 1,635,239
Intangible assuts (341,620) {29,464) {371,084)
Right of use assets {2g5.612) 7,232 (288,379)
Investment ancurities at amortised cost 195,463 {463) 195,001
Notes receivable at amortized cost {150,194} {44,968) {195.10m)
Inventaries 1,165,823 186,250 1,352,082
Other axsets 88,233 (20,07%) 59,148
Other financial agsets at amortised east (35.790) 21,632 {14,159)
Trade recelvables 112,655 (151,549) {a8,800)
Cash and cash equivalents i3,119 (12,642) (523)
Defined benefit ebligations 194173 46,107.52 (27.473) 212,808
Barrowings KR ED) {101,873) (08, 748)
Lease liahilities 238,217 1,352 239,500
Contract liabilities 85,138 56,376 133,514
Trade and ather payables 617,558 444,658 1,062,216
Provisions 15,317 14,103 29,420
Grants 183 {14} 169

Total deferred tax sxxots/(liabilitias) 1,990,697 1,067,597 (27,473) 2931220

Credit/  Credit/ (charge) to 30 June
Deferrod income tax At 1 July {charge) 1o aquity 2ozl
asseta/(liabilities): 2020 B/L
i 1
Birr'ooo Bire'ooa Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
Froperty, Plant and Equipment (1,478,293) 1,853,207 74.914
Intangible azsais (561,2605) 219,646 (341,620)
Right of use pssets (a24,777) {70,835) {295.012)
Investment securities at amortised cost 199,795 {4,332) 195,463
Hates receivable at amortised eost -1920659.4 42,4465 {150,194)
Inventories 1460,481 (294,658) 1,165,823
Other assets 78,763 2,461 88,233
Diher financial assets at amortised east {63.094) 2l 204 (38.990)
Trade recojvablea 110,762 1,457 113,655
Cash and cash equivalents 539 5.580 12,119
Dufined benefit ahligations 194,224 29,014 {29,005) 194,173
Narrowings 43,016 (40,700) 3,126
Leaze liabsilitios 197,023 50,304 248,217
Contract liabilitics afin,638 (894.497) 86,130
Trade and nther payablos 333,23 294.336 817,550
Privisions 9.958 5,358 15,317
Grants 197 {14} 183
Total deferred t 934,336 tug.uw 1,990,607

R L i = o
The Enterprise has obrecognised deforred tax asseld rdlating to the realiscd foreign currency exehange losses as at 0
dune 3023 amaunting to Hrr 32,996,251 (20211 Bire 47109, 701) ax it is unlikely that forelgn eurroncy exchinge gains
will be realised to affset the realised foreign cu rieyesehange loxses. The realized foreign currency exchange losses may
result to deforred t -iE-_uty in the futurgat a tax rate bi30% if the Enterprise realises fo roign cureency exchange gains.
b o " ¥

-

40
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Ethio Telecom
Notes o the Anancial statemoents
Forthe veawr ended 30 dune s

13 Leases
i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:
30 June aooz 30 June 203,

Birr 'aoo’ Birr 'ooo’
Right of use asset

Froperties 01,266 985,374
Lease liability
Current 312,233 !9.'..?13:'3
Mon-¢urrent 513,662 6316
Bi'l..Ezi Bzg E!'g
i) Right of use assets ao June zoa3 30.June zozi
Birr 'ooo’ Birr ‘ooo’
Balance at start of the year 985,373 749,256
Additions in the year 199,830 426,207
Remeasurement of Right of uge asset 118,464 51,632
1,303,667 1,227,006
Depreciation expense (342,402) (241,722)
Balance at end of the yoar 061,266 985,373
-———h::m

it} Lease liability

Balance at start of the year 827,390 650,740
Additions in the year 191,474 419,228
Remeasurement of lease lability 130,454 A8.690
Interest expense 86,451 72,569
1,235,768 1,210,227
Repayments in the year (403,871) (182,837)
Balance at end of the year #31,8 B27,3090

iv) Amounts recognised in the statement of prafit or loss

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amaounts relating to leases:
30 June 20232 30 June 2oz21

Birr ‘000’ Rirr 'ooo’
Depreciation charge right-of-use assats ; 342,402 241,732
Interest expense included in finance costs under Naote g o 86,951 72,560
ST AT 433.533 314,291

u)  Amounts recognised in the statements af cash flows i “Mng

wil® A ex

Cash generated from aperations - Interest paid

(86,451) (72,569)
Cash genevated from financing activities - lease payments

(317.921) (310,268)




il Telocoin
Sutes to the finaneial stitemaents
For the voar ended 30 nne aoae

13 Intangible assets

At 1 July 200

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2oz
Opening net book value
Reclassifications from WIP
Additions

Amortisation charge

Closing net book value

At 30 June zoz

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

Year ended 30 June 2031
Opening net book value
Reclassifieations from WIp
Additions

Amortisation charge

Closing net book value

At 30 June zoza

Cost

Accimulated amortisation
Net book amount

Network Boftware Total
licenses
] 3
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'asoo
285,329 3,947,903 4,233,232
(224,996) (2,055,108) (2,280,105)
0,333 1,893,793 1,953,127
60,333 1,892,704 1,953,127
935 235
23,388 23,388
(23,373) (599,768) {623,141)
36,050 4,317,349 1,354,309
285,329 3,973,225 4,257,554
(248,370} (2,654,876) (2,003,246)
Eﬁlﬂﬁ‘ﬂ 1,317,349 liﬂﬁ-‘hEﬂQ
36,059 1,317,349 1,384,300
359,620 320,043 680,563
114,459 32,001 147,360
104) ) (573,881
430,735 1,171,61 1, nﬂ,un
769,400 4,326,060 5.085,478
(322,674) (3,154,453) (3,477,127)
436,735 1,171,616 1,608,350

-FF\'E A ymy, ™=

i ez
s el 3 ‘P:“.r',.' '.J:,N
S R =
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ihin Telovem
Notes to the finaneial statements
For the viar ended g0 June 2020

13a) Other nssets

30 Juie 2033 30 Juhe 303;
Birs" Birr'ona

Contract acquisition costs 62,162 58,454
Depaosits and prepayments 2,060,246 1,715,363
Fropaid benafit assets 7,145 25,302
Sunelry debtora 337,097 463,700
2,366,640 2,261,819

Current 2,366,469 2,254,973
HNon-Current 171 6,046
2,366,640 nlnﬁl.ﬂ 9

Contract acquisition costs relates to customer applications eommissions and dealers upfront commissions settled in

advance. Daposits and prepayments mainly relate to advances pald te suppliers,

a0 June 20232

20 June Tom1
Az restated
Birr'ooo

11,288,900
(4,021,140

Tilﬁmﬂ

3,490,284

530,856

Birr'ooo
14(b)} Trade receivables
Trade receivables g.a58,120
Lesz: Provision for impairment losses (2,728,019)
f.530,101
Movement on impairment losses on trade is as follows:
Al start of year 4,021,140
Impairment losses for the year (1,293:121)
2,728,019

1.‘}3]‘1:5

Till the end of 2020, Bitr f27,817 for ethio telecom's office telephone service for operational use has bean erroneoisly
recorded a5 receivably instead of expense for this error an adjustment has been done to correct the wrongly stated

recoivable balance,
14(c) Other financial assets at amortised cost

30 June zozz

a0 June 20631
A=n restated
Birr'ooo

rr'ooo
Staff recelvablas 47,104
Advance to Minstry of Finanes 7,101,156
Recelvable from MoF far Paid up Capital fulfillment 2,464,0

99,012 387

119,299
7,101,156
250,201

102,470,736

Included in staff receivablos are staff martgage, holiday and other loans and advances to the Enlérprise's Staff.

The loans are secured by the staff's terminal benefits, Management has asseased the attrition rate for permanent staff as
beit low, A such, the loss given default for staff loans is deemed to be low and consequently the expectad credit losses as

95,543,108
7,127,568

102,470,736

a0 June 2031

ler‘nﬂg

Immaterial.
Current —
Non-Current e o
99,612 387
15 Inventories :IﬂJ'unle 2?“
Hirr'ooo
;“u::nn::f;ﬂrcinl inventories . ﬁ;ﬁmﬁﬁ 5id2d

1.127,631
4,802,773

5:442,994
6 30 EEL]

% ot :

¥ I F R
Commeteial inventorivs are meang for sale to customers and inel yg
dongles, Non commicrcial inventdries eonsists of consumablos and s

do not mest criteria for capitalisation as property, plant nndlhqui'pm?nl.

Write (down) or writeback of inven O‘H .H"!P net realisable value in the year amounted to Birr for 2022 (620,863)
nised a3 ather expense/incoine in the statoment of profit or loss in the
#

{zoz1 = Birr 65,017). Those were ke
respective periods, %,

44

andsets, SIM cards, scratch cards, modemeand F A
prport items network maintenance spares that

&.Eﬁﬂﬂ o3

N Py



Ethio Teloeam
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 0 June 2o

16(x) Notes reccivable at amortised cost
30 June 2ozz

3o June 201

Birr'ooo Birr'noo
Motes receivable at amortised cost 650,540 650,537
Loss; allowance for impairment - (149.890)
650,840 500,647
Non Current B 407,183
Current 650,540 3,465
650540 500637,

The treasury notes arise from the convarsion of a treasury bill to a note recoivable n from the Ministry of Finance of
Ethiopia in aceordance with Proclamation Na. 648/2009. The notes receivable principal is Birr 650,000 bearing interest at

the rate of 0.433% per annum and tepayable as a lump-sum on 6th May 20323,

Areeonciliation of the changes in treasury notes receivable is as follows:
joJune zozsz

F0 June 2oz

rr'ooo Birr'ooo
Balance ait the beginning of the year 500,847 642,10
Intarest chargad 3,401 3,461
Interest repayments (3,459) (3,458)
Impairment losses 149,890 (131.557)
Balance at the end of the vear 650,540 500,647

Movements on expected credit losses on assets ot amortized is as followa:

At start of year 140,800 8,333
Impairment losses incurred for the year {149,890)

-t

i6({b) Investinent securities at amortised cost
30 June 2oz

30 June zoz1

Birr'ono Birr'ooo
Held at amortised coat -placements 400,000
= 400,000
Lesi allowanee for impairment - (1,544)
Z 398,456
Maturity analysiz
Lessthan 1 year - 308,456
1=5years -
¥ & - 308,450

Movements an expected eredit losses on assots at smortised is a5 follows:

do June 2022 30 Jung zoz1
IIIH"EEQ Birr'aoo

At start of year 1,544 5,902
Impairment lasses ineurred / {reversed) in the year {1,544) {14,438}
- S

The investment seeuritios at amortize W!I“““ﬂlf.'}é' tment placements with financial institutions,
A v, -

@ e
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30 Juno aozz

3o.Junc zoz;

Birr'ooo Hirr'oao
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 10,468 20,687
Cash at banl 28,180,689 1521
28,191,157 15,236,221
Impairment losses - {42.191)
28,191,157 15,194,080
Mavements in expected credit losses on cash and eash equivalents s as follows:
3o June zozs 30 Junc 203
firr'ooo Birr'ona
Al start of ysar 42,141 23541
Impairment losses/ (raversals) far the year (42,141) 18,600
% 42,141
Effects of exchange rate changos on eash and cash equivale 30 June 2021
30 June 2023 As restated
ﬂ‘.’{"_"'ﬁ- Birs*
Realisnd (gains)/losses on cash and cash equivalents during the year 1,906,550 3:504,594
Add closing unrealised (gains)/losses on cash and cash equivalents (905,394) (B44,048)
Less apening unrealised {galna)/losses on cash and eash equivalants 644,048 206,560
1,645,304 3.08%105
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18 Horrowings

a0 June zoza 30 June 2021
Birr'voo Birr'ooo
Non Current
Government loan  18(a) 8,183 8,956
Promissory notes pa' 16(b) 20,567,061 22,880,008
20,576,144 mBB.DEE
Currént
Gavernmant loan  18(a) Lagfia 1,382
Promissory notes pa 18(h) 6,701,450 2,675,106
6,702,921 7.676,4

—22.279.065.  __ 3osrasie.
il (a) Government loan

Ministry of Finance

Ministry of Finance borrowing (s an on-lending facility from the Japanese governmant. The loan principal is JpY
114,973 (Birr 1,970) hea ring interest at the rate of 0.75% per annum and repayable in 30 semi annual instalments, The
aan will mature in 2029, A reconciliation of the changes in government loan is 3 follows :

a0 June 2023 ao June ao@1
Birr'aoo Birr'ooo
Balance at the beginni ng of the year 10,338 10,603
Interest chargad it 110
Principal repayments (1,338) (1.359)
Interest repayments {eq) {31)
Amartisation of grant a3 a7
Translation effeet on foreign currency loans 579 989
Balanes at the end of the yuar 9,634 10,338

This loan was issued at below market interest rate. Tha Enterprise's recognition of the grant arising of Birr 83 { 2021:
Birr 101) is presented undar Note 23

18 (b) Fromissory notes payable

30 Juns pozz 30 June poosi
Birr'ooo Birs'o
ZTE corporation - Next Generation Network L137,577 __-W&E‘
ZTE corparation - Telecom Expansion Project 4,795,354 4,671,724
Huawel Technologies Co, Lid 17,846,204 17,608,330

Ericason Credit AR 0,286 113,860
; nzinép.q 20 inigﬁinn

The promissory notes arise from ﬁﬂlﬂﬂﬂa,qpr;emenu with various vendors for the Enterprisn's next generation

notwork and Telecom Enffpnﬂﬂp‘?tbjit?ﬁ% +The terms of the financing apreements are as belaw H
£ N i T""n-l iy

b
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Curreney  Maximum  Contraciual Effective Maturity
eradit interest rate interest rate
;MEH!E n!
ZTE corporation -~ USD 1,500 6 months USD o 153% 1ith January, 2023
Next Generation LIBOR + 1.0%
Networlk margin
ZTE eorporation -  USD 300 & months USD 2.30% i6th February, 2029
Tulecom expansion LIBOR + 1.5%
praject margin
Huawei usp Boo 6 months USD 2.18% ifith October, 3028
Technologies LIEOR + 1.5%
Co.Ltd margin
Ericsson Credit AR USD 400 & months USD 4.19% 15th March zoz8
LIBOR + 3.0%
margin

A reconciliation of the changes in promissory notes payable is az follows: 30 June zozs

30.June zozi

Birr'aoo Birr'n
Balance ot the baginning of the year 0,504,202 52,962,362
Promissery notes issues 578,938 203,482
Tnterost charged 767,480 830,044
Principal repayments (8,281,78q) (8,742,865)
Intarest repayments (490,786) (533,760)
Translation effect of foreign currency promissory notes 4,131,975 6,335,900
Balanes at the end of the year 27,369,420 30,864,202

18 (¢} Net debt reconcilliation

The Enterprise's finaneing activities cam prise of borrewings and leasing arrangements, An analysia of net debt and the
movements In net debt arising from financing activities for each of the periada is as presentad halow ;

Borrowings Lenses Taotal

Birr'ooo Birr'ooo Birr'oon
Mat debt as at 01 July zoz0 32,472,965 650,740 33,132,705

Net cashflows {9.074,534) 36,391 (9,018,143)
Fareign exchange adjustments 6,296,928 - 6,336,928
Other ehanges {effective interest and other finance « 839,101 131,250 970,440
Net debt as at 30 June zoz21 30,574,540 827,389 31,401,930
Net debt as at 01 July 2021 30,574,590 827,389 31,401,930

Net cashflows (8,195,630) (212,308) (8,408,036)
Forsign exchange adjustments 4,132,554 i 4,133,854
Other changes (effectiva interest and other finance « 767,609 216,905 984,514
Net debit as at 30 June 2022 27,279,065 831,897 28,110,061

iy
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3o dunc zozz 30 June 205

As Festated
000 Birr'ooo
Dofined benefit obligations
Defined benofits liabilitica:
= Communieation banefit 168,218 258,485
= Farewel| benefit 24,025 17,911
= Funeral benefit 58,297 50,70
= Gratuity benefit 171,928 116,31
= Post retirement mudical benefic 258,004 204,048
= Beresvament benafit 34,985 20,51
Linbility in the statement of financial position 709,357 676,757
Statement of profit or laxs charge included in personnel CXPENSES:
= Communication benefit 42,393 47,096
~ Farewell bunefit 4,335 3,853
= Funeral benofit 13,778 10,978
= Gratuity benafit 44,167 6,356
= Past retivemaent medical benefit 45,358 41,866
= Bereavemeit benefit
Total defined benafit expenses :El,&ii_ 129,449
Remeasurements for:
- Communication benefit (110,746) {53,926)
— Farewell benafit 2,084 {3,961)
= Funaral benefit (4,014} {725)
= Gratuity bensfit 142 {f,406)
= Post retirement madical benefit 4,907 (17763
= Berenvement benefit 1

L576) — (g6,8ug)
The statement of profit or loss charge included within emplayse expenses includes eurrent sarvice cost, interest cost, pust servies
osts on the defined benefit sohemes.,

Communication benefit liability has been decreased significantly during the period that is becauss the enterprise has hean changed
the estimation base from the entitloment of the binefit to the actual consumption baxis,

Bereavemunt benefit for the prior year's i.e,, starting from Fabruary 2019, achuarial valuation has been eonductad, which was mizsed
previously. Az g result, the valuation of the banafit has brought an amount of birr 29,515 prior period adjustment restated as 2031
eomprable

3o .June gozs Ao June 2oz

Manirity analysis Az Featiled
Birr' Birr'ooo
Current En.mg Eﬂ.npa
Mon-Current 640,151 &1, fity
709,357 676,787

The signifieant actuarial assumptions were a3 follows:

Einancial azsumptiena applied

aoJdune zozs a0 .June 2021

Diseount Rate (p.a) for all benefits 21.50% 17.30%
Salary incraase rate (p.a) for funeral, gratulty and post ratirement medical benefita 19.50% 15,707
Inflation rate (p.a) for all henefits except pratuity 15,70%
Inflation rate (p.a) for gratoity 13.70%
[nflution ruto {p.a) for all bonefits 18.45%

Benelits increase rate (p.a) for communication and farewell Henafits 92.3% 2.20%
Mortality in Service

The rate of martality assumed for employees are those according to the Demopraphic and Heslth Survey (“DHS"} of Ethiopia ax
brlow; A BB AP

2 e e “»\ Ape hlnr‘lnllly rata  Mortality rate
alel T A Malos Fomales
- 0.31% 0.32%
; 0.50% 0.33%
0.368% o.1%

n.gi% 6.a0%

0.59% g%

0.45% 0.41%

—_— 0.76% 0.44%
Log% . H6%

L76% 1.A0%

an
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Post retirament mortality rates wore assumed ta follow KEo1-034 mortality. Sample rates are provided below:

Age Mortality rate  Mortality rate
Maloa Females

63 4.12% 2.48%

u 8.55% 4.30%

75 151 .06%

8o 20, 05% 28.95%

85 28.97% 11.74%

90 40.99% 50.38%

i) Withdrawal fram Service

Tha withdrawal rates are bolieved to be reasonably repragentative of the Eithi opian experience. The valuntion assumed a rate of
withdrawal of B.00% at the yaungest ages falling with increasing age to 0.50% it age 50,

The sensitivity of the ovarsll defined benefit liabilities to changes in the weighted pringipal aasumptions |5 as below;

Impact on communication benefit abligation

A0 Juhe 2oaa 3o June 2aa
Changein  Impact of an inerease Impact of a Impactofan  Impact of
assumption decrease increase  decrense
m L aao Birf'ooo Birr'uog  Blrf'ooo
Discount rate 1% {63,606) 70,508 {60,60R) #0856
Benefit Rate 1% 55,225 {45.656) 11,789 (i1,145)
Salary growth rate 1% 23,200 (19,774} 62,193 (53.117)

The above sunsitivity analysis is based on changes in an assumption while holding all ather assumptions constant, In practice, this is
unlikely to occur and ehangos in soimie of the assumptions may be corralated. Whan ealoulatiig the sensitivity of the defined benafit
obligations to significant aetuarial assumptions the same mathod, present value of the defined benafit shligation ealculated with the
pigjected unit eradit method at the end of the reporting period has been applied as when caloulating the defined benefits liabilites
recognised within the statement of financial position,

Erojected defined banofit obligations

The the effect of the defined hanefit plans on the Enterprise’s future cash flows is summarised as bolow :

P’Q%M benefit payments Birr'ooo
ar eénding yo June 2033 6g,206

Yoar ending g6 June zoa3 789,550
Year anding 30 June zoz4 fig,o7n
Year ending 30 June zozg 103,655
Yeat ending 30 June 3026 114,864
Total projected benefits payments aver G yearx 458,353

Risks to the Enterprise in respect of the bonefits are summarised and described helow:

Take-up risk: if the proportions of emplayees whe will take up various parts of the benefits inoreases from ourrent raportad
utilization, the east to the Enterprise will increase;

Inflatien Riske if costr of the banafits (nereass at a faster rate than that assumed inflation rate, the cast ta the Entorprize will
Inarease;

Pemographic risk: if more employees retire than oxpected, the cost to the Enterprise will increase:

Cashflow rixk: similatly, if more #mployees retire than expected, the Enterprise will newd to allocate additional eashflows to jray
far the henefita; and

Diiscount rate risk; If bond yiolds drap significantly from year to yoar, the linhilitivs 3nd costs will Inerease, This will net impact
the ulimate cat of the benefit but may adversaly affect the Enterprise’s statement of financial paxition in the shart term,

0
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20 Contract linbilities, provisions, trade and othor payables

FoJuns goazz 30 June 2031
Note Birr'ooo B i
2o(a) Contract linbilities
Contract liabilities 6,968,799 7,311,726

Contract liablitles relate mainly to unused airtime and other revenues (connection, reconnection and installation fees received) where the

Enterprias has not fulfilled perfomance obligations to custemers,

zo(b) Trade and other payables

Trade paysbles

Foreign creditors 14,693,092 10,450,286

Local eraditors 5,562,107 1,713,010
20,255,009 12,163,206

Other payables

Other taxes 122,817 1,127,097

Unclaimed salary 9,271 2,371

Leave acerual 848,161 865,444

Doposits received 234,347 281,085

Sundry ereditors 173355‘193 10,8331
18,564,724 12,010,009
ﬁﬂlaﬂlﬁnﬂ 25,082 328

20{c) Provisions
Provision for legal expense 13772 3,199

Fravision for lease restoration costs 84,206 858
9,00 51,057

Balanee at the beginning of the year

Balance at start of the year 51,057 a3.195
Pravision in the year 47,011 17,863
Balance at the end of the year a8,068 851,057
Provisions relate to legal elaims and restoration costs which are of uncertain timing or amount.

o0 June 2o 30 .June 2021

Birr'ooo

Birr'ooo

Current
Frovision for lease restoration
Pravislon for legal expense 13,772 3199
13,772 3,199
Mon-Current
Provision for lease restoration 84,206 47,858
98,068 81,057

—
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L]

Capital

The Enterprise Capital has been amended in 202; by regulation No.qBo/a021, As per the smendment the enterprise autharized
capital has been proclaimed ta ba 400 billion birr of which birr 100 billion ix paid up in eash and in kind,

Lagal réserve

The logal reserve is a statutory rasarve, The legal reserve is sccumulated by transferring 5% of annual net profits to the reserve until
the amaunt reachos 20% of paid up capital.

Grants
30 June gozz 30 June 2021
—Mrroos  __ Birr'ase
Foreign suppliers’ grants = .
Government grants ag a7
Other grants 839 ___Gho
4 ﬂ
Maturity
Mon-Cirrant 5i8 563
Current 43
501 G0F

Loans at below market interast rate

JoJune 2ozs 30 June 3ozl
Birr'oon Birr'ooo

Balanoe a3 at the beginning of the year FH 71
Amartization {25) (27)
J2 47
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Grants arlsing fram leasehold land

The Entarprise received o grant in form of leasehald land worth Birr 1,050 from the gevernment in 1998 G.€ for o period of 80 years,

Areconciliation of the grant arising from Is as shown belaw,

30 Jung gong Ao June 202i
Hirr'ooo Birr'ooo

Balanca as at the boginning of tha year 560 581
Amortization (21) {21}
53% 560

Crants arising from frechold land

The Enterpeise has received fraahold fand of iipproximately 5,351,443 square metera spread across the country received from the
Government of the Federal Demaocratic Republie of Ethiopia, Noh:monstary govesnment grants, such as freshold land, are recopnised

a hoth an axset and eapital contribution at a nominal amaunt,

24 Other reserves

Other rexerves include remeasursment gains and loxsas on empleyes defined benefit schemes arising from experience adjustments

and changes (n actuarial sssumptions. See further details in Note 19.

25 Retained earnings

Till the end of 2020, Birr 827,817 for ethis telecom's office telephone service for oparational use has been errengously regorded as
receivable (nstead of expense for this error an adjustmant has been dunw to corvect the wrangly stated balance. Bereavement benefit
for the prior year's i.e. starting from February 2019 Actuarfal valuation has been conducted which was missed previously. Ax the

reault the valuation of the hansfit hos brought amounting birr 29,515 a3 restatad |,

Ao June 2o21

i dune gogs Az Festated
26 Cash generated from oporating activities oles Rirr'ooo Birr'ooo
Profit befors tax 17,833,907 12,527,758
Adjustmonta;
Bepreciation of property, plant and equipment i1 8,715,502 5,408,176
Depraciation charge on right of use assets 12 342,403 21722
Amartigation of intangible assets 13 573,881 Bag.141
Amortization of grants 18 25 ay
Employee defined banafit Expense 19 {91,576) (96,884)
Effect of Remaasirment on Right of usa Azsat iz (118,464) {51.63z)
Effect of Remeagurment on Laase Liablity 12 130,454 48,650
Write (down) e writebacl on inventory ] 596,394 (65,017)
Impairment of trade tecaivables 14(b) {1,a93.021) 530,856
Impairment of investment securities at amortised cast 16{k) {1,544} {14.438)
Impairment of Note Recievable 160 (149,800} 141557
Impalrment of cash and cash equivalents 17 {42,141) 1B Gon
Giains from sale of property, plant and equipment i (115,114) (71,360)
Interast inoomae arising from investments g9 {78,321 {2a5,502)
Interest incosie arising from fuir valuation of staff loans a (7,237 {17,018)
Interest exponse 9 BB6,z01 938,603
Hot foreign exohange (gains) / losses 9 5,886,550 8,615,665
Changos in sperating asscts and labilitics:
*Decrease/ (Increnss) in inventories {974,219) (2,802,824)
-Decrease/ (Increase] in trade receivables 14(b) 2,000,789 902,418
-Decreasef (Inorense) in athar sssets {104,821) (303,978)
-Decrease/ (Increase) in other finaneial assets at amortised cast F,105 9.,014
-Increaso/ (Decroane) In defined benefit liskilitios 124,176 126,290
“Inereasc/ {Deerenso) in conteact liabilities {342,927} {128,787)
*linérease/ (Decrense) in grants arising from lon tintarest rate {28) {a7)
“Inerease/ (Decrease) in grants atising fram ! {21) (21)
-Incresse/ (Decrease) in provisions ; 47,011 17,862
-Increase/ (Decreaxn) in trade and othe 13,742,495 64fn.795

a1

44:665,627 33,050,552
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a7a

27b

27c

i)

Related party transnctions

Related parties are considered to be related if one party has the abllity to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or aperation decisions, or one other party contrals both,

The related parties for the Enterprise include management board members and key managemant personnel, Key
management personinel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the enterprise, diveetly or indivectly, including any management board members,

T the normal course of business, a number of fransactions are sntered into with related partles |.e. staff, managemant
board membars or companies associated with management board members, Thess include staff loans and em ployment
compensations. These are disclosed below:

Loans to key management

The aggregate valus of outstanding Interest free loan related to key management pessonnel are as follows, The market rate
used to discount the loan is 11.5%.The loans are secured by the key management's terminal benefits. Management has
assessed the attrition rate for permanent staff as baing low, As such, the loss given default for staff loans is deemed to be
low and consequently the expected credit losses as immaterial,

50 June 2033 30 June 2021
____ Birr'soo Birr'ooo
Loans to key managemant 220 13,319

Key management compansation

Key managemant has been determined to be the members of the management board and the executive management of the
Enterprise, The compensation paid or payable to key management iz shown below, Key management also recaive fras
communication benefits {(mobile equipments and telecommunication services) , vehicla and monthly fuel COUPON A3 paF
the Enterprise's benefit policy, Such costs are expensed within smployee benefit expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

a0 June zozz 30 June 2021
Hirr‘ooo Birr'ooo

Executive management's eampensation 73,406 ad,brh
Management baard's remuneration 1,001 1,139

The outstanding obligation related to post employment benefit plan for key management a8 at 30 Jun 2022 was bier 2,102
(zoz21: Birr 1,697)

Employens
The average number of persons employed by the Enterprise during the year was a3 follows:

Jodunegozz 3o June 2623

Technician Team 6,601 6,029
Commercial Team 5855 6,335
Hupport Teamn 4.573 4,753

17,029 15,017

The table balow shows the numbér of smployess, emoluments in the year and were within the bands stated below:

30 June zozz 30 Juna 2021

nooo - 30,000 - 1
3Jo.001 = 50,000 2 4
50,001 - 106,000 Lubg P
Above 100,000 15,058 17,246
17.020 18,018
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Contingent liabilities

The Enterprise Is a party to numerous lagal actions brought by different organizations and Individuals arisi ng from its
normal business operations, The Enterprize considers it to be probable that some Judgements will not be in its favour ond
should therefore recopnise a provision In rélation to these elaims as disclosed under Note 2a.

The potential undiscounted amount of the total payments that the Enterprise could be required to make if thers was an
adverse decision related to the numerous legal actions is estimated to be approximataly Bire 52,989 (30 June 2021: Birr
12,836).

Commitments

The Enterprise has undrawn facilities for purchase of various capital items a5 summarized balow:

30 June zozz io June 2031
Birr'ooo Birr'ooo
ZTE corporation 5783 6,723,471
Huawei Technologies Co.Ltd 11,202,358 9,505,393
Ericsson Credit AR 10,393 642 1

22,173,521 25,047,193

Launch of Mobile Money Operation

The Enterpeisa has started mobils manty business, branded as “telebire” with the license number of NFS Fi| fo1/2021
to provide digitalized financlal services to its customers, The services include eash in, cash out, airtime top up, cash
transfar, fund raising, mobils remittanee, merchant trangaction payments, cash depasit, microcredit and various utility
payments,

Events after reporting period

Except az disclosed below, thers were no significant events that occurred batween 30 June 2022 and the date of issus of
these financial statements,

Covid 19 asscssment

The Enterprise has assessed the impact of Covid 19 on the business, Based on the assesment, management balieves therg
airé na materlal uncertainities arising.

Goveriment plans to sell stake in Ethio telecom

The Federal Demoeratic Republic of Ethiopia which is the sole owner of the Enterprise plans to sell & 40% stake in the
Enterprise to investors

Fossible damage of assots in the nothern regian of Ethiopia

Since November 2020, the government of the Federal Demoeratic Republic of Ethiopia has been carrying out military
operations in the northeen region of Ethiapia. The impacted regions of the company with this situation ineludes North

has nat been able to assoss the extent to which its assats located in the northorn part of the country may have hoen

damaged by the military oporations as ngmc.pht Fipey cgions are inaccessible and unseeured,
il B he
Date of Authorization f""-d § Lt P L,
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